ANED =R =l
China Resources Land Limi

(STOCK CODE JB: £ fR%% : 1109)

“E-FHEEER
ANNUAL REPORT 2010




o EER

Corporate Information

EHH

PTES
£ E(FER)

S [0 3R (#H H )

FERATH
e

%Jjub*

I

B IERATE S
o)
B Rk
AT B
TR
R (R —

AT
5 S

B fl

TH I HER)
TH AR
TH I HERT)

+ A+ 1 HEAE)
+ A+ 1 HEAE)
—H T H&HTL)

% B = A HE(D)

B8 « BT B0 g EtantT

e
S FERAAT IR )
T BT

BIEREHR /5
A ME O S

Rl
Ugland House
South Church Street
Post Office Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands
British West Indies

R =

T T e 2057

HEH K T 4618
A9k

www.crland.com.hk

Directors

Executive Director
Wang Yin (Chairman)
Wu Xiangdong (Managing Director)

Non-Executive Director
Yan Biao
Du Wenmin
Ding Jiemin
Wei Bin (Appointed on 15 October 2010)
Shi Shanbo (Appointed on 15 October 2010)
Zhang Haipeng (Appointed on 15 October 2010)
Jiang Wei (Resigned on 15 October 2010)
Li Fuzuo (Resigned on 15 October 2010)
Liu Yan Jie (Resigned on 20 January 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Director
Wang Shi
Andrew Y. Yan
Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco
Wan Kam To, Peter
Frederick Ma Si Hang (Appointed on 8 March 2010)

Company Secretary
Lo Chi Lik, Peter

Auditor
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Share Registrar
Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor., Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registered Office
Ugland House
South Church Street
Post Office Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands
British West Indies

Head Office
46th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Website Address
www.crland.com.hk



H &%

Contents

e PS

X SUES R S

T

T o B0 A

B R A N B

AR MBS IR DAL
AR e AN S B 2

,/j:/\fﬁ MER

AR E B R T R

A

100

102
104

216

Group Structure

Schedule of Principal Properties
Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate Governance Report
Report of the Directors
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Financial Summary



5
~

Group Structure

=
=
=
g
=
m
=
Q
)
7
&)
Z
=
=
)
g
7
=
O
=
)
Q
n
=
R~
<
Z
o
o

I E A R AF

China Resources Land Limited

BRARA RO Je 4

R R
Construction &

Ed<eE S
Investment Property

EESEVES
Property Development

€

Furni

Manufacturing & Sales

Decoration

o HHE{ KB Mainland China

o I K FE Mainland China

=} oy 2
2 2§ 2
[=} % hm.m
£ Z - £53 &
2 % s & SR
s 2 z =] Zm X 2
H."hagm.m. Mﬁﬁ‘mﬁli Q£
m O £ 5 # 0§ E & 8% g o ) 5 o0
' % TmS| EE -5 E£5EE 2 = £ £
s = s Z PIEERE - S =
T REEESS||E|Feixs2d 28 g ¢ g
BUESENS s S|PREiREL S ES 5 2 ¢
<<< N MDﬁﬂ%mmﬁmlgﬁﬁN%Mvmm =
g 3 — =
<<<<<<< < ﬁﬁ%%QEMﬂEM mereER &
<<<<LLKL<K<L z e |22 1B 'O W &
<<<LLRLLKLK] w | - 2
<<<<<<K<<K<<K< o
<<<<<<<K<<K<<K<
<<<<<<<L<<k<<k< <
<<<<LLLLLLLLLKL <q d<d< <$<<
<<<<LLLLLLLLLL LKL < <de<<d<d< <<$<<]
<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL <44 kre<<<<<d<d<qd<<k<| <
P22222222222222222: 2222 IR TR A R 24 2222222 D2 22 P22
<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLL <Jekkf<ler<cc<<<d<d<qd<<<
€<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLKLLLLLLL <dekkcckecccccdcdaqdcicdccc
C<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLKLLLLLLLL << fesesecceed<d<d<<f<<c<<<
<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLY<<LLR< <<<<<<<<4<d<<k<<<<<<
<<<<L <LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE<LLLRLLLLLLLLLLL L €4<4<<f<<<<<ed
<<<<  <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLE<<<< AAAAAAAAAAAAAWAAAA <<<<<<<
<<<<< D222222222222 2222222222222 2222322222222
<<<LLLLLLLLLLELLLLKLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLKLLLLLLLLL
22222222222 <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL
<<<<LLLLLLLLLLLL D22222222222222222220002 22 2

<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL KL<

<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L L LKL
<<LL<LLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL L L L LKL L LKL LKL
<<<<L<LLLL<L<LLLLLL LKL LLLLL LKL LLLKL
<<L<L<LLL LKL LKL LKL L L LKL LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL
<<<LLLLLLL LKL LKL L KK Cecccc€€€e<g<kkk
<<LL<LLLLLLLLLL LKL LKL L LL L LKL L LKL LYLL<L
<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKLY

B T B
PT2T2222222222222222222222 22222 222222
PT22222222222222222222 2222222222 22222224
R222222222222222222222 22222 22222 2222222L
<<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLL << <G<<<<<<<<<
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLLELLLLGLLLLLLLL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLFLLLLELLLLGLLLLLLLKL
R2222222222222222222222 22222 22222 022224
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL <L L 4L <<
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL <L LLE<
= o0 = & <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE <L <L
= & B o 5 g 5 PR <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL < <L
S8 SIS s S aROESESE <<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL{<<<
PomNY .S g3 B g S wMEEE S <L <LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLL
28 & PR EESc FD o g S g mH 9N <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE<L<LKLS
T S¥s2E8csNe0EeceesSsag <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL 4L LL <4<
REBIBERORHROTL O<ENDS W.‘@Z = <<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLLE<
2 o e e — — — <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL < <<L <A
W_uu 2XEZRNRNEEHZHDEIEZUREEES <<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL < <<LL
3 ¢ T = igr 4oy <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L <<<<H
THERBEREKEE @ & RIRREHEER <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLL
© © o o o o o o o 0 o 0 0 000 0 0 o0 <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE << <L
<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL{<<L
< <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE<<L &
<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE< =
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL &
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL 0 3
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL g 5
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLL <<< s
<<LLLLLLLLLL << 5 g "
o w - m = <<<<LLLLLLL = g L)
= ) 2222224
558, o fsc. 588 _F.ew sEfosE@E 5 =
BN i S e S EETE N SRR N ERIREE 2 .
= <0 = 8 ST 9N B
TS0V SS SN Oanu.l.eznnsenaznn Hb.l
0 20858 5SS S s2 s 28 o s S 2S IS 2R
RSBOBLZORKREOSLBABAROZ<NSORKZEBENE =
s = = = = === =
RESERIRS R SRR R RT R ST TN TS E R =
FRHRREOE ISR E SRR E KR E I R R IN I iR ] o VR
® 6 O o o o o o © o & 0o o © O 0o O o O o o 0o 0o 0o o 0O 0o 0o o o o

<<

T T
Annual Report 2010

2



FEY) ERE

Schedule of Principal Properties

HEWENERAH

i ciacgAzNiik/ES TR B Wk WA S S
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total Gross R HEER
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area Type Lease Term
e AL 100% 65222 #o L
China Resources Building Medium Term
U SO, I 2 ] K 8 Lease
No. 8, Jianguomen North Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing
[iS¢ld: 96.28% 36,184 i s
Xidan Cultural Centre Medium Term
T G 4k 7 B K A 18078 Lease
No.180, Xidan North Avenue,
Xicheng District, Beijing
£ 9N | 4814% 54,214 /1 LI
Huawei Building R/C Medium Term
30l P I G A K A Lease
Xidan North Avenue,
Xicheng District, Beijing
£ YN ] 15.30% 70,058 i,/ R
Huanan Building c/0 Medium Term
b T U G L K A Lease
Xidan North Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing
B b AL R 96.28% 16,787 i C P
Grand Constellation Shopping Mall Medium Term
JUHT TG 4 [ A A Lease
Hua Yuan Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
(EREE 96.28% 10,685 #c i
U-Space Shopping Mall Medium Term
bt T I R P A K A8 R Lease
No. 8, Guangqumenwai Avenue,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
TR 96.28% 17,952 i C I
Jing Tong Shops Medium Term
JHETI I [ Lease
Chaoyang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

P — e FE— sy W — sz 1F—pe B — s

C — Commercial CP — Car Park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

BB
Annual Report 2010 3
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Schedule of Principal Properties

Annual Report 2010

HEWENERAH
EijiciasgAziik/ES JREA B Wk e WA AR SR
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of ~ Approximate Total Gross Bl R
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area Type Lease Term
T [ 225 96.28% 4155 /M L
Building 22, Guanyingyuan R/C Medium Term
e T P A A L R Lease
Xinjiekou South Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
SR 96.28% 3926 7 C L
Jin Hui Garden Medium Term
k(78PN Lease
Daxing District, Beijing
B ANE 96.28% 44,031 s
Phoenix Place Tower A Medium Term
HFH Office 96.28% 30,789 o Lease
{EHi¥; Car Park 13,242 & cp
Jes b R =TT
Sanyuangiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
BB 96.28% 13,210 i C TR £
Phoenix City Commercial Street Medium Term
JestTT I R = oA Lease
Sanyuangiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
AR 49T 96.28% 5,681 i C LT
Building 49, Medium Term
Fortune Island, Jade City Lease
Jes R B
Daxing District, Beijing
FARIMB2 R 155 96.28% 2,007 i C s A
Building 1, Medium Term
Plot B2, Jade City Lease
AL R Bl
Daxing District, Beijing
TGRS 100% 97,139 AT
Shanghai China Resources Medium Term
Times Square 51,190 i C Lease
i Mall 36,843 #ito
574 Office 9,106 fFcp
{E B Car Park
LR SRR B B 5008
No. 500, Zhangyang Road, Pudong, Shanghai
1 — e P — sy W —mus 1F—pz T — i
C — commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel
SR TR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEWENERAH

Bl a=eAENILIES TR B Wk WA S S

Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total Gross R HEER

Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area Type Lease Term

B 5 55 0% 242,845 TR

Hangzhou The MIXc 60% 173,709 i C Medium Term
H SR The MIXc 60% 69,136 & cp Lease
{58 Car Park

U T VI 8 TR SRV 0% 0 o B A R

East Qingchun Road, Qianjiang New Town,

Jianggan District, Hangzhou

et N 100% 9922 AR

Wuhan Central Park 100% 7,456 i C Medium Term
% Commercial 100% 2,466 & cp Lease
{285 Car Park

IR [R5 & BT {

West Qintai Road, Hanyang District, Wuhan

RiEcEa 100% 2,032 i %

Chengdu Jade City 100% 27,276 i C Medium Term
% Commercial 100% 14,756 & cp Lease
{5 Car Park

AR TIT SR UL IR B B R BrO9 %

No. 99, East Fifth Section, Second Ring Road,

Jinjiang District, Chengdu

TN o 100% 323,748 L

Shenzhen City Crossing Medium Term
H Sk The MIXc 159,585 i C Lease
FYIZEMKE China Resources Building 40,990 O
AL S Grand Hyatt 67,506 i H
{8 Car Park 55,667 & cp

VR85 % R SR S001 5 M 1 % e 1881 5%

No. 5001, Shennan East Road and No.1881,

Baoan South Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen

ISR 100% 13,789 7 C TR

Shenzhen Hua Rui Building Medium Term

RN 2 0 197 % 7 96 100195 Lease

No. 1001, Baoan South Road, Luohu District,

Shenzhen

T — e 1 — s W — sz 1F—pe T — i
C — commercial CP = Car Park O — Office R — Residential H — rotel

SRR | g
Annual Report 2010
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HEWENERAH

Bl a=eAENILIES JEA BT B 2 PEA AR S

Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total Gross Bl FEAER
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area Type Lease Term
B 100% 41926 i H Gl il
Le Meridien Shimei Bay Beach Medium Term
Resort & Spa Lease
s f A

Shimei Bay, Wanning

P — e = sy W — s it —pe B — s

C — commercial CP — Car Park O — Office R — Residential H — rotel

Fl o AR IEIL A I H 34,729°F 75 K » AR - @ H 9I5BT RS L~ L S H 2
o A VUL AR L~ AR 2N AR RIS L~ BRI ~ TR KL 1 2
# - KRG K TIHA L BE A VUL G DL GG L B FEATE 2
# - FREROLE - BB LHE ~ RE R AR B 2V~ g RIERILIH F 2V MR AL i 252 ~ I TR
FUOI TR H 2V - TR W IR H 2 714,213,698 T 7 KBS ~ 3,691,568 F- 77 K et A2 F -

Note: Not including Beijing other operational investment properties of 34, 729 square meters; and Beijing Phoenix Plaza, Beijing

s

Oak Bay Commercial Property, Shanghai Wuzhong Road Project Commercial Property, Chengdu Twenty-Four City
Commercial Property, Chengdu Oak Bay Commercial Property, Chengdu Donglin Project Commercial Property, Mianyang
Central Park Commercial Property, Hefei The MIXc, Wuxi Taibu International Community Commercial Property, Hotel in
Dalian Oriental Xanadu, Dalian Ganjingzi Huanan Project Commercial Property, Chongqing Twenty-Four City Commercial
Property, Shenyang City Crossing, Shenyang CR Plaza, Anshan Park Lane Manor Commercial Property, Qingdao City
Crossing, Zbengzbhou MIXc Residence Commercial Property, Changchun Southern New District Project Commercial Property,
Harbin Songbei Project Commercial Property, Taizhou CR International Community Commercial Property, Zibo Zbangdian
Central District Project Commercial Property, Hainan Shimei Bay Project Commercial Property, all of which are currently
under construction or planned to be constructed involving a total gross floor area of 4,213,698 square meters and a
attributable gross floor area of 3,691,568 square meters.

i | (M
- | . :
SR TEASE R MG

Beijing China Resources Building Shanghai China Resources Times Square Shenzhen MIXc

AR BEAE

Annual Report 2010
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At AR A
I E k20114
HIRATH ] 3/23H it
JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y5 H

Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated VUL
LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
T ot 100% 446,224 855,772 fi 1549f] R
Shengyang Oak Bay R Sep/15  Construction in
TR Progress
Yuhong District, Shenyang
TR 100% 44,046 136986 11/ M 14491 Hgkh
Shenyang MIXc Residence R/C Sep/l4  Construction in
T F TRl Progress
Heping District, Shenyang
& DhE 100% 133,675 349,705 k7 14495 (888
Shenyang The Arch R/C Sep/14  Construction in
T 95 i 84 7 [ Progress
Tiexi District, Shenyang
R EHE 51% 169,000 422,684 I 144971 Sl
Shenyang Changqing Project R Sep/14 Planning in
TR B33 T R R [ Progress
Hunnan New District, Shenyang
K 100% 121,400 912,294 f 1849 grh
Dalian Maritime R Sep/18 Construction in
KL [ O Progress
Binhai New District, Development Zone, Dalian

P — e P — oy W — mns it —ne W — s
C — commercial CP = Car Park O — oOffice R — Residential H — Hotel

Shenyang Oak Bay

At i

Dalian Maritime

-
Annual Report 2010
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At A S
I E k20114
HIAT k] 3H23H it
JE A B PR 25 48 3 e i Approximate Y5 R H

Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated {éﬁE’Fﬁa{h{
LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
KR i P85 0% 55% 105,474 85,331 i 15461 s
Dalian Oriental Xanadu R Jun/15 Construction in
ATV ] 1 [ 96 1 0 Progress
Xinhaiwan No.4 Road, Shahekou District, Dalian
KEH I TH#mIEA 100% 169,800 592,000 /R i A
Dalian Ganjingzi Huanan Project R/C na Planning in
KA H - 2 g AL Progress
North Zhonghua Road, Ganjingzi District, Dalian
BlERE 100% 101,914 360,200 i 1644 A e
Anshan Park Lane Manor R Apt/16 Planning in
5 L R L e 0 L A 5 Progress
Crossing of Liberation Road and Yuanlin Road,
Tiedong District, Anshan
tAlPE S 100% 54,057 190,200 ft 1644 A R
Anshan Carrefour North Project R Apt/16 Planning in
AL R D o BT 52 R Progress
Crossing of South Shengli Road and Heping Road,
Tiedong District, Anshan
REMIHIMIEH 100% 131,300 247100 &/ B gl
Changchun Southern New Project R/C na Planning in
RENHIHIR Progress
Southern New Town, Changchun

P — e FE — sy HE— sz ft—pe T — s
C — commercial CP — Car Park O — Office R — Residential H — Hotel

AR

Dalian Oriental Xanadu

-

GEBEAE IR

Annual Report 2010
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At A S
TR #ik20114F
HIAT k] 3H23H it
JE A B PR 25 48 3 e i Approximate Y5 R H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated Jf}ﬁi’%{h’

LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
WAL 100% 90,000 80250 /i fE itk
Harbin Songbei Project R/C na Planning in
TR E AL LI Progress
Songbei District, Harbin

ER¥ES 96.28% 18,085 50,000 /i 114E6f] FHll
Majestic Garden o/C Jun/11 Planning in
Bl el Progress
Jianxiaogiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

PISAL L 96.28% 51,620 74716 fk /T 134124 ikt
Eco Living R/C Dec/13 Construction in
JewE R 2 A K #3055 Progress
No.305 Guanganmenwai Avenue, Xuanwu District,

Beijing

Jem it 98.10% 308,133 248,190 s 1549 g
Beijing Oak Bay R Sep/15  Construction in
A B s Progress
Qinghe, Haidian District, Beijing

R el 100% 201,496 286,121 f 1645 B
Mentougou Project R May/16 Construction in
bt P S I Progress
Mentougou District, Beijing

P — e = W — mnx 1 —pz W —
C — commercial CP — Car Park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

PRI

Eco Living

AL E R
Beijing Oak Bay

SRR
Annual Report 2010
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At AR A
TR #ik20114F
HIRATH ] 3H23H it
VA B 22 A T RS Approximate Y& H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated % LD

LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of B Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
KBL175EH 100% 123,690 227323 i3 15445 Bk
Daxing Plot 17 R Apr/15 Construction in
(474 ipN 0 Progress
Daxing District, Beijing

E N e 100% 17,767 37344 /7 (7 GEEL
CR Building Phase 2 R/C na Planning in
R Progress
Dongcheng District, Beijing

N BN 100% 105,800 142,592 i3 1312/ Bk
Tianjin Central Park R Dec/13 Construction in
KT v [ SV B e Progress
Jiulong Street, Shuanggang Town,
Jinnan District, Tianjin

K% HEIE H 100% 511,841 708,630 lid 17495 EiE
Tianjin Konggang Project R Sep/17 Planning in
K22 s [ Progress
Konggang District, Tianjin

IS0 3L I 100% 65,000 24000 H/7 17414 Hgh
Zhengzhou MIXc Residence R/C Jan/17  Construction in
B i = I R B AR AR 2 XL 0 Progress
Crossing of Democracy Road and

Liberation Road, Twenty-seven District, Zhengzhou|

P — i HE— sy W= mnsz it — e T —
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

AL 17551 KH R L]

Daxing Plot 17 Tianjin Central Park

"B AR

10 Annual Report 2010
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At AR A
I E #ik20114
HIRATH ] 3H23H it
VA B 22 A T RS Approximate Y& H

Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated % LD
B '-I-”V/J E Interest of China Total Floor Area As of K Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
JE 154 100% 185,400 463,450 T 1548 A gl
Tangshan Oak Bay R Aug/15  Construction in
L T RTS8k Progress
Phoenix New Town, Tangshan
HFRERTL 100% 135,527 372700 f/7 15412/ Bgsh
Qingdao City Crossing R/C Dec/15  Construction in
By T 6L R 1098 Progress
No.10, Shandong Road,
Southern District, Qingdao
TSR O R IE B 100% 149,850 444600 £/ (674 GiE Ik
Zibo Zhangdian Central District Project R/C na Planning in
TR [ O R Progress
Central Town, Zhangdian District, Zibo
g A P A I 0% 1,115,685 98,598 i3 1647 g
Wuxi Taihu International Community R Jul/16 Construction in
SiTiT 4 1 BR8SHE Progress
No.88, Jinshi Road, Wuxi
FRINF- R 100% 96,564 45,922 fE 14412 Bk
Suzhou Villa R Dec/14 Construction in
BN THLE Progress
Pingjiang District, Suzhou

P — e P — sy HE— mos 1t —ne B —
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

B K At

Wuxi Taihu International Community

HEHFPIRF

Suzhou Villa

T TR
Annual Report 2010
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At AR A
I E #ik20114
HIRATH ] 3H23H it
VA B 22 A T RS Approximate Y& H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated % LD

B '-I-”V/J E Interest of China Total Floor Area As of K Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
BRM R 100% 170,345 337,543 i3 12F12f P
Suzhou Oak Bay R Dec/12  Construction in
JR N T AR AR [ Progress
Xiangcheng District, Suzhou

EEMEE LI 100% 259,988 285,987 f 15412/ Bz
Suzhou The Bound of Kunyu R Dec/15  Construction in
R TG Progress
Honggiao Road, Kunshan

P A 100% 185,052 401,923 i3 15610/ gk
Nantong Oak Bay R Oct/15 Construction in
o 08 P 3 U P B Progress
East Xinkai North Road, Economic Technical

Development Zone, Nantong

iz 100% 117,800 200,260 f 134124 FHleh
Yangzhou Oak Bay R Dec/13 Planning in
T T I T 4 Progress
Jiangwang Town, Hanjiang District, Yangzhou

RN EFEB R 100% 221,179 309928 f 1446 A GiE Ik
Xuzhou The Bound of Yulong Lake R Jun/14 Planning in
AR S R Progress
Tongshan District, Xuzhou
P — e 7 — sy W—mns ft—ne W —
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

BN RIEREE
Suzhou Oak Bay Nantong Oak Bay

12 "B AR
Annual Report 2010
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At AR A
I E k20114
HIRATH ] 3H23H it
JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y5 H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated VUL

LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
M FR A R 100% 283,050 7925%  fi/H 17412/ itk
Taizhou CR International Community R/C Dec/17 Planning in
FEM T AL ] R Progress
Zhoushanhe District, Taizhou
i 100% 59,504 S6,681 /M 114E12f Rgkrh
Shanghai The Bund Side R/C Dec/l1  Construction in
R ] Progress
Huangpu District, Puxi, Shanghai

REZ G 100% 144,247 136,601 kT 146114 s
Shanghai Oak Bay R/C Nov/14  Construction in
L igTTBU #0884 Progress
No.1088, Zhenghe Road, Shanghai

Ligth A 100% 266,970 467,197 fF 17481 Bz
Shanghai Central Park R Aug/l7  Construction in
g E Progress
Jiading District, Shanghai

RiZS Iy 100% 121,719 121,719 fE 13435 s
Shanghai Eternal Palace R Mar/13  Construction in
LA Progress
Songjiang District, Shanghai

P — =y W — oz 1E—pz T —
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

LI
The Bund Side

AN
Shanghai Central Park

¢ Tl

!
i)

| EEE,

481}
i i

AR |

AR LA
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At AR A
T E k201148
HIRATH ] 31230 fiiiit
JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y5 H

Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated iﬁﬁi’%(ﬂ
LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
LR EIER 50% 202,400 50,000 i 1545 EiE L
Shanghai Wuzhong Road Project © May/15 Planning in
LTS Progress
Wuzhong Road, Shanghai
HUMBLIR 60% 23,556 4,846 fi 1044A B5%L
Hangzhou MIXc Service Residence R Apr/10 Completed
LN T VL0 6 P 25 5 A AR 737
No.737, Fuchun Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou
B B SR B A 0% na 92,500 ft 154114 F ik
Hangzhou MIXc Service Apartment R Nov/15 Planning in
U T VL Y 25 3 A B 7379 Progress
No.737, Fuchun Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou
B 2 ILEHE 100% 90,640 181,280 f 144795 itk
Hangzhou Zhijiang Project R Sep/14 Planning in
U T 2 L BE AR [ 2 VI i ) Progress
South Zhijiang Road, Zhijiang District, Hangzhou
XSS 100% 317,155 91,855 i3 12F12f sk
Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley R Dec/12 Construction in
PR R Progress
Donggianhu District, Ningbo

P — e P — sy W — oz 1F—pe B — s
C — Commercial CP — Car Park O — office R — Residential H — rotel

B BLIRF
Hangzhou MIXc Residence

IR
Annual Report 2010

SRR
Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley




WEA A 57

At AR A
I E #ik20114
HIAT ] 3H23H it
JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y& H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated % LD

B '-]-'CV/J E Interest of China Total Floor Area As of K Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
BREETRAE 100% 150,389 168,151 i 13412/ Bk
Ningbo Cixi Central Park R Dec/13  Construction in
RN I E Progress
Kandun Street, Cixi, Ningbo

£ S A LINELE 50% 89,000 196,062 f 13612/ GEL
Ningbo Cixi Central Park R Dec/13 Planning in
AL R Progress
Beilun District, Ningbo

RIEE A 100% 13,744 35780 AL/ 12612 s
Wuhan Landmark Residence R/C Dec/12 Construction in
RETRE BRI Progress
Minzhu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan

R 100% 190,260 457,592 fi 14461 B
Wuhan Oak Bay R Jun/14  Construction in
BT B R TR [ B Progress
Yangyuan Section, Yangzi River Bank, Wuchang

District, Wuhan

R A 100% 123,820 151776 fE/T 13412 Sk
Wuhan Central Park R/C Dec/13  Construction in
BT [ Progress
Hanyang District, Wuhan

P — e 7 — sy W — mnx 1 —pz W —
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

B E A ILNE SN
Ningbo Cixi Central Park Wuhan Central Park
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HIAT k] 31230 filrat
JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y5 H

Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated i’%ﬁi’%(}ﬂ
I LL/E S Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
ayise il 100% 76,552 15298 {L/7 104121 BT
Hefei Park Lane Manor R/C Dec/10 Completed
BNTHT VLTG5 B A R R BRI S XL 1
Crossing of Wangjiang West Road and Hezuohua
South Road, Hefei
Gl e 100% 53,600 48,861 fE 12447 [
Hefei Palace Glorious R Apr/12  Construction in
AIETTE R R IR Progress
Yangzi River East Avenue, Yaohai District, Hefei
A IESUEN 100% 221,000 618000t/ 124£12R g
Hefei The Arch R/C Dec/12 Construction in
A N B [ Progress
Zhengwu District, Hefei
A RE#E B — R IE H 100% 242,000 677,600 f i R
Hefei No.1 Jiancai Factory Project R na Planning in
A IE T R Progress
Luyang District, Hefei
R BESL 100% 401,777 666,909 i 1548f Sk
Changsha Phoenix City R Aug/15  Construction in
RO R Progress
Changsha County, Changsha

P — e P — g W — s 1 —pz T — i
C — commercial CP — Car Park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

AR RIS

Hefei Park Lane Manor Changsha Phoenix City
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HEE k201148
HIRATH ] 3/23H fiiiit
JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y5 H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated VUL

LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
RUbEmHER 100% 153,860 460,206 i3 16464 B
Changsha Hanpu Project R Jun/16 Planning in
R R IR S B Progress
Hanpu Town, Wangcheng County, Changsha

JER S AR I 100% 370928 16189 £/ 11461 Sk
Chengdu Jade City R/C Jun/I1  Construction in
JRCHR T ST Progress-
Jinjiang District, Chengdu

SR BRI 100% 157,220 221,144 f 134971 Wk
Chengdu Phoenix City R Sep/13  Construction in
AR =Rk Progress
South Third Ring Road, Chengdu

FGAD —  P 3k 100% 559,883 1,313,077 f 154121 Fugeh
Chengdu Twenty-Four City R Dec/15  Construction in
AR BB Progress
East Second Ring Road, Chengdu

PR 100% 132,039 434,593 i3 14412/ R
Chengdu Oak Bay R Dec/14  Construction in
AR R ERAL S Progress
Hongguang Town, Pi County, Chengdu

P — F— sy W — mpx F—pz B — s
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

JLEBFE I
Chengdu Jade City

Chengdu Phoenix City

-
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JREAL B B A 25 A T RS Approximate Y& H
Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated VL

LS Interest of China Total Floor Area As of il Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
b 100% 112,140 336,420 i 14412 sk
Chengdu Jinyue Bay R Dec/14  Construction in
AT o [ Progress
Qingyang District, Chengdu

FRCHRER Ay 2E 100% 23,567 3230 ki 126411 g
Chengdu Ginkgo Park R/C Apr/12 Construction in
JRCHR T 4 2 8 Progress
Jinniu District, Chengdu

JCHR SR 100% 14,266 71716 i 12612 EiE kL
Chengdu Donghu Project R Dec/12 Planning in
JRCER T L Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu

JHR M IE H 100% 79,000 170,756 f 144£12A Eik s
Chengdu Donglin Project R Dec/14 Planning in
AR T Progress
Chenghua District, Chengdu

R LN 100% 277,423 615,875 fE 14412 Bt
Mianyang Central Park R Dec/14  Construction in
ARp T RLAI E R Progress
Kechuangyuan District, Mianyang

P — e FE— sy W= muz F—pz B — s
C — Commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Hotel

S AR WAV
Chengdu Ginkgo Park Chongqing Twenty-Four City
R LA AR
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WA R MOOBWAT  Approximate BB

Attributable Beneficial Approximate Unsold Gross Estimated VL
B Interest of China Total Floor Area As of iyl Date of State of
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area 23 March 2011 Type Completion Completion
Gl PN 100% 171,686 462,181 i 14412 Bk
Chongging Central Park R Dec/14  Construction in
FEEMTA R i Progress
Dashiba Street, Jiangbei District, Chongqing
Gl gl 100% 408,992 1,307,243 fF 16461 gk
Chongqing Twenty-Four City R Jun/16  Construction in
FEEURES R KM AP Progress
Section P of Dayangshi, Jiulongpo District,
Chongqing
MR 100% 360,117 469,724 f 15412 Bigkrh
Fuzhou Oak Bay R Dec/15 Construction in
R T 0 D A e P g Progress
West Hongwan Road, Cangshan District, Fuzhou
B 5 100% 94,623 305,439 ft 16410/ B
Xiamen Oak Bay R Oct/16 Construction in
A R A AL B Progress
Xingbei Road, Jimei District, Xiamen
EIELS N 100% 127,238 279,923 ft 15612/ GiE G
Nanchang Central Park R Dec/15 Planning in
i E TR Progress
Chaoyang New Town, Nanchang
W A HEETE B 100% 3,218,736 967,062 fE/T 17412f g
Hainan Shimei Bay Project R/C Dec/17  Construction in
AR Progress
Shimei Bay, Wanning

P — i HE — sy W — oz it —pz T — i
C — commercial CP — Car park O — office R — Residential H — Horel

HIM 1 H oragzed

Fuzhou Oak Bay Hainan Shimei Bay
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Chairman’s Statement
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Thre ;group bas ifs vision fo promole lhe value of urban /1fe and to Aeéo peop[e fuéq//
their dreamed ﬁ'uz'ny, aims to become the most prominent 1h/¢7ra/ea/ properly
company in China and a marke! leader in mid-to-high end residential and
investment property seclors by way of ifs persistent pursuif of qualily excellence and
lhe “(/lﬁferelz/ia/ed’ " compelilive slralegy and its adop/ion a/ unique business model
of “residential o/eue/opmen/ + properly investmen! + value-added services”.

2010 Annual Results and Dividend
Distribution

In 2010, the Group’s consolidated turnover and profit attributable
to shareholders reached HK$25,729 million and HK$6,026 million
respectively, increased by 54.5% and 40.0% over the corresponding
period of 2009. The residential development business turnover
amounted to HK$22 587 million, with a year on year growth of
56.3%; the turnover of investment property business including hotel
business amounted to HK$1,777 million, representing a year-on-year

growth of 59.6%.

In 2010, residential development business witnessed a substantial
enhancement in its gross profit margin with it rising by 5% from
34.1% in 2009 to 39.4%; EBITDA margin of property leasing business
recorded a decline from 69.1% in 2009 to 60.2% in 2010, due
primarily to Hangzhou MIXc, which came into operation at the end
of April 2010, with relatively low first-year rental contribution due
to certain rental free periods and relatively high initial operating

expenses.

In consistence with its dividend payout policy, the Group declared
a final dividend of HK21.5 cents per share, an increase of 17.5%
compared to HK18.3 cents per share for the corresponding period of
2009. Together with the interim dividend of HK9.5 cents, the annual
dividend of 2010 amounted to HK31.0 cents per share. The payout
ratio in 2010 was 27.0%, the same level as for 2009.
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Land Bank
During 2010, the Group added a total gross floor area of 6.60

million square meters to its land bank. Together with the new land
bank acquired in Harbin, Zibo, Hefei, Taizhou and Dalian since the
beginning of 2011, as of 23 March 2011, the Group has established
its presence in 31 cities nationwide with a total land bank of 26.66
million square meters in gross floor area, of which land bank for
residential development stood at 22.45 million square meters while
that of investment properties under construction and investment
properties in operation totaled 4.21 million square meters and 1.15

million square meters respectively.

The Group has now established a land bank portfolio that is
reasonably balanced in its proportion for residential development
and investment properties, ideally located in its geographic reach.
Current land bank portfolio represents a strategic match to the
Group’s long term plan, can largely meet the needs for the Group’s

development in the coming years.

Vision and Development Strategy

The Group has its vision to promote the value of urban life and to
help people fulfill their dreamed living, aims to become the most
prominent integrated property company in China and a market
leader in mid-to-high end residential and investment property
sectors by way of its persistent pursuit of quality excellence and
the “differentiated” competitive strategy and its adoption of unique
business model of “residential development + property investment +

value-added services”.

The Group’s “differentiated” competitive strategy, unique business
model of “residential development + property investment + value-
added services” along with “quality excellence” form the core
components of the Group’s development strategy, which in turn
guarantees the Group to achieve its vision and helps to build up

long-term core competitiveness.

e S R
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Under guidance of the aforementioned strategies, after years of
persistent efforts, the Group has formed six series of residential
products, including Park Lane Manor Series, the premium high-
rise residential products in urban area; Blue Lake City Series, the
premium mixed density residential products in suburban area;
Central Park Series, the elite high-rise residential products in city
centre; Oak Bay Series, the elite mixed density residential products
in suburb area; MIXc Residence/The Arc Series, the luxury high
rise residential products in city centre; and The Bound Series, the
luxury low rise residential products in suburb area. These product
lines are tailored for different customer needs ranging from living
improvement, quality pursuit to high-end home purchase. At present,
the Group’s metropolitan complex project “City Crossing”, which
has been highly recognized by the market and industry peers, has
been introduced to eight cities in China, two of which have been
completed, the other six are under construction. In addition, “Regional
Commercial Center” (named as “Rainbow City Series”), currently
being piloted in Beijing Oak Bay project, have further broadened our
commercial product lines and expanded our geographic presence.
The Rainbow City Series have recently been introduced to several

cities in China, including Beijing, Shanghai and Zibo.

Since its successful trial in Beijing Oak Bay Project, “the standardized
and serialized storage space”, as the first of such value-added
services offered to the market, has already been extended to 17
cities; meanwhile, the Group has introduced other value-added
services on a trial basis, including in-house developed “flexible/
adjustable furniture”. Those services were applauded by customers
and market when being applied in Beijing Eco Living project and
helped the project to achieve better sales and premium in selling

prices.
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During the year under review, the Group had reformed its
organizational structure and managerial framework to add a layer
of regional headquarters between the group headquarter and city
companies. Introduction of this new “dual-headquarter” managerial
framework (group headquarter + regional headquarters) represents
a major milestone in the evolvement of corporate management
structure of the Group, in light of the Group’s rapid expansion, by
the needs for a more disciplined and systematic product duplication
on a basis of well-established standardized product lines, and the
needs for a more accelerated asset turnover. It is also aimed to better
accommodate the Group’s long-stated differentiated business strategy
and better serve the Group in its efforts to achieve its strategic goal
of “high quality, high efficiency and low cost” more effectively. We
believe this reform will have profound impacts to the Group’s future

financial performance.

Prospects

Since April 2010, the Chinese government has launched new rounds
of tightening policies towards property sector. The introduction of
the tightening measures has effectively reined property prices in
China from rising further, the trend seen since the second half of
2009, and has curbed over-speculation in the sector. In the long run,
these tightening measures are beneficial and essential for sustainable
and healthy development of China’s property market. The ultimate
purposes of these policies are to avoid the rapid and irrational
increases in land cost and property prices, thus to ensure social
harmony as well as sustainable development of the industry, while
protecting the real economy from potential damage caused by the

collapse of asset bubbles.
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Despite the uncertainties in the industry, the Group is fully confident
about achieving its target performance in 2011. On one hand, there
will be substantial increase in both bookable GFA and saleable GFA
in 2011; on the other hand, there will be an increased number of
cities and projects contributing to revenues and contracted sales,
with a bigger proportion from second or third tier cities where end-
user demands dominate local markets. Furthermore, a new series of
commercial properties, namely Hangzhou MIXc Phase 1 launched
last year, Shenyang MIXc Phase 1 and Beijing Oak Bay Commercial
(Rainbow City Phase 1) to be launched this year, will also become
new growth drivers for our recurrent rental incomes. As of 23 March
2011, the Group has achieved total contracted sales of RMB5,054
million in 2011, representing an increase of 72.5% over the same
period of 2010. Together with an unrecognized contracted value
of RMB21,037 million achieved before 2011, the Group has so far
locked in a total unrecognized development revenue of RMB26,091
million as of 23 March 2011, among which, RMB19,296 million
will be booked in 2011, thus laying down a solid foundation for

sustainable growth and promising financial results of 2011.

Wang Yin

Chairman

25 March 2011, Hong Kong
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The Group’s “o/lf/eren/ia/er/” compelilive strategy, unique business mm/e/of
“residential (/eue/opmen/ + properly investmen! + value-added services” a/ony with
“ﬁza/i/y excellence” form the core components o/ the Group’s development stralegy,
which in turn guarantees lhe ;group o achieve ifs vision and 153405 to build up /ony-

ferm core compeliliveness.

Review of Residential Development
Business in the Year of 2010

In 2010, the Group’s total area sold reached 2,180,651 square
meters, a slight increase of 1.3% over the same period of 2009, while
total contracted sales was RMB22,263 million, a decline of 11.3%
compared with 2009, due to a higher contribution to contracted sales
from tier two and tier three cities in comparison with that of 2009.

Sales breakdown by cities during the year of 2010 are set out as

—
% follows:
B REH e A
lyﬁﬂ? Ci Contracted Value Area Sold
ty
ANR¥T % Tk %
RMB’000 % Sqm %
' e ) B
b Beijing 2,063,764 9.3% 69,161 3.2%
i Shanghai 1,876,537 8.4% 38,075 1.7%
G Shenzhen 49,981 0.2% 1,242 0.1%
FHB Chengdu 4,854,488 21.8% 558,129 25.6%
R Wuhan 1,032,987 4.6% 90,450 4.1%
AR Hefei 1,183,657 5.3% 173,785 8.0%
LSRN Hangzhou 137,843 0.6% 14,880 0.7%
g
S5 Wuxi 1,137,418 5.1% 109,159 5.0%
= Ningbo 1,766,308 7.9% 88,589 4.1%
KA Dalian 1,971,776 8.9% 216,816 9.9%
U Changsha 1,173,796 5.3% 261,413 12.0%
RN Suzhou 321,401 1.4% 7,214 0.3%
HE Chongging 1,809,152 8.1% 255,179 11.7%
e Shenyan 1,188,853 5.3% 131,087 6.0%
yang
| Fuzhou 1,434,339 6.4% 119,856 5.5%
4K Mianyang 260,060 1.2% 45,616 2.1%
&5 Total 22,263,360 100.0% 2,180,651 100.0%
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TR -FEREE FEIEMHHELR Sales breakdown by projects in the year of 2010:

BE-Z-FF
+ZA=Et-H ZEFFE ZFFE
HH % FrAEsg JHH R mEgEmy RS oEER BT PR
Accumulated Average
area sold Area sold  selling price
as of in the year in the year
Project City Project Type Total GFA 31 Dec 2010 of 2010 of 2010
N 7%
(CFFK) (CFFK) FIiK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (RMB/Sqm)

e =473 REEEE 616,757 260817 59,108 30227
Oak Bay Beijing High density residential

FSRALIL = FEEE AT 217,490 126,505 4,181 49,237
Eco Living Beijing Mid-low density residential

FiGHER Fifg g i 189,776 103,724 5,287 96,325
The Bund Side Shanghai High density residential

e Fifg mMEEEE 230,795 85,856 32,788 41,701
Oak Bay Shanghai High density residential

By 7 REEEE 110,000 100,003 1242 40,229
Park Lane Manor Shenzhen High density residential

AR AR HREEEE 1,063,542 946,450 116,955 11,601
Jade City Chengdu Mid-low density residential

e g1 FHD BT 1,640,000 491,776 122325 10315
Twenty-Four City Chengdu High density residential

JERELIR A FEEEE 694,576 423,901 156,094 8336
Phoenix City Chengdu High density residential

e A FREELE 523,511 67,182 67,182 7,252
Oak Bay Chengdu Mid-high density residential

AR FRAR TREEEE 73,059 11,907 11,907 8,343
Ginkgo Park Chengdu Mid-high density residential

HRAE R mEEEE 346,696 180,637 89,622 11,472
Central Park Wuhan High density residential

FHE &) mEEEE 195,004 189,005 50,776 6991
Park Lane Manor Hefei High density residential

26 "B AR
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Project

P e i

City

JHH B

Project Type

BE %%
FoAZER
R DR

Accumulated

Y2 T

area sold

as of

Total GFA 31 Dec 2010
(FHKk)
(Sqm)

o

AT

Area sold
in the year
of 2010

(CFF*)
(Sqm)

L
Average
selling price
in the year
of 2010
N 74
FIikK)
(RMB/Sqm)

RN G REEEE 199,500 122,283 122,283 6,754
Palace Glorious Hefei High density residential
ESHRMEELE S PEEELEE 1,017,698 417,154 109,159 10,420
Taihu International Wuxi Mid-low density residential
Community

Dy B BEEEE 130,352 110,869 20345 32,440
Tuscany Lake Valley ~ Ningbo Low density residential
FRAE B REEAE 284,348 129,756 63,486 16936
Central Park Cixi High density residential
EIHET PN PEEELT 166,137 65,273 6,879 36913
Oriental Xanadu Dalian Mid-low density residential
it e PN REEEE 1,309,592 373,546 182,658 8,458
Maritime Dalian High density residential
SRl B EHEME 67,595 19,723 7,214 44,555
Suzhou Villa Suzhou Low density residential
B3k =304 BT 1,198,040 460,424 258,654 4,487
Phoenix City Changsha High density residential
A BE g i 1,951,620 335,582 182,466 7,129
Twenty-Four City Chongqing High density residential
R HE FREELT 572,665 72713 72713 6,992
Central Park Chongqing Mid-high density residential
SLEr b REEEE 280,000 137,804 77,265 8683
The Arch Shenyang High density residential
i {Es TREELE 890,476 35,394 35,394 10,999
Oak Bay Shenyang Mid-high density residential
e M PEEEEE 603,108 118,264 118,264 12,040
Oak Bay Fuzhou Mid-low density residential
PN Hik HEEE T 861916 45,616 45,616 5,701
Central Park Mianyang Mid-high density residential
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TR T REBE B EEHEELE
FEHW 2258780 » HHE EE45179.07
BT oK s AR ] 43 1 3 R 56.3% 0
55.6% ° _E —TFAEE P EH N E A
R1539.4% > o EAERIHAM34. 1% 8 & =
A E 4TS > EERRNAHE B ERK
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ARG & AT E SR R KO S

Details of the Projects Delivered and
Booked in 2010

During 2010, the Group’s residential development business achieved
a turnover of HK$22,587 million with 1,790,678 square meters
recognized, representing a year on year growth of 56.3% and 55.6%
respectively. The Group’s gross profit margin of the residential
development business rose substantially by 5.3% from 34.1% in 2009
to 39.4% in 2010, driven by increased prices for recognized projects
and a rise in proportion of high margin projects being recognized in

2010.

Details of the projects booked and turnover of the Group in 2010 are

RERLANTR -

HH A

listed below:

Project Name

AE5E SR AFmAE
Turnover Area Booked
000 RRES

HK$°000 Sqm

&N Beijing Oak Bay 910,836 54,467
PUIRALLL Beijing Eco Living 508,453 29,100
HAth Beijing Others 78,814 4,039
|8 VAT Beijing Subtotal 1,498,103 87,606
b A The Bund Side 11,422 288
PR Shanghai Oak Bay 1,663,477 35,502
b IR /NG Shanghai Subtotal 1,674,899 35,790
@ﬂ”ﬁTEE Shenzhen Park Lane Manor 612,078 15,915
ELE Chengdu Jade City 1,268,587 131,696
JEL Ik Chengdu Phoenix City 1,630,703 186,190
e I Chengdu Twenty-Four City 1,475,094 147,775
At Chengdu Oak Bay 59,583 6,631
BB b [ /N EE Chengdu Subtotal 4,433,967 472,292
BT B Wuhan Phoenix City 5,530 827
BT R LN Wuhan Central Park 1,185,582 110,270
il 8 VAN Wuhan Subtotal 1,191,112 111,097
A BT B Hefei French Annecy 5,260 1,049
GIEEAE R Hefei Park Lane Manor 1,168,361 171,904
B HE Hb [ /N Hefei Subtotal 1,173,621 172,953

"B AR
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Project Name

AR AR
Turnover Area Booked
W 000 RRES

HK$’000 Sqm

AR VALSS Hangzhou MIXc Residence 3,333,320 115,098
4 55 A T8 IR A [ Wuxi Taihu International Community 1,281,413 148,273
o3 SR Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley 1,126,856 37,461
KR TR Dalian Oriental Xanadu 2,382,194 85,875
KA g ] Dalian Maritime 1,925,099 221,455
KA Hb /s Dalian Subtotal 4,307,293 307,330
BRI TP Suzhou Villa 622,469 15,321
R BRI Changsha Phoenix City 517,797 118,426
HE IR Chongqing Twenty-Four City 813,591 153,116
G Total 22,586,519 1,790,678

TR ——AERIAR > AL A TE H B R
FE W B BT > TSI 1 i B A -
HEF-—=ZA_"+=H 0FHH
E ARV NRKES0.541 00 - S4B RE45.25
HOF oK s Rl AR R R
72.5%FN147.3 % o iR & —F K AT
JEC B ARERENELTARK 21037
Bt REF——FE=A=+=H » K%
B AR 2600918 0 B BB S LA
FRE ZF——E R DIMB A B B A5 5 -
o DHHER ZF - —FRNEEE T T
PR RO E ANRB 192961870 - B A A
EH T —-—FNEEFEIT T TRENE
T o

Since the beginning of 2011, the Group maintains its momentum
in delivering stable and preferable performance in project sales. In
2011, up to 23 March, the Group has achieved contracted value of
RMBS5,054 million with a contracted GFA of 452,500 square meters,
representing year on year growth of 72.5% and 47.3% respectively. As
of 23 March 2011, the Group has achieved a total contracted value
of RMB26,091 million that are subject to recognition in 2011 and
years to come, including contracted value of RMB21,037 million in
property sales that was achieved before 2011 but not yet recognized.
Specifically, the Group has locked up a total revenue of RMB19,296
million from the residential property development for recognition
in 2011, thus laying down a solid foundation for promising financial
results of 2011.

T TR
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BEWEAT

Investment Property

Review of Investment Property Business in
2010

As of 31 December 2010, book value of the investment properties of
the Group totaled HK$21,953 million, which accounted for 17.5% of
the Group’s the total assets. In compliance with relevant accounting
policies, the Group had conducted an evaluation for its investment
properties, including projects under construction, and a revaluation
gain of HK$1,758 million (net off taxation and minority interests)
was booked during the year based on an appraisal performed by
an independent third party. In the year of 2010, the turnover of
investment property business including hotel business amounted to

HK$1,777 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 59.6%.

The following table sets out the turnover and average occupancy

rates of the key investment properties in the year of 2010:

B¥EH(BE¥000)

Turnover (HK$°000)

-2 H ALK (%)

Average Occupancy Rate (%)

ZERRE CETIE AMKOo) ZFFE ZFFNFE FHIHOo

2010 2009

yoy(%) 2010 2009 yoy(%)

JenTEER A Beijing China Resources
Building

b b [ At CR Land Beijing Others

LR Shanghai CR Times Square

TRYIFE TR Ly Shenzhen City Crossing

IR Hangzhou The MIXc

Fot tHAHUCA Other Rental Income

YIS Property Management

"B AR
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164,662 152,667 7.9% 98.1% 94.4% 3.7%
145,924 103,065 41.6% 95.8% 96.6% -0.8%
207,278 189,144 9.6% 99.1% 94.5% 4.6%
760,633 611,771 24.3% 97.1% 99.9% 2.8%
126,779 2,197 N/A 89.3% N/A N/A
371,304 10,117 N/A N/A N/A N/A
287,231 223,183 28.7% N/A N/A N/A
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A

Property Name

GYINE R O
Shenzhen City Crossing
BRI
The MIXc
TRYIFE R
CR Building
EERVATL)T
Grand Hyatt Hotel
(R
Car Park
RN By A JEL
Huarui Building
bR AR
Shanghai CR Times Square
2
Mall
Office
=Y
Car Park
S| A5E 2 PN/
Beijing CR Building
P B S
Xidan Cultural Centre
R R R
Grand Constellation Shopping Mall
(CEnliaE
U-space Mall

P AE3 i

City

el

Shenzhen

il
Shenzhen
ki
Shanghai

Jext
Beijing
A
Beijing
o
Beijing
Bl
Beijing

Details of the Group’s major investment properties in the PRC are

listed below:

AR A TR

F B EE B (%) CFI5K)
Interest
Attributable

to the Total GFA

Group (%) (Sqm)

100.0% 323,748
159,585

40,990

67,506

55,667

100.0% 13,789
100.0% 97,139
51,190

36,843

9,106

100.0% 65,222
96.3% 36,184
96.3% 16,787
96.3% 10,685

JRE A AT
L
(CFI5K)
Attributable

GFA
(Sqm)

323,748

159,585

40,990

67,506

55,667

13,789

97,139

51,190

30,843

9,106

65,222

34,845

16,166

10,290

i

Usage

Retail
Office
5
Hotel
ELY
Car Park
s

Hotel

Retail
Office
s
Car Park
Office
Retail
Retail

Retail

T TR
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B F

Property Name

AL

F5 B LAl (%)
Interest
Attributable
to the

City Group (%)

Fi eS8 T

AR v 1A A
CFEIik)

Total GFA
(Sqm)

WA AL T
T
CFJik)

Attributable
GFA

(Sqm)

Usage

U T S
Jing Tong Shops
AR P 2

Beijing Phoenix City Commercial Street

£ N |
Huawei Centre
£ PN
Huanan Building
TS 2254
Building 22, Guanyingyuan
Jin Hui Garden
35 RIAR $2 S5 409 AE
Building 49, Fortune Island,
Jade City
S5 AR INB2 1R 1 EAE
Building 1, Plot B2, Jade City
B HE SR T AR T
Block A, Phoenix Plaza, Office
BRI B AT L
Block A, Phoenix Plaza, Car Park
Hofte
Others
BN B G — 1]
Hangzhou The MIXc Ph.1
H R IR
The MIXc
(R
Car Park

"B
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=
Beijing
b5t
Beijing
Jext
Beijing
b
Beijing
b5
Beijing
Bl
Beijing
=
Beijing

96.3%

96.3%

48.2%

15.3%

96.3%

96.3%

96.3%

Jext
Beijing
dext
Beijing
==
Beijing
b5
Beijing
B
Hangzhou

96.3%

96.3%

96.3%

96.3%

60.0%

17,952

13,210

54,214

70,058

4,155

3,926

5,081

2,007

30,789

13,242

34,729

242,845

173,709

69,1360

17,288

12,721

26,104

10,722

4,001

3,781

5,471

1,933

29,650

12,752

33,444

145,707

104,225

41,482

Retail
Retail
Retail
Retail
Office
Retail

Retail

Retail
Oftfice
Y
Car Park

HoAth

Others

Retail
fFH
Car Park



WA AL T

AR AR T A THi A
LE XA PR AL S F# B L] (%) CFI7R) CFI7K) ik
Interest
Attributable Attributable
to the Total GFA GFA
Property Name City Group (%) (Sqm) (Sqm) Usage
1 e e e O
e T A A S SR HE 100.0% 41,926 41,926 T )
Hainan Wanning Shimei Bay Wanning Hotel
Le Meridien Hotel
IR 35 2R S P JHR 100.0% 42,032 42,032 FE HAh
Chengdu Jade City, Retail Chengdu Retail/Others
B I E P B 100.0% 9,922 9922 T HA
Wuhan Central Park, Retail Wuhan Retail/Others
ARG T T 1,150,242 958,652
Total GFA
Hep - TEYH 649,920 489,052
Comprising:  Retail
BT 177,770 176,486
Office
5 123,221 123,221
Hotel
HiAt 199,331 169,893
Others

T TR
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*  Not including Beijing Phoenix Plaza, Beijing Oak Bay Commercial
Property, Beijing China Resources Building Phase II, Shanghai
Bund Side Serviced Apartment, Shanghai Wuzbhong Road Project
Commercial Property, Chengdu Jade City Commercial Property,
Chengdu Twenty-Four City Commercial Property, Chengdu Oak
Bay Commercial Property, Mianyang Project Commercial Property,
Chengdu Donghu Project Commercial Property, Chengdu Jinsha
Project Commercial Property, Chengdu Ginkgo Park Commercial
Property, Chengdu Donglin Project Commercial Property, Hefei
Park Lane Manor Commercial Property, Hefei MIXc Project, The
MIXc Phase II in Hangzhou, Wuxi Taibu International Community
Commercial Property, Hotel in Dalian Oriental Xanadu, Dalian
Ganjingzi Huanan Project Commercial Property, Changsha Phoenix
City Commercial Property, Suzhou Xiangcheng Project Commercial
Property, Chongqing Twenty-Four City Commercial Property, The
MIXc in Shenyang, Shenyang CR Plaza, Qingdao Submarine School
Project Commercial Property, Anshan Education Bureau Project
Commercial Property, Zbhengzhou Minzhu Road Project, Changchun
Southern New District Project Commercial Property, Harbin Songbei
Project Commercial Property, Zibo Zbhangdian Central District Project
Commercial Property, Taizhou Zbhoushanbe Project Commercial
Property, Hainan Shimei Bay Project Commercial Property, all of
which are currently under construction involving a total gross floor

area of 4,213,098 square melers.

In the future, the Group plans to launch one or two investment
property projects each year. The stable and recurrent rental income
will offer the Group a greater operational resilience to defend
against risks of industry fluctuations while optimizing the Group’s

sustainable profitability.
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Review of Value-added Services in 2010

By fully utilizing the Group’s traditional advantages on decoration
business, the Group rolled out its “standardized and serialized
storage space total solution system”, which was developed after
careful study to understand customer needs and have those needs
being thoroughly considered and reflected in product R&D, design
and product realization. Based on the successful trials of the system
at Beijing Oak Bay and Eco Living projects, the Group standardized
and modularized the solution system, and implemented it in 17

cities, where it was well received by the market.

During the year, the Group extended its value-added service from
the storage space solution system to flexible/adjustable furniture. The
R&D efforts in flexible/adjustable furniture system was also positively
received and recognized by the market as well. Moreover, researches
on value-added services on public spaces for residential projects and
application of those services in various “City Crossing” projects have

also achieved preliminary results.

“F TR AR
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Land Bank

In 2010, the Group added 6.60 million square meters to its land bank
at an aggregated cost of RMB18,910 million (including HK$7,901
million paid for asset injection from China Resources (Holdings)
Company. As of 23 March 2011, the Group has acquired 3.12 million
square meters in 2011 at a total cost of RMB5,154 million, with newly
entered cities including Taizhou, Harbin, Hefei, Zibo and Dalian.
As of 23 March 2011, the total land bank of the Group amounted

to 26.66 million square meters in terms of GFA. Details are set out

below:
A S AR
CFIk)
Total GFA
Location (Sqm)

Bl
L
JHR
e
M
PN
RN
HE
{#
il
JEL
PNE i
A
[Eap il
#10
Gk
SR
il

"B AR
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Beijing* 1,356,023
Shanghai* 1,140,057
Chengdu 3,215,329
Wuhan 645,148
Hefei 1,728,759
Hangzhou* 504,237
Wuxi* 851,715
Ningbo* 456,008
Dalian* 1,755,763
Changsha 1,177,205
Suzhou 694,452
Chongqing 2,013,378
Shenyang* 2,236,277
Mianyang 719,673
Xiamen 305,439
Tianjin* 851,222
Fuzhou 469,724
Nantong 401,923
Anshan 586,400
Qingdao* 745,400
Zhengzhou 464,000
Yangzhou 200,260



R I

(FI5K)

Total GFA

Hh [ Location (Sqm)

./ ! |

JFELL Tangshan 463,450
%% Changchun 327,300
s Wanning 1,002,075
R Xuzhou 309,928
HE Nanchang 279,923
&N Taizhou 992,523
WA Harbin 198,250
T 1 Zibo 570,000
At Total 26,661,901

* o ZRAE [ L 5T KL 7 A TE H P B TE H
HI 7 25 100.0% > K 5E [ 15 6 57 4% 4 75 0
HYPE 75 7398.1% » AN ZE JF] {y 0 577 10 1 Tty - 24l
[ #796.3%2 HEms o RLEMNYG | g & i #45  H
HERSHG50.0% » ASHE Bl |- 5 4 1 TE I ik
1999.8% » 7525 [B] 5 - 747 4 i Al 1= s 1o 1
100.0%2 f#Eai o GE B 1500 ~ JEs5 il fiz +-
H 1T B FE 22 60.0% = 728 [E] 11 B2 )p% JE v T H
FE 7 11950.0% » 7552 [5] {7 % 30 Al fig Ay -l
1#100.09%.2 FE i o LE [ 1 K2 17 182 5
JH B 1975 4355.0% o ALEF G K HEIE B a
7#498.1% ° A5 [ 1/ & B I H FE 77 £$96.3% o
RIE NG i S B H 7 1951.0% ©

-l 4 A SR B S P M — 2
I T S - SIS R0 22 B T
S 3108 T GRFHE A B ~ L - R
B W R S A AT
it -

*  The Group’s interest is 100.0% in both Beijing Daxing Plot 17 project
and Beijing Mentougou project, 98.1% in Beijing Oak Bay Project
and 96.3% in all other projects in Beijing. The Group’s interest is
50.0% in Shanghai Wuzhong Road Project, 99.8% in Shanghai
Oak Bay Project and 100.0% in all other projects in Shanghai. In
addition, the Group’s interests in Hangzhou The MIXc project and
Wuxi projects are both 60.0%. The Group’s interest in Ningbo Beilun
Project is 50.0%, and the Group’s interest in all other projects in
Ningbo is 100.0%, while the Group’s interest in Dalian Oriental
Xanadu is 55.0%. The Group’s interests in Tianjin projects are 98.1%
and. its interest in Qingdao project is 96.3%. The Group also owns a
51.0% interests in Shenyang Changqing project.

Sufficient land bank laid a solid foundation for the Group’s steady
growth in the future. The Group’s geographic reach has been
extended from 22 to 31 cities (with the addition of Yangzhou,
Tangshan, Changchun, Wanning, Xuzhou, Nanchang, Taizhou,
Harbin and Zibo).

TAEFEFIR
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Looking forward, the Group will continue to acquire new land bank
according to its business development strategies while maintaining
prudent financial policies. Future land bank acquisition will be

funded by its internal resources together with external financing.

Share Placement, Borrowings and Debt
Ratio, Asset Mortgage, and Risk of Interest
Fluctuation

As of 31 December 2010, the Group had a total gross borrowing of
HK$37,807 million, cash and bank balance of HK$11,972 million,
while the Group’s net debt to equity ratio stood at 56.3%.

As of 31 December 2010, 36.1% and 63.9% of the Group’s
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and HK dollar
respectively. Among the total borrowings, approximately 22.6% of
the bank borrowings are repayable within one year while the rest
are long term borrowings. The Group has maintained its borrowing
cost at a relatively low level, the weighted average interest rate of its

bank borrowings as at 31 December 2010 was around 2.4% only.
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A H Pledged Project

Details of the Group’s assets being pledged as of 31 Dec 2010 are

listed below:

RHIRE 4 H M H
Total Facility
Quota  Starting Date Ending Date

(NR¥TIT)
(RMB'000)

b R Beijing CR Building 700,000 2008.12.22 2013.12.22
RS Shanghai CR Times Square 50,000 2009.08.25 2011.08.25
g R AR Shanghai CR Times Square 500,000 2009.08.31 2016.08.31
iR S Shanghai CR Times Square 450,000 2009.11.12 2011.11.12
VEYIEE K Shenzhen CR Building 400,000 2009.11.20 2014.01.20
BRIIE IR — A Shenzhen The MIXc Ph.1 2010.08.26 2021.08.25
GEYI B 5 35— Shenzhen The MIXc Ph.1 1,500,000 2010.10.25 2013.10.23
At Total 3,600,000

SR B B 3% 2 AT BT H ABCE W) ST H 2
TEH B A > FEER N R TR E B8 T
{6 A 3 AR 42 B T 5 IR DA 2 A A 2
2 .

1 B M 357 B SR
BEF-FET_A=1—H > FEH
A F I (A 4R A o R T T 11,2284 220K B
T (EIEE T Y LR AT « AL
4% B TR AR - TARKER TS T
EKFA P E B THIHM - 1eoh > W4
THRHES > HEB THRMNGEAESE
R o B B )~ ST SR 8] B R A 1
Je 3 B it 1 o

All of the Group’s residential and investment properties are located
in mainland China. We do not expect Renminbi appreciation, if any,

to have negative impact on the Group’s financial position.

Employee and Compensation Policy

As of 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 11,228 full
time staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong (including its property
management and agency subsidiaries). The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, experience and the
prevailing market wage level. In addition, performance bonuses are
granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include
provident fund, insurance, medical coverage, share option scheme,

and restricted share award scheme, etc.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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MR. WANG YIN, aged 54

was appointed Chairman of the Company in June 18 2009. He is
responsible for the overall business development and strategic
planning of the Group's business. He is also a Director and a Vice
President of China Resources (Holdings) Co. Ltd. and a Director of
China Resources National Corporation. Mr Wang is also a Director of
China Vanke Co., Ltd, which is a listed company in China. Mr. Wang
has a Bachelor of Economics degree from Shangdong University in
China and an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco in
the United States. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1984, and joined the Company in 2001.

MR. WU XIANGDONG, aged 43

was appointed Managing Director of the Company in June 2009. Mr.
Wu has a double Bachelor’s degree in Architectural Management
and Mechanics from Tsinghua University, China and an MBA degree
from the University of San Francisco in the United States. Mr. Wu
has experience in corporate management and commercial property
operation. Mr. Wu joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1993 and was the Vice General Manager of China
Resources Property Management Limited, and joined the Company
in 2005.

MR. YAN BIAO, aged 49

was appointed Executive Director of the Company in August 1996
and was re-designated as Non-Executive Director in February 2006.
Mr. Yan is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and China Resources National Corporation and is the
Director of Legal Affairs of the China Resources Group. He is also a
Non-Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited. Mr.
Yan was appointed Supervisor of China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd on 10 November 2010. Mr. Yan has a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University, China and an
MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA. He joined
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.



AESCRSEA: - BUAEDY /U

R FFLFENHERAL AR R P
B o MO BT () A R A A
AN B IRAREL o AL ek R RFE AT
A SEA RN R - ERE A RA
A~ HEREARA A - HEEK A
PR A ~ PRSI BOA R A~ R
BTARARZ FRATES M LZERH =
WA AR A R #E R o AL ek W L
T s (IR0 A RS ) o 2 A A R e
(R E) AR Ao T AL o Aol 38
I 5 < L KB T A BB R o SRR
— WA AR (SR ) AR A ] -

TRREERE > BEL+ =K

A FT)NAFESHERAL AR R EBAT
o T HRIULFAIH KSR R - [
TR A PR 7] (600846) FE AR ~ (7]
PR R B b= - A TR
VR AR B R R
At 5 0 R R~ G A AR R (B
B - R R ERE MG TR - T
BB 19824F A i[RI PR B @ T
R A TARARHRSE » 19874F [ K52
BF 5% A2 S MR - 82057 > 19904F 48 T 52 f
LB

T HEAR IR TR LA HE )y T 4 RO
AT TAE > WIFE T5 18] 2 o e g A K 5
RS R o AR ACEE R L 100
B o BRI AR o ARAF MR &5
MEWTIT B TREBER A S 7E it

MR. DU WENMIN, aged 48

was appointed Non-Executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Du is currently a Vice President and Chief Human
Resources Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.
Mr. Du is also the Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company,
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Gas
Group Limited, and China Resources Microelectronics Limited. He is
also a Director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. Mr. Du has served as a Director of China Resources
Construction (Holdings) Limited, and an Audit Controller of China
Resources (Holdings) Limited. Mr. Du has an MBA degree from
the University of San Francisco, USA. He joined China Resources

(Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

PROF. DING JIEMIN, aged 53

was appointed Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2008. Prof. Ding is currently the Assistant to the President of Tongji
University, the Chairman of Shanghai Tongji Science & Technology
Industrial Co., Ltd. (600846), and the President of the Architectural
Design and Research Institute of Tongji University. Prof. Ding is also
a researcher in structural engineering, an adviser of doctoral students,
a China national class 1 registered structural engineer, a registered
consultant engineer (in investment), and a senior registered structural
engineer in British Royal Institution of Structural Engineers. Prof.
Ding Jiemin graduated from Dept. of Building Engineering in Tongji
University in 1982. He got his master’s degree and doctor’s degree

from Tongji University in 1987 and 1990.

Prof. Ding is engaged in the research and design in structural
engineering. His research direction is super-high and large-span
complex structural system. In recent years, he published more
than 100 professional articles, and designed dozens of different
kinds of buildings, well combining the structural research with the

engineering design.
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MR. WEI BIN, aged 41

was appointed as non executive director of the Company in October
2010. Mr. Wei is the Chief Financial Officer of CRH. He is also a
non executive director of China Resources Gas Group Limited,
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Microelectronics
Limited and China Resources Enterprise, Limited. Mr. Wei holds
a Bachelor’s degree of Auditing from Zhongnan University of
Finance and Economics and a Master’s degree of Finance from Jinan

University, he joined CRH in 2001.

MR. SHI SHANBO, aged 45

was appointed Director of the Group in October 2010. He is the
audit Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He
is also a Non-executive Director of China Resources Enterprises,
Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited and
China Resources Microelectronics Limited. He is also a Director
of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He worked as
a Deputy General Manager of the Financial Department of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and a General Manager of
China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Co., Ltd. He was the Chairman
of China Resources Jinhua Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from November 2006 to March 2010.
He was also the Vice Chairman and General Manager of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited which is listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He holds a Master’s degree in Economics
from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Shi joined

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1991.



WML » BUE =T

W F—FAE A R B AN\ FE AT
HE o Gl T BT T (FE ) A PR R R
W A 3L S ) HE S T o 3 R R AT HEE TR )
A PR A~ R E A BRA A 3
RAIZER R AR IERATES IR HAER
rh B RN B8 25 28 5 BT A B B T 2 #E =L
BERNARAFIZER - R _FEEILF
CHMAZERER A > SR L8 A%E
BN FIIRTS NAE > B 285 8N Fl &
NEIMERERSB N > AE LK
NESEE ~ A dE - FEHbE - JHEBSE
A SE PR AL R KR B 3R OF i - Ak
e HEEHEEWIEE o RIFLIRE R
7 JR [ R A B BT A 7 4 B TRk T
875 JR B P A BR s mD s B s gt =g fr b o
R R A AR A AT O B R R KR
Goizueta 5 22 [ L7 & FAH L2407 > AR
JA— UL\ AT A8 (25 T A 5 R B D 5 22
LB -

ERHA - BUFEARTRK

JA— UL AR IY H M 2 AT Sy AR 28 W 57 JF
PATHES o FIA RN L2 R E R
M A RN FER2ER > IMEEEN
Zw] s @A A BRA R - B SRR
R Al B A5 A PR ) AR AT BR 2
Rl B ATH R o ER A B
P B B [t LB B o

DR. ZHANG HAIPENG, aged 39

was appointed as non executive director of the Company in
October 2010. Dr. Zhang is the Deputy General Manager of Strategy
Management Department of CRH. He is also a Non-executive
Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited,
China Resources Microelectronics Limited and China Resources
Enterprise, Limited, and a Director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Prior to joining CRH in July 2009, Dr. Zhang worked with
McKinsey & Company for eight years and was a Partner of its Hong
Kong Branch, responsible for the strategic planning, merger and
acquisition, organizational control, operational management projects
for multi-national corporations and domestic companies covering
pharmaceutical, petroleum, shipping, real estate and consumer
industries. Dr. Zhang also worked at China Merchants Holdings
(International) Company Limited as Director of Internal Control and
Auditing. China Merchants Holdings (International) Company Limited
is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Zhang received
a Master's degree in Business and Administration from Goizueta
Business School, Emory University in the United States in 2000 and
Doctor of Medicine degree from Peking Union Medical College in
1998.

MR. WANG SHI, aged 60

was appointed Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in April 1997. Mr. Wang is also the Chairman of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Shenzhen, China. Mr.
Wang is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of SOHU.Com
Inc., Central China Real Estate Group Limited, Shanghai Metersbonwe
Fashion and Accessories Co., Ltd. and Modern Media Holdings
Limited. He has a Bachelor of Science degree from Lanzhou Railway

College in China.
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ANDREW Y. YAN, aged 53

was appointed Independent Non-Executive Director in July 2006.
He also serves as the Chairman of the Company's Remuneration
Committee. Independent Non-Executive Director since March
2007. He is currently the Managing Partner of SAIF Partners. Prior
to joining SAIF Partners, he was the Managing Director and Head of
Hong Kong office of Emerging Markets Partnership, responsible for
investment in Northeast Asia and Greater China from 1994 to 2001.
From 1993 to 1994, he worked at Sprint International Corporation
as the Director of Strategic Planning and Business Development
for the Asia Pacific Region. From 1990 to 1993, he worked in the
World Bank and the Hudson Institute as an Economist and Research
Fellow respectively in Washington, DC. From 1984 to 19806, he was a
Research Fellow at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring
of the State Council of China. From 1982 to 1984, he was the
Chief Engineer at the Jianghuai Airplane Corp.. Mr. Yan received a
bachelor's degree in engineering from Nanjing Aeronautic Institute in
1982. He studied in the Master Program in Department of Sociology
of Peking University from 1984 — 1986 and received a Master of Arts'
degree from Princeton University in International Political Economy
in 1989. Mr. Yan also studied MBA courses at the Wharton School of
Business from 1996 to 1997.

Currently, Mr. Yan is also an Independent Non-executive Director
of Fosun International Limited; Non-executive Director of Digital
China Holdings Limited, MOBI Development Co., Ltd., NVC Lighting
Holding Limited and China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited, all of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also an Independent Director of Giant Interactive Group Inc., (listed
on the New York Stock Exchange); Director of Acorn International
Inc. (listed on the New York Stock Exchange), ATA Inc. (listed on
Nasdaq); Global Education & Technology Group Limited (listed on
Nasdaq) and Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (listed
on the Small and Medium Enterprise Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange).
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MR. HO HIN NGAI, BOSCO, aged 66

was appointed Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in September 2005. Mr. Ho is a graduate from the Department of
Architecture of University of Hong Kong. He worked in several
renowned architectural practices in UK and HK before founding
Ho & Partners Architects Engineers and Development Consultants
Limited in 1980. He is Authorized Person (Architect) Hong Kong,
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and of Royal Institute
of British Architects. The projects he designed can be found in

Mainland China, Hong Kong, India, South-East Asia and Middle East.

MR. WAN KAM TO, PETER, aged 58

was appointed Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in March 2009. Mr. Wan has been a practicing accountant in Hong
Kong for over 30 years and has extensive experience in auditing,
finance, advisory and management. He was a former partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and China firm. Mr Wan is
currently an Independent Director of Mindray Medical International
Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, USA),
and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ),
and the Chairman of their Audit Committees. Mr Wan is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of The Fairwood Holdings
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited) and the Chairman of its Audit Committee. He is a Fellow of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants and the Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants.
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MR. FREDERICK MA SI HANG, GBS, Jp, aged 59

was appointed Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in March 2010. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Hong Kong
in 1973 with a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in economics and
history. Mr Ma has held senior management positions in international
financial institutions and Hong Kong publicly listed companies in
his career. In July 2002, he left the private sector and joined the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as
the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury and assumed
the post of Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development in
July 2007. He resigned from the Government in July 2008 due to
medical reasons. In October 2008, he was appointed as an Honorary
Professor of the School of Economics and Finance at the University
of Hong Kong. In July 2009, he was appointed as a Member of the
Intenational Advisory Council of China Investment Corporation. In
July 2010, he was appointed as a Director of Husky Energy Inc. In
March 2011, he was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited At
present, he is the Chairman and a non-executive director of China

Strategic Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company.

MR. CHEN YING, aged 40

is a Senior Vice President of the Company and the General Manager
of Beijing Region. Mr. Chen has a Bachelor’s degree in Architectural
Management from Tsinghua University, China and an MBA degree
from the University of Oxford. Mr. Chen is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. He has experience in
property management and corporate management. Mr. Chen joined
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1993, and has
worked for China Resources Construction (Holdings) Co., Ltd, and

joined the Company in 2002.
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MR. TANG YONG, aged 39

is a Senior Vice President of the Company and the General Manager
of Chengdu Region. Mr. Tang has a Bachelor's degree of Engineering
in Industrial and Electrical Automation from Tongji Universtity, China
and an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco in the
United States. Mr. Tang has experience in property management and
corporate management. Mr. Tang joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1993, and had worked for China Resources

Property Management Limited, and joined the Company in 2002.

MR. WANG HONG KUN, aged 43

was appointed Senior Vice President of the company in January
2011, he is also the General Manager of China Resources Land
Hainan Province. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Chemical engineering
degree and a Master degree in biochemical industry, both from
Tianjin University. Mr. Wang joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1993 and was the Deputy General Manager of
Enterprise Development Dept, and also was Vice President of China
Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd, and also was the director of CRC
Development & Investment Company Limited, with comprehensive
experiences in the management of multi-industries as well as

investment management.

MR. WANG GUOHUA, aged 47

is the CFO of the Company. Mr. Wang received his Bachelor's degree
in Inorganic Refractory Materials Engineering from Wuhan Polytech
University and then Master of Science degree in International
Banking and Finance from Heriott-Watt University in Edinburgh,
the UK, as a recipient of Senior Scholarship of British Foreign
Office and the only winner of the Professorial Prize of the Business
School of Heriott-Watt University in his academic year. He joined
the company in 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Wang had worked for over
10 years in Edinburgh, London and Hong Kong respectively with
several renowned international investment banks in areas of fund

management, equity research and corporate finance.
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Construction Quality, Environmental
Protection, Energy Conservation and
Emission Control

As a comprehensive real estate company, CR Land has always
persisted in high standards of construction quality, and strictly
controlled quality in every aspect of production development.
While continuing building up on the principle of “the high quality
of engineering standard”, the Group won the China Construction

Engineering Luban Prize (National Prime-quality Projects).

The Group considers environmental protection a vital part of
corporate social responsibility. Environmentally-conscious ideas are
integrated into the different aspects of product development such
as planning and designing, usage of construction materials, the
design of landscape and forestation, and property management. As
the result of the application of environmental friendly construction
materials, the Group creates a comfortable and pleasant ecological
environment in the community by improving temperature, light,
noise and other sectors of environmental systems. We also
emphasizes on landscape and forestation in its property planning,
employs delicate designing ideas to public space, and endeavors to
create indoor and outdoor environment that are equally comfortable

and exquisite.
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Eight Major Environmental Friendly & Energy-Conserving Systems
being applied in Eco Living Project in Beijing

L A ZE[ Iy — I R BRR 5 )
The Company participated in “The Earth One Hour” Environmental
Protection activity

In the future, as a response to the nation’s call for a resource-
conserving, environmental friendly society, the Group is planning
a strategic cooperation with Tongji University in the application of
green architecture. By continuing expanding the usage of green/low-
carbon technologies in our projects, the Group strives to mitigate the
environmental impacts from real estate development and gradually

realize the Group’s idea of “Green Residence”.
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Shanghai Oak Bay project incorporated 28 ecological technologies
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“China Construction Engineering Luban Prize” Shenzhen City Crossing Phase IT
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Social Philanthropy

The Group promotes the idea of contributing to society and has
hosted various community activities at our residential projects. Apart
from this, the Group participated in the “Hope Village” project in
Yongle County, Youjiang District, Baise City, Guangxi Province.
The “Hope Village” project is the charity project sponsored by
our majority shareholder China Resources (Holdings) Company
(“CRH”) and is participated by all subsidiaries of the CRH and other
interested parties. The Group leveraged its expertise in real estate
development and helped to build public facilities such as school,
hospital, community with new concepts, playground, roads and
etc for the sponsored community. The project has so far helped to
alleviate poverty of and to improve living conditions for about three

hundred farmer families.

Recently, in coordination with the CRH, the Group has entered the
phrase of planning and construction for the newly added “Hope
Villages” located in Hainan Wanning, Hebei Xibaipo, and Hunan

Shaoshan.

T BRI R Bt
“Hope Village” School
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Staff Training and Development

The competition of modern business boils down to the human
resources management. To maintain a solid foundation and
sustainable growth in the constantly changing business environment,
it mostly depends on whether the company could establish an
effective system of staff training and development to identify,
train and develop talents. While planning to maintain an average
yoy growth rate of 25%-30% for the next five years, the Group
understands the fact that human resource is one of the critical factors

that could drive a business’ development.

Under the guidance of our HR principle of “respecting staff value,
discovering staff potential, sublimating staff mind”, the Group has
established staff capability assessment model for key personnel of
various levels, continued optimizing the assessment tools and formed
internal assessment team, in order to effectively identify personnel

with promising potentials.

For talents with promising potentials, the Group’s top management
training plan and middle management training program help them
to sum up the gains and losses of their working experiences and
improve the management capacity of their leaderships through
face-to-face trainings, cases studies, projects sharing, role rotations,

practices coaching and more.

Other than satisfying company’s demands for management
professionals, the Group has also tried to sustain a solid HR
foundation and establish a complete system of talents pool through
“New Employee Orientation” — a two-months training camp for
our newly recruited graduates every year. In the camp, new recruits
will be educated on company cultures, management processes, and

position requirements.
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The Company recognises the importance of maintaining high
standards of corporate governance to the long-term stable
development of the Group. The Company has adopted the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in the Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
complied with all the Code Provisions therein throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010, with the exception of deviation from Code
Provisions A4.1. A review of the Company’s corporate governance in

2010 is set out as follows:

A.1The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
issuer and for the overall enhancement of the issuer’s business
towards success. The Board should make objective decisions

to the interests for the issuer.

o As at 31 December 2010, the Board of the Company
comprised 13 directors, including 2 executive directors, 6
non-executive directors and 5 independent non-executive
directors. Members of the Board are not related to each
other and the Chairman is not related to the members
of the Board, including financial, business, family or
other significant relationship. In accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received confirmation from each of the independent non-

executive directors confirming their independence.
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. The Board meets at least four times a year, to review the
financial performance of the Company, any major agenda
and other matters requiring decision of the Board.
Four meetings were held by the Board in 2010. The

attendance of directors in meetings is detailed as follows:

Hh R U

Name of Director Attendance

HiTEF
£ EN(FERE)
S [ 3R

HAITEF
R
FEICR
T‘?%’E

G (
AEH(
AR IR (
B AEGiR20104E10 H 15 H BHE)
ZEAEAE (R 20104E10 H 15 H BHE)
BTN (A2010%1 H 20 H BHE)
WL I ITEH

T i

Al F%

FERTH

FEIRE=E (4201043 H 8 H #ZAT)

Jir A HE 2 AT A N R AL E Y
BRAMRE > WAREFTRET
FREIESY

A20105:10 A 15 H #ERAT)
782010410 A 15 H #ZAT)
JA2010510 H 15 HIERAT)

Executive Director
Wang Yin (Chairman) 2/4
Wu Xiangdong 2/4

Non-executive Director

Yan Biao 4/4
Du Wenmin 4/4
Ding Jiemin 1/4
Wei Bin (appointed on 15 October 2010) 1/1
Shi Shanbo (appointed on 15 October 2010) 1/1
Zhang Haipeng (appointed on 15 October 2010) 1/1
Jiang Wei (resigned on 15 October 2010) 0/3
Li Fuzuo (resigned on 15 October 2010) 1/3
Liu Yan Jie (resigned on 20 January 2010) 0/0

Independent Non-executive Director

Wang Shi 1/4
Andrew Y. Yan 3/4
Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 3/4
Wan Kam To, Peter 4/4
Frederick Ma Si Hang (appointed on
8 March 2010) 3/4
. All directors have access to advice and services of the

Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that

Board procedures are complied with;
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. Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are kept by a designated secretary and are available for
the inspection of directors upon notice of a reasonable

period;

. The Board has established a policy for directors to
seek professional advice, whereby directors may seek
independent professional advice after appropriate

procedures at the Company’s expense;

. If a substantial shareholder or director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, such
matter shall not be considered by means of document
circulation. Independent non-executive directors who
have no significant interests in the transaction shall

attend the relevant Board meeting.

Deviation: None

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Issuer should separate its operating management into two
major aspects: management of the Board and day-to-day
management of the issuers’ business. On the Board level, the
two aspects must be clearly distinguished to ensure a balance

allocation of power and authority.

The posts of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are held separately by Mr. Wang Yin and Mr. Wu Xiangdong
respectively. The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the
Managing Director ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the Managing
Director’s responsibility to manage the Company’s day to day

business.

Deviation: None
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A.3 Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the issuer,
and should ensure that any change in composition shall
not cause any undue disruption. The Board should have a
balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) to ensure
the adequate independence of the board so that independent
judgment can effectively be exercised. There should be a
sufficient number of non-executive directors with appropriate

skills to reach influential advice.

. Members of the Board and their biographical details are
set out on pages 40 to 46. All corporate correspondence
which sets out names of directors clearly state the
identity of each director, including executive director,
non-executive director and independent non-executive

directors.

Deviation: None

A.4 Appointments, Re-election and Removal

The Board should formulate formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment of new directors, and establish
orderly plans for the succession of directors. All directors
should be re-elected regularly and issuer should state reasons

for any resignation or removal of directors.

. The Board has set up a Nomination Committee with
specific written terms of reference. It duties included

those required under Code Provision A.4.5(a) to (d).
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. As at 31 December 2010, Members of Nomination
Committee include four independent non-executive
directors namely Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, Mr. Andrew
Y. Yan, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Mr. Frederick Ma Si Hang and
Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman). The duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendation
after such review and to assess the suitability and
qualification of any proposed director candidate. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are
then put forward for consideration and adoption, when

appropriate, by the Board.

. During the year under review, the nomination committee
recommended the Board to appoint Mr. Shi Shanbo,
Mr. Wei Bin and Dr. Zhang Haipeng as non-executive
directors of the Company. The nomination committee
had considered the qualifications and experiences of
each candidate before making decision. Decision was
made by way of circulation of written resolutions. No
meeting was held by the nomination committee during

the year.

. The experience and views of independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard. The Company has
appointed 5 independent non-executive directors,
exceeding the minimum requirements under the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors. The detailed

biographies are set out on pages 43 to 460.

Deviation: Except independent non-executive director Mr.
Andrew Y. Yan has been appointed for fixed term of three
years, all directors of the Company (including executive and
non-executive directors) are not appointed for a fixed period,
but the articles of the Company stipulate that every director
(including executive and non-executive directors) retires
and be re-elected at least once every three years. Therefore,
the Company has adopted adequate measures to ensure the
corporate governance of the Company complies with the same

level to that required under the Code.
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skillful manner.

. Every newly appointed director shall receive
a comprehensive and formal induction on the
responsibilities of directors and to ensure that the

directors understand their duties;

. Non-executive directors of the Company are equipped
with adequate experience and skills to fully participate
in the Board to perform the functions under Code

Provisions A.5.2(a) to (d);

. Every director shall acknowledge that sufficient time

should be contributed to the affairs of the Companys;

. The Company has adopted the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (“Model
Code”) as the code of best practices for the securities
transactions by directors of the Company. After specific
enquiries by the Company, all directors confirm that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
under review. The Company has also formulated a code
of conduct for the securities transactions by relevant
officers to govern the securities transactions of officers
who come into contact with price-sensitive information

due to their office.

Deviation: None
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A.6 Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information so as to enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and

responsibilities as a director.
. Documents of meetings are generally sent to members
of the Board or Board Committees three days before the

meetings of the Board or Board Committee.

Deviation: None

B.1 Remuneration of Directors and Senior

Management

Issuer shall establish a formal and transparent procedure
for setting policies for fixing the remuneration packages of
directors. No director shall be involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

. The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference. Its duties include

those required under Code Provisions B.1.3(a) to (f).

. As at 31 December 2010, a majority of the members
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company are
independent non-executive directors. Mr. Andrew Y. Yan
is the Chairman and other members include Mr. Ho Hin
Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, Mr. Frederick Ma Si
Hang and Mr. Wang Yin.
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Attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at

meetings held in 2010 is detailed as follows:

kR

Name of Director Attendance

+ Ep
TR
T
B %
R

[T RAAEBE A - B2 B E AR TR
F1% RS R T A o T o e AR B
N EHYHH o

i e 0 - e

C.1 MR
AR - I MM AL BT A
KB AR o

- BEHAREBEAL M RE
f A > Bl BE S ELE AN St
W 2 W) Y AR IR DL K B S
ARYL o 2 A il 1k — % — F 4
T A=+ — H 8RB R
R - A% w9 23R T IE E R
TRE NG R EOR - R T
TR BHLY 1 B B A R SRR T
FREAEE IR E

s MR —FF > FFEALHE
1,600,000%5 7€ > 3f 4 IE 2 51 HH
BRGS 2

Wang Yin 0/1
Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 1/1
Wan Kam To, Peter 1/1
Andrew Y. Yan 1/1
Frederick Ma Si Hang 0/1

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the incentive mechanism of the Company and
approved remuneration of members of the board and senior

management.
Deviation: None.

C.1 Financial Reporting
The Board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the issuer’s performance, state

of affairs and prospects.

. The directors are responsible for the supervision of the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company,
to ensure that the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the operating and financial status of the
Company. In the preparation of the financial statements as
at 31 December 2010, the directors of the Company have
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies
and have made cautious and reasonable judgments and
estimates based on the principle of going concern;

. In 2010, audit fees were approximately HK$1,600,000

and there was no fees for non-audit related services;
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. The statement of responsibilities expressed by the auditor
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 95.

Deviation: None

C.2 Internal Controls

The Board should maintain a sound and effective internal
controls system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and
the issuer’s assets.

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the
Company and conduct regular review on the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company. During the year
under review, the Board believes the current internal control
system has been further improved and is sound and effective
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets.

Deviation: None

C.3 Audit Committee

. As at 31 December 2010, all members of the Audit
Committee of the Company are independent non-
executive directors, including Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter
(Chairman), Mr. Wang Shi, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, Mr.
Andrew Y. Yan and Mr. Frederick Ma Si Hang, while Mr.
Wan Kam To, Peter holds accounting-related professional

qualifications;

. Current terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the
Company include the duties set out in Code Provisions

C.3.3(a) to (n);

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held five
meetings to review the financial statements of the Company
and discussed with the external auditor the impacts of
the changes in accounting policies on the Company, the
application of accounting standards and of the Listing Rules
etc. and made recommendations thereof, as well as advising
the management on the enhancement of the level of corporate

governance of the Company on an on-going basis;
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Five meetings were held by the Audit Committee in 2010.

Attendance of members of the Audit Committee at meetings is

detailed as follows:

TR

Name of Director Attendance

T
t A
(E B
Bk

T

- HRZEEgRTHBEEN
FRAE > MR IEPT A HEH G

E o
e -

D.1% #izhRE
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o 9 S o

o HESEE T AR AT AES
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PRI o A B E A B HEL
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Wan Kam To, Peter 5/5
Wang Shi 4/5
Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 1/5
Andrew Y. Yan 1/5
Frederick Ma Si Hang 5/5

Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are kept
by a designated secretary and sent to all members of the
Board.

Deviation: None

D.1Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters reserved

to the board for its decision and should give clear directions to

management as to the matters that must be approved by the
Board.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategies,
objectives and business plans for the Company, and to
supervise and control the implementation of strategies
of the Company and its operations and financial
performance, and formulation of appropriate risk control
policies and procedures to ensure the achievement of the
Company’s strategic objectives. In addition, the Board
is also responsible for maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance of Company.

The Board delegates the duties of the implementation of
strategies and the decision-making of daily operations
to the Managing Director. The Management regularly
meets to review the strategic goals, corporate structure,
operating procedures, budget implementation, major

global charge and business plans of the Company.

Deviation: None
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E.1 Effective Communication

The Board should endeavor to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and in particular, use annual general

meetings to communicate with shareholders.

. The Company enhances the communication with
Shareholders by means of publication of interim and
annual results report and press release and timely
publication of information on the website of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

. The Chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting. All general meetings where approvals
for connected transactions were being sought for had
been attended by the chairman of the independent board

committee (if any) to address queries from shareholders.

. The Company also promotes the communication
with shareholders through various investor relation
activities to provide shareholders with more channels to
understand the strategies and the latest development of

the Company.

During the year under review, the Company participated in
road shows in Hong Kong, Singapore, Middle East, Japan
and Europe organized by various investment banks, covering
issues on the results announcement and significant acquisitions
and presented to the investors operating results, development

strategies and latest business updates of the Company.

At the same time, the Company participated in various
investment conferences held in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen,
Qingdao, Macau, Hong Kong, Singapore, etc., and frequently
met on an one-on-one basis with fund managers and investors
in Hong Kong and overseas, as well as arranged on-site visits
to the Company’s properties to actively create opportunities
for communication with the investors, so as to enable them

to timely understand the latest business development of
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the Company and the industry environment of the real

estate business of China to enhance their understanding

WM FEREE BRI ¢ and confidence to the Company. The following is the major
investor relations activities of the Company performed in 2010:
Ay
Month EH Activities
! /' |
= IS 20094F-4F i 2 45 Announcement of the 2009 annual results
March = 7 R s A e * Press conference
* BRI 43T B R g * Briefing with analysts and fund managers
R~ H ARSI Post Results Roadshow in middle east and Japan
7 H BUs AN~ BN SEA R Post Results Roadshow in HK, Singapore,
April and Europe
L H JEE AR 3 ML R s B W Morgan Stanley HK Summit
May 55 /N i SR PR The 8th BOCI Investors Conference
BN RE J520104F i B 15 & 5 w1 CLSA China Forum 2010
FH SR ] A s Ak Shenyin Wanguo Securities HK Investment Conference
NH Nomura Asia Equity Forum Nomura Asia Equity Forum
June JEE AR 3 201 04F H B0 £ ik J.P. Morgan China Conference 2010
it A5 820104 1 B 4% & &k Credit Suisse China Investment Conference 2010
FREMEUE B EEE) H BofA Merrill Lynch HK/China Property Day
PRME T 2 FARAT P E ok RBS China Access conferences
+H AL 3 AR N AR Bh DBS Vickers Pulse of Asia Conference
July H A S S E) H CLSA Property Access Day
R RRITIREE TR Deutsche Bank Investor Luncheon
J\H 201047 HHASE 4 Announcement of the 2010 interim results
August * S [ A A g * Press conference
* FRB RN 3T B R R e * Briefing with analysts and fund managers
WS BN SE AR Post Results Roadshow in HK and Singapore
JLA TSR R 520104 F itk v I 3t 2 1 ) H UBS Hong Kong/China Property Day 2010
September B ERE 17 EEiwiE 17th CLSA Investors’ Forum
U BTN (B A AT ) Roadshow in HK and Singapore for
Asset Injection
+H (ETEERAT20104F o [ £ & ik CITI Greater China Investor Conference 2010
October
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Activities

+—H R HE 201 04F B UG AT Bk Goldman Sachs and Gao Hua China Investment Frontier
November Conference 2010
FEER I [ 4 Bank of America Merrill Lynch China Investment
Summit
B EEHEE B E B H CLSA Hong Kong/China Property Access Day
+=A BTSSR A REE H Standard Chartered Equities REAL ESTATE Corporate
December Access Days
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Roadshow in HK for Intra-Group Funding Arrangement
CCT
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Looking ahead, we will continue to improve and perfect the
communication with investors and to provide them with more
opportunities to understand the business of the Company as
well as to enable the management of the Company to have
a better understanding of the requirements of the market on
the Company, with an aim to continue to enhance the internal

management, profitability and governance of the Company.

Deviation: None

E.2 Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with

the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
At the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2010, the
Chairman of the meeting had explained to the shareholders the

detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

Deviation: None
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The directors have pleasure in submitting to shareholders their report
and audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on
page 185 to 203.

The segment information of the Group is set out in note 7 to the

financial statements.

Group Profit
The consolidated income statement set out on page 97 shows the

Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Dividends

The Board of Directors recommend the declaration of a final
dividend of HK21.5 cents (2009: HK18.3 cents) per share, together
with the interim dividend of HK9.5 cents per share, dividends per
share for the year amounting to HK31.0 cents. The final dividend is
payable on 5 July 2011 to shareholders whose names appear on the

Register of Members of the Company on 1 June 2011.

Property, Plan and Equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Properties
Schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages
3 to 19.

Share Capital
Movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 35 to

the financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves at the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the
share premium and retained profits. Under the Companies Law
(Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2010
amounted to HK$32,331,326,000 (2009: HK$26,805,370,000).

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and at the date of this

report are:

Chairman

Mr. Wang Yin

Managing Director

Mr. Wu Xiangdong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yan Biao

Mr. Du Wenmin

Mr. Ding Jiemin

Mr. Wei Bin (Appointed on 15 October 2010)
Mr. Shi Shanbo (Appointed on 15 October 2010)

Dr. Zhang Haipeng (Appointed on 15 October 2010)

Mr. Jiang Wei (Resigned on 15 October 2010)
Mr. Li Fuzuo (Resigned on 15 Oct 2010)

Mr. Liu Yan Jie (Resigned on 20 January 2010)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Shi

Mr. Andrew Y. Yan

Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco

Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter

Mr. Frederick Ma Si Hang (Appointed on 8 March 2010)

According to Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Wang Yin, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr. Ding Jiemin, Mr. Shi
Shanbo, Mr. Wei Bin, Dr. Zhang Haipeng, Mr. Andrew Y. Yan and
Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco shall retire and are eligible for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from all the independent non-executive directors, and considers that
all the independent non-executive directors are independent of the

Company.

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set

out on pages 40 to 47.

Share Option Scheme
The Company operates share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the

objective of the Company by the participants.
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The Scheme was approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31
January 2012. The Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible participants including employees, executive or
non-executive directors of the Group (or any proposed candidates),
any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any
employee, executive or non-executive director of the Group, any
executive or employee (or any proposed candidates) of consultants,
professionals and other advisors to the Group, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company, associated companies of
the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial
shareholders of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholders. The maximum entitlement of each participant
(including options to be granted to the directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholders or any of their respective associates) is equal
to the maximum limit permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules.
The exercise prices of the share options are determined pursuant to

the provision of prevailing Listing Rules.
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At the annual general meeting held on 23 May 2006, shareholders
approved the ordinary resolution to refresh the mandate limit of the
Scheme, whereby further share options can be granted to subscribe

up to 313,138,369 shares.

As at the date of this report, the number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 325,120,869 shares and represents 6.03% of the

issued share capital of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer upon the payment

of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options granted under the Scheme are exercisable for a period
of ten years from the date of grant. Certain share options are fully
vested or exercisable within ten years from the date of grant while

part of them are vested within four years after the date of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no other share options has been granted,
exercised, lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
during the year in relation to each of the directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates

and employees of substantial shareholders.
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() #HE (a) Directors

s

W E—-EEF+_HA=+—H > N5 As at 31 December 2010, the following directors had interests
R R R ] SRRy 2 in respect of options to subscribe for shares under the Scheme:

fid

ARAT L EHE
bickiv
TR bt o Price of Company’s share
Number of share option (HK$)
20104 20104
IR RAREE RAREE O RREE O RMEEN 121310 Sk CATfE
24 &t RIGAM R WA i (i fidii Ko MARTE RBAIE RbE
Option Option
outstanding Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Expired outstanding
Date of  Exercise at during during during during at Option Option
Name Capacity grant price  1/1/2010 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2010 granted  exercised

R g2 U 1/6/2005 123 250,000 - = - - 250,000 - =
Du Wenmin  Beneficial Owner

Mt - Notes:

1. JROEAREBCE 180y BAREDS Bz AR A 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying
AR B By o shares in the Company covered by the share options.

2. TR AT B 103 S RE JT 4B 2 A ) M 2. The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the options
BrEAS - B oS RO BREA T (8 H T — exercised during the year is the weighted average of the
R 3E 55 H Aoy i T 28 BT T i i i A8 22 closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately
TR 8 - before the date of exercise of options.

EEREEH
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AN AL w A H R B CR e
) N T 2 B A I R

AR

O R (FEIFEH)

FHAH Ttk
Exercise
Date of Grant price

7/10/2002 0.96

28/4/2004 104

29/4/2005 142

3/1/2006 3.225

17/2/2006 3.965

26/6/2006 3.58
Wit -

Lo Oy BIHES 8 O I RE &

LA AR B A

2. BRCAT O M A S R P 2 A
N EIAR BN - T 25 B ST
T8 H AT — 852 5 H BB IR
gt 2 Je B s T 2 R 2

o

20104
1H1H
HARSTHE
Option

outstanding

at
1/1/2010

650,000
1,465,000
2,137,500

10,535,000
1,000,000
1,850,000

(b)

TRARAEJE
i
Granted

during the
year

Employees and other participants

Details of share options granted to the employees (other than

directors) of the Group and other participants by the Company

are set out below:

(i)  Employees (Other than directors)

igpithi4
Number of share option
RAGEE  RAEE
il it
Exercised  Cancelled
during the  during the
year year

100,000 = = 550,000 - 16.09
512,500 = = 952,500 - 1456
337,500 - - 1,800,000 - 1521
5,885,000 - — 4,650,000 - 1592
625,000 - = 375,000 - 14.30
500,000 - - 1,350,000 - 16.62
Notes:
1. Number of share options refers to the number of

underlying shares in the Company covered by the

20104

RASEE 12310
R¥C MAME
Option

Expired outstanding
during the at

year 31/12/2010

share options.

2. The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the
options exercised during the year is the weighted
average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock
Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of

options.

AR sk
ki
Price of Company’s share

(HK$)

B
ety e

oA
ety e

Option
granted

Option
exercised
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20104
1A1H

it ffefts  FORATHE

Option
outstanding
Exercise at

Date of Grant price 1/1/2010

RARAEE
i

Granted
during the
year

(ii)  Other participants

4/3/2002 1.59 1,700,000
1/6/2005 1.23 2,025,000%

Wi -

"B
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BLAE R AT LR AT E
HE ) o

Je A3 S RE SO 45 L 3 ST HEE 9 B
ARG A B A

AT 8 P A7 U M o 4 6 2 AR
R AR E RS o 2 B I
AT F U — A8 52 55 B B AR
g 52 T P S A T {2 T~ £
B o

AR BB BT
ki
JRedy Bt H @ Price of Company’s share
Number of share option (HK$)
20104
RAME  RAREE RAREE 12310 e B
fiti iz KR WA RO RO
Option
Exercised  Cancelled Expired outstanding
during the  during the  during the at Option Option
year year year 31/12/2010 granted  exercised
780,000 - - 920,000 - 15.79
250,000 - - 1,775,000 - 16.42

* Including renumbering due to the resignation and
appointment of the directors.

Notes:

1. Number of share options refers to the number of
underlying shares in the Company covered by the
share options.

2. The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the

options exercised during the year is the weighted
average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock
Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of

options.
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BEAHRESE -

w4 LSzl
long position/
Name short position

Directors Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which the
directors and chief executive of the Company are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required
to be recorded in the register maintained pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company:
il A B g
Bt ¥ H BArBHE B4 A
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage
shares shares'”  Capacity of interest®

T E LS
Wang Yin long position
ESEES e
Wu Xiangdong long position
R L3521
Yan Biao long position
AESCR e
Du Wenmin long position
A& e
Shi Shanbo long position
Bt

(D 8 BT e R R 8 | — i Rf i O
EhBE A A e 5 B AR 2 RIA R P 3
%A B A T T JF b T AT A
WY BEARTAE T,

@ BT B A BB
s Lt s Y R
i/ ] 2 BB A P A -

Hafrf A
Beneficial owner
Hafrf A
Beneficial owner
Hafrf A
Beneficial owner
Hafrf A
Beneficial owner
Hafrf A

Beneficial owner

3,930,000 - 0.073

1,629,000 = 0.030

1,992,000 = 0.037

790,000 250,000 0.019

140,000 = 0.030

Notes:

(1) This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by
share options granted as detailed above under the section
headed "share Option Scheme”, such options being unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives.

(2) This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
to the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2010.
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i LSz el

long position/

Name short position

(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

China Resources Enterprise Limited (“CRE”), an associated

corporation of the Company:

Bepr 8 MBI EH O e R o e

Number of Approximate
Number underlying percentage of
of shares shares® interest®

B e L35
Yan Biao long position
SR e
Du Wenmin long position

(D FERPEIER A SEN B W RERH &1 | 4%
H B3 ST RE B 5 T e S 2 A R ik
> %S ey R g A O 1T LS
P AR AE T, -

) SRR T R SR A S 5 B B
Bty O — % —FF T A=t
F A 3 A S O 3R AT A S 1 )
A

TR AR
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Notes:

D

2

500,000 = 0.021

100,000 = 0.004

This refers to underlying shares of CRE, covered by share
option granted under the Share Option Scheme of CRE, such
option being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
positions in shares and underlying shares of CRE to the total
issued share capital of the CRE as at 31 December 2010.
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BIR 23w ([ =R SR ) (A 4 T8 D 25
A BRZA R ) B BT 40 B S R A A7
HEREA LT

w4 BB
long position/
Name short position

(¢) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas”, previously

known as China Resources Logic Limited ), an associated

corporation of the Company:

BprsH MBI EH O SRR E e

Number of Approximate
Number underlying percentage of
of shares shares™ interest®

Enpa T

Wu Xiangdong long position

HICR HE

Du Wenmin long position

fEH 3521

Shi Shanbo long position
Mt

(D AEREERAST B RT3 C
HH B3 SO B 5 T e S 0K SRR B
> % EF ey W HE R A 9 1T LLEE
WA IEARTE TR -

(2 AR R KRR AR
Mty SO —F — T4+ A =+—
1A 3 TR 5 2 B AT IR S B T 2
A

Notes:

Y]

(@)

45,000 = 0.002
54,000 = 0.003
50,000 = 0.003

This refers to underlying shares of CR Gas covered by
share option granted under the Share Option Scheme of CR
Gas, such option being unlisted physically settled equity

derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
positions in shares and underlying shares of CR Gas to the

total issued share capital of CR Gas as at 31 December 2010.
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(T) AR G B —2e B s (d) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

MRS 5] (FE 5 Jy) O 88173858 1% M A China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (“CR
BRI P A O FE LS Power”), an associated corporation of the Company:
w4 iD=y By H  FBRRAEE e AR E 4 e
Number of Approximate
long position/ Number underlying percentage of
Name short position of shares shares® interest®

* H L3521 427,560 - 0.009
Wang Yin long position
B e e - 570,080 0.012
Yan Biao long position
SR e 297,000 183,240 0.010
Du Wenmin long position
& 11 500,000 - 0.011
Shi Shanbo long position
Mt - Notes:
(D) TEREHEE [ R AR T (1) This refers to underlying shares of CR Power covered by
tL B A 1A HE T 95 K% e 7R ) A I I share options granted under the Share Option Scheme of CR
B > 5% R AREZ JE 1A I BT LAE Power, such option being unlisted physically settled equity
YRR e AT A T, o derivatives.
) ARIFE I K i e T R B AR B (2) This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
Ao —F—FE+ A =+— positions in shares and underlying shares of CR Power to the
A 423 55 ) O 3T IR AR B0 0 | 40 total issued share capital of the CR Power as at 31 December
= 2010.
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AR AR I B — R BOE T A IR
28] (GEEBMET) B #A7 HE@ BAH
I e 3 v AT O M i -

i LSz el

long position/

Name short position

(e) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying

shares of China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CR

Microelectronics”), an associated corporation of the Company:

Bepr 8 MBI EH O e R o e

Number of Approximate
Number underlying percentage of
of shares shares® interest®

' ' ____________________"_________________________________|
Sl R u

Wu Xiangdong long position

SR e

Du Wenmin long position
(D AR ME TR

2

I 1 P ST HE T 0 I 2 T 4 T A
Pty > 5% 5 FC A SRR T JF b Tl LA
YW BEARTETA -

50 A P 0 B SE R T R
B B0 MO —F —FAE+ A
= AR EERRCE T O 3T A AR
W

Notes:

D

2

1,215,000 - 0.014

1,458,000 - 0.017

This refers to underlying shares of CR Microelectronics
covered by share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme of CR Microelectronics, such option being unlisted

physically settled equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
positions in shares and underlying shares of CR
Microelectronics to the total issued share capital of the CR

Microelectronics as at 31 December 2010.
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(C)) AR F AR B —He B K R e (O Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

MRS 5] (FER K8 ) B 88173858 1% M A China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”), an
BRI P A O FE LS associated corporation of the Company:
w4 iD=y By H  FBRRAEE e AR E 4 e
Number of Approximate
long position/ Number underlying percentage of
Name short position of shares shares® interest®

fE 51 280,000 - 0.004
Shi Shanbo long position

Mt - Notes:

(1) FERE KV B RS #  E (1) This refers to underlying shares of CR Cement covered by
A5 3 RE T 9 S 2E B K UR A BE share options granted under the Share Option Scheme of CR
1y > SR HARE B IF BT DVE Cement, such option being unlisted physically settled equity
WA AT T A, derivatives.

(2)  FRUFTE T B vy HEE 7K e B 4 S AH B (2) This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
BB —F—FF+ —H=+— positions in shares and underlying shares of CR Cement
F Ak 3 TR K 8 38 AT IRAS S8 0 7 o3 to the total issued share capital of the CR Cement as at 31
I o December 2010.

TR AR
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at o %A I S RE RS B S IE T A S
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(FF) AR — AR ik B — == 3 °6 T B 40
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o gy

Name Capacity

Interests in Underlying Shares of
Associated Corporations

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in options
to subscribe shares granted under the share option schemes of
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), such

options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives:

(a) Options outstanding under the share option schemes of an

associated corporation, CR Power:

20104

AT 12/J31H

2t H iy W ARATRE
Option

Exercise Price

(HK$)

outstanding at

Date of grant 31/12/2010

e HmEa A
Yan Biao Beneficial owner
MR SEE 7 ZEUN

Du Wenmin Beneficial owner

i

(O Bl IHET 5 H T - 5.8920% -
W H EEIIE - CEELE - %
FAE S CEFLERCOEENET
A HE =% — =4+ AT A
ft -

2 B IRE e 4> H AT > 1919 20% -
AT RN R LA 2%
TN~ ZERBF R T RE =
A+ANIZE-Z—-HFE=A+LtHH
AT -

(3) AU B IRER AU 25 1.00
HEIT

12/11/2003® 2.75 244,320
18/3/2005® 3.919 325,760
12/11/2003® 2.75 183,240

Notes:

(1)  Options are exercisable in 5 tranches of 20% each, from 6
October 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 to 5 October 2013.

(2)  Options are exercisable in 5 tranches of 20% each, from 18
March 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 to 17 March 2015.

(3)  Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above is
HK$1.00
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S5 R E R UEF HAH E
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S Wt 1 4R E IO 4 A R o AR
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TR T 0 2 B H 2 BRIy - LM
PO R AU B A DR R B - R
M 5 2t 2 10 S G 2 A A T 8 O
ARk o

BE_F-FFE+_H=1+—H > Z:it
ANE A8 EUBEAE (5 E )
5 1316,671,362.36 70 1§ A 32,464,000 & A
A o AEAR A ER B H B E 8T
JEA0.8045% » R E ~F—FHE+ A
=t —HIEFERN > RAFC AL E
F g B A ERAE R & 3£21,975,904
ey - Hidh 10,782,806 M B A 4F 14 5 & -
RIERZAE B FI B BT IR > BECEB
JBE 53 FIT A5 R T L 468 519 € o B 46 M B =
FER - EARFEREGFEEH > LF
21,681,194 % o fi J& I 40y LAME 5B 2L il &2
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Restricted Share Award Scheme

As an incentive to retain and encourage the employees for the
continual operation and development of the Group, the Board of
the Company resolved to adopt the Restricted Share Award Scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 30 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). The Scheme
was subsequently amended on 8 December 2009. Unless sooner
terminated by the Board of Directors, the Scheme shall be effective
from the Adoption Date and shall continue in full force and effect for
a term of 10 years. According to the Scheme, shares up to 2.5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date will
be purchased by the Trustee from the market out of cash contributed
by the Group and be held in trust for the relevant selected
employees until such shares are vested with the relevant selected

employees in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme.

Up to 31 December 2010, the Company had through the Trustee
purchased 32,464,000 shares of the Company, representing 0.8045%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date,
from the market at an aggregate consideration of HK$316,671,362.36
(including transaction costs). During the year ended 31 December
2010, a total of 21,975,904 shares of the Company were awarded to
the directors and employees of the Group at no consideration by
the Company, of which 10,782,806 shares were vested during the
year. The sale proceeds from the vested shares have been and will
be distributed to the relevant directors and employees in accordance
with the amended provisions of the Scheme. As at the date of this
report, a total of 21,681,194 unvested shares have been held in trust

by the Trustee.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Save as disclosed above under “Restricted Share Award Scheme”,
neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s list securities during the year ended
31 December 2010.

Directors’ Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries
were a party and in which any director of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.
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Name of shareholders Capacity

Shareholders with Notifiable Interests

As at 31 December 2010, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

2010412131 F Bk

TRt A AN A A ]
CETRARE i
Percentage of the aggregate
long position in shares to

the issued share capital of the
Company as of 31/12/2010

HERIEE iR/ %R T H

long position/ Number of

Nature of interest short position shares

Gain Ahead Group Limited ikt 2N
(“Gain Ahead”) Beneficial owner
(R HRA R SRR IR

([FERSEM )
China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH”)

Controlled company’s interest

CRC Bluesky Limited (“‘Bluesky) %3/ b
Controlled company’s interest
FEFRA AT (BB ) ZHEH AR

China Resources Co., Limited
(“CRCMHV
R AT ([ ) o

Controlled company’s interest

S A A

China Resources National Controlled company’s interest

Corporation (“CRNC”) ®
JP Morgan Chase & Co. @ i) HEHEEA
Beneficial owner
(i) BeEsm
Investment manager
(i) (RN~ Bl R
Custodian corporation/approved
lending agent
HhidaA
Beneficial owner

(1) Gain Aheadld xCommotra Company Limited
oy Al E B R AR A T 3,521,640,519 i LA
$2,000 8 - #E # 4 J £ Gain Ahead L K
Commotra Company Limited 2 M — B »
M7 32 4 48 [ 2 Bluesky 19 2 & [ & A 7 >
Bluesky & % B B 03 () 2 G b 28 =) > Thi 3
T8 e 3 R 2 vl B o S Y 2 A e T
I > #EEELE - Bluesky ~ #RRM - PE
HE YA T B 22 F13,521,642,519 M B Ay
MRS o

TR AR
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ot iy 3,521,640,519 65.37%
Beneficial interest Long Position
i an i 3,521,642,519 65.37%
Corporation interest Long Position
Al 23 iy 3,521,642,519 65.37%
Corporation interest Long Position
i an i 3,521,642,519 65.37%
Corporation interest Long Position
i an i 3,521,642,519 65.37%
Corporation interest Long Position
(Ut 2 i 324,739,948 6.03%
Beneficial interest Long Position ()11,724,605
(i) FHbHEL (ii)258,006,888
Other interest (iii)54,948,455
(i) FAhEs
Other interest
Haihsi " 3,544,721 0.07%

Beneficial interest Short Position

Notes:

(D Gain Ahead and Commotra Company Limited directly held
3,521,640,519 shares and 2,000 shares of the Company
resepectively. CRH is the sole shareholder of Gain Ahead and
Commotra Company Limited. Moreover, CRH is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bluesky, which is in turn wholly owned by CRC.
CRC is wholly-owned by CRNC. Thus, CRH, Bluesky, CRC and
CRNC are deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 3,521,642,519
shares in the Company.
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Name of Corporation

(2)  According to the information disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, other than the following
corporations which were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co. in the
manner described below, these shares were held by JP Morgan
Chase & Co. and corporations controlled directly or indirectly as to
100% by it:

JP Morgan Chase & Co.
LIRS A SR T b
Percentage interest

(direct or indirect) held by
JP Morgan Chase & Co.

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

China International Fund Management Co Ltd

J.P. Morgan Whitefriars

b b SCpr bk g Ah » E—FF+ A
= —H > WAL A A A AR A F Y
JBe A7 K A B A v A AR BECRE 2 SO &
TEAT ) B XV R B 2 S 55 3 0 43 R 2 ) AR A
AP R £ AR > SRR BRI AR 4 A
R 75 T 1 B e 191 ) 25 336 M 47 B 1 B
T B 25 IR A -

Vi UNEI T = g/N
NI =g/ EIZ‘HH R R
185 EH E 5203 H ©

98.95%
49%
99.99%

Save as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2010, no other person had any
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

Subsidiaries and Associates
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries and associates are set out on
pages 185 to 203.
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Financial Derivative Instruments

During the year 2008, the Company timely seized the opportunity of
current subdued interest rate level caused by the sub-prime mortgage
crisis outbreak in the United States, and has fixed the interest costs
of a portion of its HK$ loans at relatively low levels by entering into
interest rate swap transactions. The swap transactions involved HK$3
billion in total, of which HK$1 billion had a swap period of four
years and the rest in a five year period. Due to decreases in swap
rates in the market since our transactions, the Company recorded
a mark-to-market loss for which a provision was made in full year
results in 2010. Due to decreases in swap rates in the market since
our transactions, the Company recorded a mark-to-market loss for

which a provision was made in the annual results.

Specific Performance Obligations on
Controlling Shareholder

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$1,000,000,000,
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”) is required
to maintain the control in the Company’s management by directly or
indirectly holding not less than 35% beneficial interest in the share
of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, there was no outstanding
balance under the loan agreement and is fully repayable within five

years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$400,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain the control in the Company’s
management by directly or indirectly holding not less than 35%
beneficial interest in the share of the Company. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.
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Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$500,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not less
than 35% beneficial interest in the shares of the Company, while the
PRC Government's shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As
at 31 December 2010, there was no outstanding balance under the

loan agreement and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to another loan agreement for the amount of
HK$500,000,000, CRH is required to maintain its status as the single
largest shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding
not less than 35% beneficial interest in the shares of the Company,
while the PRC Government’s shareholding in CRH shall not be
less than 50%. As at 31 December 2010, there was no outstanding
balance under the loan agreement and is fully repayable within three

years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$2,500,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$2,000,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.
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Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$3,000,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to two loan agreements for the amount of HK$200,000,000
respectively, CRH is required to maintain its status as the single
largest shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly
holding not less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC
Government’s shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at
31 December 2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan

agreements and is fully repayable within three years.

Pursuant to two loan agreements for the amount of HK$300,000,000
respectively, CRH is required to maintain its status as the single
largest shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly
holding not less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC
Government’s shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at
31 December 2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan

agreements and is fully repayable within three years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$350,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within four years.
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Pursuant to another loan agreement for the amount of
HK$500,000,000, CRH is required to maintain the control in the
Company’s management by directly or indirectly holding not less
than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within four years.

Pursuant to another loan agreement for the amount of
HK$1,000,000,000, CRH is required to maintain the control in the
Company’s management by directly or indirectly holding not less
than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$2,750,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$3,700,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, the outstanding loan owed by the Company under the loan
agreement amounted to HK$1,300,000,000 and is fully repayable

within five years.
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Pursuant to two loan agreements for the amount of
HK$1,000,000,000, CRH is required to maintain the control in the
Company’s management by directly or indirectly holding not less
than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to another loan agreement for the amount of
HK$500,000,000, CRH is required to maintain the control in the
Company’s management by directly or indirectly holding not less
than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within three years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of US$100,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2010, there was no outstanding balance under the loan agreement

and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$800,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest shareholder
of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not less than 35%
shares of the Company or to have the right to appoint, and terminate
the appointment of, the majority of the directors constituting the
board of directors of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, the
outstanding loan owed by the Company under the loan agreement
amounted to HK$300,000,000 and is fully repayable within four

years.
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Pursuant to a bridging loan agreement for the amount of
US$195,000,000 (or its equivalent in HK$), and a term loan
agreement for the amount of US$195,000,000 (or its equivalent in
HK$), CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not less
than 35% shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, the two
outstanding loans owed by the Company under the loan agreement
amounted to US$195,000,000 and is fully repayable within two and

five years respectively.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$1,000,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest shareholder
of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not less than 35%
shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, the outstanding
loan owed by the Company under the loan agreement amounted to
HK$1,000,000,000 and is fully repayable within five years.

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

Acquisition of Properties

On 20 September 2010, the Company entered into an agreement
with Central New Investments Limited (“Central New”) to acquire
100% stake of its wholly-owned subsidiary Fast Lead Investments
Limited (“Fast Lead”). Fast Lead is an investment holding company
and its principal assets were its indirect 100% interests in the project
sites which comprised the Hainan Shimei Bay Site, the Wuhan Oak
Bay Site and the Suzhou Kunshan Site located in the PRC. The
Consideration was HK$7,901,400,000, of which HK$5,530,980,000
was settled by the allotment and issue of consideration shares,
HK$2,370,420,000 was paid in cash. As Central New was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRH, and CRH had a 69.89% interest in the
Company at that time. Under the Listing Rules, the above transaction
constituted a major and connected transaction of the Company and
was approved by independent shareholders at the general meeting
held on 1 November 2010.
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Disposal of Property

On 20 September, 2010, Full Best Enterprises Limited (“Full Best”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Jetmax Investment
Limited (“Jetmax”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited (“SHKP”), entered into a transfer agreement
pursuant to which Full Best conditionally agreed to sell and Jetmax
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of
Charmlink Resources Limited (“Charmlink”) and shareholders loan
at the consideration of HK$475,377,845.3. Full Best and Charmlink
held 60% and 40% equity interests in Hangzhou Runhong Real Estate
respectively, which owned parcels of land in Hangzhou. SHKP
held 40% equity interest of two subsidiaries of the Company. Under
the Listing Rules, the above transaction constituted a connected
transaction of the Company and was approved by the independent

shareholders at the general meeting held on 1 November 2010.

Intra-Group Lending Between Members of the China
Resources Group

On 22 November 2010, China Resources (Holdings) Company
China

Resources Group listed companies (including the Company) and

Limited (“CRH”), the holding company of the Company,

unlisted companies entered into the HK$ and US$ master loan
agreement. At the same time, CRH and China Resources Group
listed companies (including the Company) entered into the RMB
master loan agreement in order to give each China Resources Group
listed company greater flexibility in the management of its surplus
cash resources by enabling it to lend a portion of its surplus cash
resources and those of its subsidiaries to other China Resources
Group companies. Under the Listing Rules, the above master
loan agreements constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions and were approved by independent shareholders at the

general meeting held on 23 December 2010. The above master loan

agreements became effective on 1 January 2011.
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Provision of Property Leasing, Construction Services,
Decoration Services, and Furniture Services

In the year of 2010, Beijing China Resources Building Company
Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, China
Resources (Shanghai) Limited, and China Recourses (Shenzhen)
Limited and members of CRH entered into certain contracts
in respect of leasing and concessionaire arrangements, which
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company.
On 20 September 2010, the Company entered into the leasing
and concessionaire framework agreement with CRH to govern the
principal terms of these continuing connected transactions from 20

September 2010 to 31 December 2012.

At the same time, the Company purchased construction and
decoration businesses from CRH on 22 June 2007, together with the
furniture business purchased from CRH on 6 June 2008, the services
provided by the construction, decoration and furniture subsidiaries of
the Company to CRH and its subsidiaries also constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company. On 20 September 2010,
the Company entered into the provision of construction services,
decoration services and furniture services framework agreement with
CRH to govern the principal terms of these continuing connected

transactions for the three financial years ending 31 December 2013.

The 2010 annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing

connected transactions are shown as follow:

Ho B

Unit:HK$

7% 20104 BB 20109 E R 5 #i

The actual

The annual cap transaction

No. SRR Business Type in 2010 amount in 2010
1

1 & EHS Leasing 65,000,000.00 64,356,227.76

2 TS Construction 750,000,000.00 61,469,909.55

3 HAEEFHS Decoration 480,000,000.00 177,084,430.00

4 KM DS Furniture 24,367,948.00 2,313,855.15
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the above connected transactions

and continuing connected transactions and confirmed that:

1.  these transactions were in the Company’s ordinary course of
business;

2. these transactions were entered into on normal commercial
terms;

3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with

respective agreement terms which were fair and reasonable,
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a

whole.

The Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche Thomatsu has provided a
letter to the Company’s Board of Directors confirming that the above

continuing connected transactions:

1. have received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;

2. are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

3. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant

agreement governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous

announcement(s).

Model Code Regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rule as code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. Having made specific enquiry with all
directors, the Company confirmed that all directors has complied
with the required standard set our in the Model Code during the

year under review.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the

Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year under review, the Group’s five largest suppliers
and customers together accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s

purchases and sales respectively.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 200.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there are no restrictions against such

rights under the laws in the Cayman Island.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises Mr. Wang Shi, Mr. Andrew Y. Yan,
Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, and Mr. Frederick
Ma Si Hang, all of them being independent non-executive directors
of the Company. The audit committee has reviewed, together
with the management and the Company’s auditors, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including

the financial statements for the year.
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Auditors

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the end of
the forthcoming annual general meeting and is eligible for

reappointment.

By order of the Board

Chairman

Wang Yin

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA RESOURCES LAND LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 215
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2010, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal controls as the directors determine
are necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2010 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

WE R -TET A=+ HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

B 5F Notes 2010 2009
T T T
HK$000 HK$’000
(H51)
(Restated)
Il Revenue 6 25,729,158 16,650,237
8 A Cost of sales (15,576,849) (10,674,195)
EF Gross profit 10,152,309 5,976,042
WG N A B 45 Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties 2,850,182 2,295,062
LIE VT S -L/E Pl Gain on changes in fair value of inventory of
Q%@%ﬁj e properties transferred to investment properties 97,120 67,208
i TR 2 T Es (Loss) gain on changes in fair value of derivative
(E’Eﬁﬁ) q&ﬁ financial instruments (8,963) 2,390
HoAth st A Other income 8 530,216 249,462
S8 BT S Selling and marketing expenses (721,086) (576,071)
— & S ATHGE General and administration expenses (1,028,893) (870,693)
JREAG N ) 4 Share of results of associates 48,053 41,481
B Hs 2 Finance costs 11 (304,445) (154,389)
Rt 1 ¥ ) Profit before taxation 11,614,493 7,030,492
IS BB 52 Income tax expense 12 (4,275,759) (2,285,120)
A A i A Profit for the year 13 7,338,734 4,745,372
HoAb A2 A (B SZ) Other comprehensive income (expense)
DR 3 1y S 5 W i A 2 Exchange differences arising on translation to
IE ;@% %E presentation currency 2,116,399 (55,758)
BT Rk SR LI/ S EE 2L (Loss) gain on changes in fair value of
(18 Y4 cash flow hedges (20,435) 11,433
2,095,964 (44,325)
RN Nk Total comprehensive income for the year 9,434,698 4,701,047
DU AN B A 2 1o Ui A Sl Total comprehensive income attributable to:
PN DN Owners of the Company 7,904,507 4,302,384
FEPE RS Non-controlling interests 1,530,191 398,663
9,434,698 4,701,047
PATR A B A AR PR 3 ) < Profit for the year attributable to:
E:N/NEIE XS DN Owners of the Company 6,026,470 4,303,757
FE 4 e 25 Non-controlling interests 1,312,264 441,015
7,338,734 4,745,372
BB A Earnings per share 15 1198111 s8Il
ngi Basic HK119.8 cents HKS88.1 cents
Hi119.241 w8771
T Diluted HK119.2 cents HK87.7 cents

S
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

WoER-FET A= —H At 31 December 2010

2009 11,2009

98

BT T T BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(E41) (E%1))
(Restated) (Restated)
FEU ) Non-current assets
Y2~ R Property, plant and equipment 16 3,299,277 3,050,933 2,745,744
TEATAH B 30E Prepaid lease payments 17 843,760 685,812 798,917
EVSZL7E Investment properties 18 21,953,068 16,742,284 9,998,305
TR 7 2 Wt Interests in associates 19 708,733 668,666 731,099
R i — [T B ) 2 Amount due from an associate 20 259,744 238,014 265,178
At E RS Available-for-sale investments 21 188,962 194,473 207,205
FEE G E 2 EAET 4 Deposit paid for non-current assets 22 2,476,969 = =
R ARl JEU 7 Deferred taxation assets 23 482,281 471,756 399,269
30,212,800 22,052,538 15,145,717
it Current assets
YEFE Inventory of properties 24 61,883,161 42,918,048 39,568,189
TE A FH A Prepaid lease payments 17 19,725 17,366 16,608
HAbfF & Other inventories 25 66,712 55,606 64,253
MENCHR R ~ Ho At RE S R TE Trade receivables, other receivables and
REfETE deposits paid 26 19,859,289 15,035,153 9,955,940
MW %P A4 LA IE Amounts due from customers for contract
works 27 398,081 281,615 210,929
JREMSIF] 25 B 2 ) 3T Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 28 65,363 242,435 157,585
JRE M T AR N W) K Amount due from immediate holding
company 28 495 4,103 7,629
TE N BLIE Taxation prepaid 1,160,037 707,019 128,731
B4 MARATREAF Cash and bank balances 29 11,972,212 19,873,080 5,808,875
95,425,075 79,134,425 55,918,739
i A AR Current liabilities
JREAST AR S HoAth A IR VE Trade and other payables 30 7,787,114 5,921,958 4,300,824
HEMECIET & Deposits received from pre-sales of properties 31 21,750,006 18,943,304 5,689,910
AT T A 4 TR RIE Amounts due to customers for contract works 27 456,121 374,575 341,963
JREAST I 2R B 2 ] 3k H Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 32 70,693 2,217,090 2,925,893
JREAS B e I N ) K Amount due to immediate holding company 32 945,043 2,264,473 2,409,043
JREASE FE 22 1% st B A Amounts due to non-controlling interests 32 796,749 988,111 911,573
JEAT AL TE Taxation payable 3,386,793 1,849,380 686,238
AT ——FRNE Bank borrowings — due within one year 33 8,554,849 1,827,206 4,062,895
43,747,368 34,386,097 21,328,339

TR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2010 2009 112009

AT T Wi T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
(H 1) (H1)
(Restated) (Restated)
TG T E Net current assets 51,677,707 44,748,328 34,590,400
B AR (R R B B M Total assets less current liabilities 81,890,507 66,800,866 49,736,117
A Fe bt Capital and reserves
Jik& Share capital 35 538,724 503,001 471,535
feti i Reserves 45,376,869 37,187,327 29,787,921
Zk’/}ﬁ%ﬁ}\}%{ﬁ A Equity attributable to owners of the Company 45,915,593 37,690,328 30,259,456
JEFE AT 25 Non-controlling interests 3,499,060 1,190,073 798,526
49,414,653 38,880,401 31,057,982
FE ) A 5 Non-current liabilities
AT ——FEE2 Bank borrowings — due after one year 33 29,252,389 25,631,576 17,030,097
AR AER T B Deferred taxation liabilities 23 3,070,966 2,165,788 1,511,114
A4 mTHE Derivative financial instruments 34 152,499 123,101 136,924
32,475,854 27,920,465 18,678,135
81,890,507 66,800,866 49,736,117
EEH Wang Yin
HH DIRECTOR
Sl 5 Wu Xiangdong
#HH DIRECTOR

— R
Annual Report 2010

99



AR AN S )

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WE-F-FEFT+ A=+ —HILFERE For the year ended 31 December 2010
KATHA JEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRI
selital
bR
Shares (Bl
heldfor Al FHR
Restricted ~ Employee 2]
e RivelE  wkRE REE EXRE Share swebwed AR R UERE  REER Non-
Share Share Capital General  Translation Award  compensation  Merger Hedging Other Retained At controlling 5t
capital premium feserve reserves feserve Scheme reserve reserve feserve reserve profits Total interests Total

EHTL EETr R BNTx ERT BNTx R BETr kT BT dRT ENTr BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
(Hfzka) (Hf336) (Hit2) (Hike)
(Note 2) (Note 36) (Note 2) (Note )

REZENE—A—H At 1 January 2009 (audited)

(EEH) 1535 A9 MSH  BE0 3204919 (R2D AT G078 (6259) CGI0B1 32308 19856 3L06L612
AftehiEg| Merger accounting restatement = = = - 145,541 = - 9,900 B - (15907) (3,630) - (3,630)

BEZENE-R—A At'1 January 2009 (restated)
(E71) 471535 24940,740 204567 158600 3350,460 (162,242) 2779 (4,700,884) (36,259) - 601160 30259456 798526 31,057,982

RSB BIIKRES 2 Exchange differences arising

AR on translation
to presentation currency - - - - (12,806) - - - - - - (12,806) (42952) (55,758)
REWHMZATERS  Fair value change
on cash flow hedges B = = B - = - - 11433 - - 11433 - 11433
AERIEF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 4303757 4303757 441615 4745372
FRAHRAGHE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (12,806) - - - 11433 - 4303757 4302384 308,003 4,701,047

OB S 2 MB/A T 2. Consideration paid for acquisition

ERE (k) of subsidiaries under common
control (Note b) = = = - - - - B63040) - - - (680400 - G680400)
WO ER B AR Arising from acquisition of
EE subsidiaries under common
control - - - - - = - 35180 - - - 325180 - 3251830
RSB IRA SRR B K Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments - - - - - B 3033 = - - - 3033 - 3033
SR A Al Transfer of reserve in subsidiaries = - - 257395 - - - _ _ -5 _ N N
SRR MRS  Purchase of shares under Share
Award Scheme - - = = = (34,499 = = = = = (34499 = (344949
EEH Placement of new shares 30000 4210308 - - - - - - - - - 420308 - 420308
Tl Exercise of share options 1,460 52,140 - - = = (16901) - - - _ 36,705 _ 36705
EH- B AR R Acquisition of additional interest
ina subsidiary - = = = - - - - - - - - e g
“EZ)EAARE Final dividend for 2008 - = = = = = = = = - B33 BB - B3m)
RS Addiional inal dividend
for prior year - - - - - - = = = = 5543 @558 = (25543)
CERENEMRE Interim dividend for 2009 = = - - - - - - = - Qns® @579 - Qs

REZEAEFZAZ4—H At31 December 2009 (restated)
(E71) 503,001 29,203,188 204,567 415995 3337654 (196,736) T (129454) (24826) - 9309028 37690328 1190073 38880401

RS BIIKRMES 2 Exchange differences arising

IS EH on translation
to presentation currency - - - - 1898472 - - - - - - 1898472 27927 211639
RATHWZ ATHAES  Fair value change
on cash flow hedges - - - - - - = = (20435) = = (20,435) = (20435
i Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - 6026470 6026470 1312264 733873
FRAERAGE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - = = 1,898.472 = = = (20439) e 6,026,470 7,904,507 1,530,191 9,434,698

— BB
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Y AL e Z I A7 2. Consideration paid for acquisition of

LI GIN
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRI
selital
it
Shares [REMM
heldfor Al il
Restricted ~ Employee 2]
e el EARE  -REE EXRE Share suebsed  AUFEME  HWRE  EURE  REEA Non-
Share Share Capital General  Translation Award  compensation  Merger Hedging Other Retained At controlling 5t
capital premium reserve reserves reserve Scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
T NI R Tx EWMTL #NTR BETR BT BT TR BTk BT #iTx # T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(Hrita) (HzE36) (Kt (Hfike)
(Note 2) (Note 30) (Note 2) (Note )

EARE (D) subsidiaries under
common control (Note b) - - = = = - (3802682 - = - (3802682 - (3802682
YRS R HIMBA R Arising from acquisition of
EE subsidiaries under common
control - - - - = = - 3980794 - = - 3980794 - 3980794
i alies LIRS Recognition of equily settled
share-based payments - - - - - - 194,393 - - - - 194,393 - 194,393
R AR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - - = = = = - - - - 152597 152597
i~ FIEATMMERS  Partial disposal of a subsidiary = = = = = = = = = 801 - 801 473,118 473919
FERAOR LS Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 156416 156,416
AR Transfer of reserve in subsidiaries - - - 67993 - - = - - - (67.993) = - -
HRARR IR (SR Share vested under Restricted
Ll v Share Award Scheme - - - - - 88936  (117563) = = - 28,607 - - .
FESURAERIT MR  Purchase of shares under Share
Award Scheme - = = > - (11999 = = = = - (11993%) - (1199%)
RO — TR A i Shares issued for acquisition
TR of a subsidiary
34824 1457446 - = - - - - - - - 1492270 - 1492270
Tt Exercise of share options 899 33,909 - - - - (8914) - - - B 25,804 - 25,894
H-FMEAR NS Acquisiton of additonal
interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 1,485 = 1485 (3335) (1,850)
ZRRNEAMRS Final dividend for 2009 - - - - = = = = = - (42 G492 - 042
HEEEIERRE Additional final dividend
for prior year - - - - - = = = = = (1,175 (1,175 = (1,175
e o S Interim dividend for 2010 - - - - - - - - - - 5% (705%) - %)
REF-FEFTA=F—H At31 December 2010 38724 30694543 204,567 43988 5236120 (277%) BT (5011342) (45,201) 2086 13963850 45915593 3499060 49414653
Fi5E Notes:
a. 2’—‘%@]24%1%1%@3%4:% @WEM*@W?@W%’AE a. The Group’s general reserves comprise the Group’s share of the statutory surplus reserve of
2 E B o subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland.
b. He AR A PR A (T 3R [ ) 2 4 YR JBg 2 ) IE 3T b. Central New Investments Limited (“Central New”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
FEEA MR E (TIEH ) i B EIAER L& HE A Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"), during 2009 had established a wholly-
A AGERCE AT PR A (A ) o RS T —FA4FE R owned subsidiary, Fast Lead Investments Limited (“Fast Lead”). Fast Lead during 2010 and
[ 422 T O R AT B T A HR R R R ) s e b prior to common control combination, had acquired certain subsidiaries which held property
WZME AR« R - F—FEF—J=ZH  A%LH development sites in the Chinese Mainland. On 3 November 2010, the Group had acquired
?Ei@ﬁ?%’?—’54.29%2{5*@%1?348,239,0005&%@Ex)52 Fast Lead and its subsidiaries (the “Fast Lead Group”) from Central New through the issuance
AT s %2,370,420,000%&%%%7&]%@ EEaiadi of 348,239,000 ordinary shares at the price equivalent to HK$4.29 and paid HK$2,370,420,000
3,862,682,0007C) 1 £ AR > 1 1E B g s 4 A L cash to CRH totalling HK$3,862,682,000 as the consideration. Prior to the common
i N w) (TIRAHAE ] |) o A IE[E A BERT > FRAE AR control combination, the share capital and share premium of Fast Lead was amounted to
B ety i A8 7 ¥ W 3,980,794,000 7T @ HKS$3,980,794,000.
T AT JUAE B SRR 42 1 A B T ST A I Central New during 2009 and prior to common control combination, had established a wholly-
AR HARAF(TKH 1) o ik H A ZFFJUF IO owned subsidiary, Day Rejoice Limited (“Day Rejoice™. Day Rejoice during 2009 had acquired
T v A SRR ) 0 R R B S D e A certain subsidiaries which held property development sites in the Chinese Mainland. On 3
FEIFEILA=H > AW [ IER IR B R b September 2009, the Group had acquired Day Rejoice and its subsidiaries (the “Day Rejoice
NG E S ﬁﬁfﬁ1§ﬁ%%3,680,400,000 Group”) from Central New at cash consideration of HK$3,680,400,000. Prior to the common
TG o RS mIE S OFRT K AR B R4 i 15 2 s control combination, the share capital and share premium of Day Rejoice acquired was
3,261,730,0007C © amounted to HK$3,261,730,000.
C. Eﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁ?Jt&ﬁ*@%iﬁl%éﬂ%%zﬁ%%[ﬁf%&ﬂ c. Other reserve represents the difference between the amount paid or received for any

T HE 2 A 2 ) SR HE 5 ) 52 ) T LA el e 2
SO O T 2 IR B SR 5 2 ] 2 265 o

transaction related to the change of shareholding in a subsidiary without the overall gain or
loss of control in that subsidiary and the non-controlling interest being acquired or disposed
of.
TR TR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-E-FE+ A=+ —HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2010

T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E%1))
(Restated)
BT OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R A ¥ Profit before taxation 11,614,493 7,030,492
AR Adjustments for:
BB Finance costs 304,445 154,389
SBATA R A Bank interest income (166,336) (104,891)
JRE i — [T B ) R 2 A B Imputed interest income in respect of
FLEMA amount due from an associate (11,401) (9,233)
4 B[R] B8 O WM i 2 AT Discount on acquisition of
additional interests in a subsidiary - (1,696)
AW 27 N TE B Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties (2,850,182) (2,295,062)
YRR B EYEL Gain on changes in fair value of inventory of
Tl e properties transferred to investment properties (97,120) (67,208)
A i L E 2 20 A2 E) Loss (gain) on changes in fair value
R (W ts) of derivative financial instruments 8,963 (2,390)
Y2 ~ B Kt 2 e Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 242,675 175,368
HEYZE - s L i Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,350 1,156
gk o T A AL T Release of prepaid lease payments 8,249 3,067
T IR SR S B A RN R TE Impairment loss recognised
TERR 2 WE 1R on trade and other receivables 620 43,183
A — A A Impairment loss recognised
IR 2 A H R 2 W (L 4R on deemed capital contribution in an associate 172 50,057
IR A PR % L Al A B T 438 A5 438 () Reversal of allowance for trade and other receivables - 979)
PRI AS G5 T A A 3K Recognition of equity-settled share based payment 194,393 3,033
i A E S Share of results of associates (48,053) (41,481)
GG B Operating cash flows before movements in
B 4 i working capital 9,202,268 4,937,805
LYJE YeRSe i Increase in inventory of properties (16,880,805) (2,508,848)
HAbLEE (B W (Increase) decrease in other inventories (9,165) 8,712
FEUS AR R ~ FoAth R TE K Increase in trade receivables,
AT 41 other receivables and deposits paid (4,309,043) (5,103,571)
JEW R F & %) TR Increase in amounts due
HEn from customers for contract works (106,642) (70,451)
JRE W [7] 25 BfF i 2 ) TE D Decrease (increase) in amounts due
(34 from fellow subsidiaries 185,528 (84,833)
JREAST B 2 T L Ath JEASF R TE 184 oy Increase in trade and other payables 1,600,574 1,625,904
TEYZEC T 284 Increase in deposits received from pre-sales of properties 2,145,963 13,259,705
JEAT % 5 A %) TAE B hn Increase in amounts due to customers for contract works 68,481 32,991
JEEASH ] 25 BB 2 w2 Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (31,371) (1,919,617)
B (TN Pris sl 4 Cash (used in) from operations (8,134,212) 10,177,797
EAT R EE N RS (T B ) B  People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) tax paid (2,557,583) (1,118,154)
I B By SR ) 2 Ay 2 5K Payment for purchase of shares for Share Award Scheme (119,935) (34,494)
BT () P Bl 4 NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (10,811,730) 9,025,149

e o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2010 2009

T T
HK$000 HK$°000
(1)
(Restated)
B EH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
LR B Interest received 166,336 104,891
WS e — ] A JB 2 7 (2 B BT Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of cash and
WA B 455 e B 43 S5 () cash equivalent acquired) 38 1 (1,578,127)
WS — T 7 2 Acquisition of an associate (4,701) -
B IMI* M5k /L}ﬁl HEE Dividend received from an associate 36,793 103,858
AT — FFﬁ%i ZNE| Advance to an associate - (14,554)
tﬂ%%% II%EJE Y& LRSS Proceeds on disposal of property,
FIH plant and equipment 3,555 28,135
&ET1%HE'E&§ A3 IE Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investment - 4,510
WEAMIZE ~ W S Purchases of property, plant and equipment (370,397) (1,148,612)
A TEA 37 55 Purchase of prepaid land lease (1,385) 2,477)
[ Y-/ & 5 RixE Purchase of investment properties and addition
EVg LYE S to investment properties under construction (1,316,994) (2,297,370)
FEMENEE 2 EAFF 4 Deposit paid for non-current assets (2,476,969) =
AT A B 2 B AN R (] Investment cost in available-for-sale investment
refunded 8,500 8,215
IR P Bl 4 A NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,955,261) (4,791,531)
S SR FINANCING ACTIVITIES
0 — [ o > ) 2 M Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (1,850) (5,420)
LR — [ B 2 R13 0 ME 45 T A5 L8R Proceeds on partial disposal of a subsidiary 475,378 -
TG ERAT B K New bank loans raised 17,288,974 15,489,584
TR ERAT R Repayments of bank loans (7,345,988) (9,122,993)
FEFE BB (GO R ) HGEK (Repayment to) advance from
non-controlling interests (191,362) 77,549
BT Dividends paid (1,392,262) (688,494)
EAF LR Interest paid (1,106,033) (714,071)
e B 58 LT 45 3K Proceeds on placement of new shares - 4,240,308
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁé}ﬁ (G3 y}( Proceeds on exercise of share options 25,894 36,705
BRI F G Repayment to immediate holding company (1,394,676) (138,439)
[Fi) 2 o Jeg 2 71 ( %?ﬁi?ﬁ FK (Repayment to) advance from fellow subsidiary (2,192,358) 1,212,215
ST 7 e [ 42 ) T A Payment to CRH for the acquisitions
A5 [ R E of entities under common control (2,370,420) (3,680,400)
FREE I IR i Capital contribution by non-controlling interests 156,416 -
il S5 P A5 B 4 A NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,951,713 6,706,544
Bl BB S (D ) e g NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,815,278) 10,940,162
WAL Vit 2 3 [ e o Y g 4 ) 3 2 ARISING FROM ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL 3,980,794 3,251,830
A1 EE 23 5 ) EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGE 933,616 (127,787)
—H—HZBE&RBIE&%HE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY 19,873,080 5,808,875
TZH=F—HZBERBI4ES(E  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 11,972,212 19,873,080
Bl MBS EAA R Z AT ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
B4 FERIT4E A Cash and bank balances 11,972,212 19,873,080
— R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). The immediate holding company is China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company of the Company to be China Resources National Corporation (“CRNC”),
a company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in

the Corporate Information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is different from the functional currency of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB”),
as the Company is a public company incorporated in Cayman Islands with the
shares listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are
located in Hong Kong and therefore, the directors consider that Hong Kong
dollars is preferable in presenting the operating results and financial position
of the Group. The majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are operating in the

Chinese Mainland with RMB as their functional currency.

The principal activities of the Group are sale of developed properties, property
investments and management, hotel operations and provision of construction,

decoration services and others.

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The Group acquired Fast Lead Group from a subsidiary of CRH on 3 November
2010, which is considered as business combination involving entities under
common control and has been accounted for using merger accounting method,
based on the guidance set out in Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“the HKICPA”) for the year ended 31 December 2010. As
a result, the comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2009
and consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January 2009 and 31
December 2009 have therefore been restated, in order to include the results of

the combining entities since the date of which first come under common control.

The acquisition of Fast Lead Group had resulted in decrease in the Group’s total
comprehensive income for the year and profit for the year ended 31 December
2009 attributable to the owners of the Company by HK$106,126,000 and
HK$105,152,000 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
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Statements

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT (continued)

entities under common control (continued)

December 2009 by line items is as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Gain on changes in fair value
of investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value of
inventory of properties transferred to
investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value
of derivative financial instruments
Other income
Selling and marketing expenses
General and administration expenses
Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising on translation to
presentation currency

Gain on changes in fair value of cash flow
hedge

Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

Merger accounting for business combination involving

The effect of the merger accounting restatement described above on the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31

BE-ZENE L RECEREE

FoA= At et TZH=1—H

MFF £t 14

Year ended Merger accounting Year ended

31 December 2009 restatement 31 December 2009
W T T T T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(J551) (%)
(Originally stated) (Restated)

16,601,348 48,889 16,650,237

(10,662,798) (11,397) (10,674,195)

5,938,550 37,492 5,976,042

2,295,062 - 2,295,002

67,208 = 67,208

2,390 - 2,390

248,252 1,210 249,462

(547,249) (28,822) (576,071)

(755,990) (114,703) (870,693)

41,481 - 41,481

(153,961) (428) (154,389)

7,135,743 (105,251) 7,030,492

(2,285,219) 99 (2,285,120)

4,850,524 (105,152) 4,745,372

(54,784) (974) (55,758)

11,433 - 11,433

4,807,173 (106,126) 4,701,047

4,408,510 (106,126) 4,302,384

398,663 - 398,663

4,807,173 (106,126) 4,701,047

4,408,909 (105,152) 4,303,757

441,615 - 441,015

4,850,524 (105,152) 4,745,372

#%90.2{Il QDA T Ess. 11l

HK90.2 cents HK(2.1) cents HK88.1 cents

it H89.811l QD e ls7. 71

HK89.8 cents

HK(2.1) cents

HK87.7 cents

SRR | e

Annual Report 2010



A U 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. GftEstEEY) (8) 2.  MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT (continued)
WhkZEFRERHEEERESZAIE Merger accounting for business combination involving
whik (78) entities under common control (continued)

bl 2 S e RHE TS R ILE ]

The effects of the merger accounting restatement described above on the

.
Annual Report 2010

— AR ZEENET A =E—H 2455 consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January 2009 and 31
AR TR K TE 2 L2 - December 2009 by line items are as follows:
&l SEEAE A B
CSEENFE gRhEES ERIF TZH gRhEES +=A
*H —H Merger *ﬂ —H E‘|‘* H Merger E‘I“* H
1 January accounting 1January 31 December accounting 31 December
2009 restatement 2009 2009 restatement 2009
WL Ww®Tr W% T T BWTo B¥Tx
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(J&51) (E71) (J§31) (H31)
(Originally (Restated) (Originally (Restated)
stated) stated)
i) E 3 Non-current assets
W - iR Rkt Property, plant and equipment 2,274,429 471315 2,745,744 2,578,850 472,083 3,050,933
TR EHOR Prepaid lease payments 631,924 166,993 798,917 453,068 232,744 685,812
BEmE Tnvestment properties 9,998,305 - 9,998,305 16,742,284 - 16742284
AT 2 Interests in associates 731,099 - 731,099 668,666 - 668,666
e — P10 A ) 2 Amount due from an associate 265,178 - 265,178 238,014 - 238,614
Al G Available-for-sale investments 187,994 19,211 207,205 179,772 14,701 194,473
EAERE G Deferred taxation assets 398,634 635 399,269 471,022 734 471,756
14,487,563 658,154 15,145,717 21,332,276 720,262 22,052,538
{ﬁfﬁb EE Current assets
%@%%Z?‘“ Inventory of properties 38,149,775 1,418414 39,568,189 40,827,522 2,090,526 42,918,048
B ER Prepaid lease payments 12,898 3,710 16,608 11,188 6,178 17,366
HAth ﬁﬁ Other inventories 61,387 2,866 64,253 55,606 = 55,606
JENSCIRR ~ HADRENIRIE K Trade receivables, other receivables and
EATT 2 deposits paid 9,884,625 71315 9955940 13751430 128725 15035153
FEWEF &% TRZIE Amounts due from customers for
contract works 210,929 - 210,929 281,615 - 281,615
[ {EER it 5 /A ) i 0E Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 15,598 141,987 157,585 99,999 142,436 242 435
JREMS B e R A R 30 Amount due from
immediate holding company 7,629 = 7,629 4,103 - 4,103
EfBLE Taxation prepaid 128731 - 128731 707,019 = 707,019
Bl REUTHAF Cash and bank balances 5,658,521 150,354 5808875 19,513,576 359,504 19,873,080
54,130,093 1,788,646 55,918,739 75,252,058 3,882,367 79,134,425
WE) A fit Current liabilities
JREAST B A A BRI Trade and other payables 4,258,280 42,544 4,300,824 5,657,260 264,698 5.921,958
HEMECHET S Deposits received from
pre-sales of properties 5,689,910 - 5,689,910 18,943,304 - 18,943,304
A% P &4 TR S0E Amounts due to customers
for contract works 341,963 - 341,963 374,575 - 374,575
A5 ) 5 2 ) I Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1945751 980,142 2,925,893 23,976 2,193,114 2,217,090
JER E AR A Rl 3R Amount due to immediate
holding company 981,299 1,427,744 2,409,043 - 2,264,473 2,264,473
JREASF S A SR 0 Amounts due to non-controlling interests 911,573 = 911,573 988,111 - 988,111
Fgﬁm Taxation payable 686,238 - 686,238 1,849,380 = 1,849,380
SRATHE §_4$ ] Bank borrowings - due within one year 4,062,895 - 4,062,895 1,827,206 - 1,827,206
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. AfFEEHEES] ()

Wk I T EEE G A0t E

2.

MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving

A (A8) entities under common control (continued)
Al SEEAE A CEEAE
ZEENE gRiEEs ZEENE T ERHEES +=A
—H—H Merger —H—H =+—H Merger =+—H
1 January accounting 1 January 31 December accounting 31 December
2009 restatement 2009 2009 restatement 2009
W lWTT % Tr BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(J#31) (E71) (J751) (E51)
(Originally (Restated) (Originally (Restated)
stated) stated)
18,877,909 2450,430 21,328,339 29,663,812 4722285 34,386,097
T Net current assets 35,252,184 (661,784) 34,590,400 45,588,246 (839,918) 44,748,328
AR A Total assets less current liabilities 49,739,747 (3630) 49736117 66920522 (119656) 66,800,866
JREAR B ket Capital and reserves
e Share capital 471,535 - 471,535 503,001 - 503,001
ﬁﬁ Reserves 29,791,551 (3,630) 29,787,921 37,306,983 (119,656) 37,187,327
/NG 2PN AT @ Equity attributable
to owners of the Company 30,263,086 (3,630) 30,259,456 37,809,984 (119,656) 37,690,328
FEVERE 25 Non-controlling interests 798,526 - 798,526 1,190,073 - 1,190,073
31,061,612 (3,630) 31,057,982 39,000,057 (119,656) 38,880,401
FiEE E Non-current liabilities
SRATIS — — A F Bank borrowings — due after one year 17,030,097 = 17,030,097 25,631,576 = 25,631,576
IRAERH A Deferred taxation liabilities 1,511,114 = 1,511,114 2,165,788 = 2,165,788
fESMTHE Derivative financial instruments 136,924 = 136,924 123,101 - 123,101
18,678,135 - 18,678,135 27,920,465 - 27,920,465
49,739,747 (3,630) 49,736,117 66,920,522 (119,656) 66,800,866
—F B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SOFEEHEEEY) (8) 2.  MERGER ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT (continued)
WhkZEFRERHEEERESZAIE Merger accounting for business combination involving
() entities under common control (continued)
el 2 S et mE AN R R The effects of the merger accounting restatement described above to the Group’s
NWE—HA—H R ZENE++_A=+—H2Z equity on 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:
JBeA 2 BT

aff ZEENE oYl —

“EENE gRhEES ZERIE +ZA ERRAES +=A
—HJ—H Merger —H—H =+—H Merger =+—H

1 January accounting 1January 31 December accounting 31 December
2009 restatement 2009 2009 restatement 2009

whTT T W% BBTe wWTr #W T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(J551) (E51) (J531) (E71)
(Originally (Restated) (Originally (Restated)
stated) stated)
A Share capital 471,535 - 471,535 503,001 - 503,001
1 i Share premium 24,940,740 = 24,940,740 29,203,188 = 29,203,188
JaZ NG Capital reserve 204,567 = 204,567 204,567 = 204,567
— Ml i General reserves 158,600 - 158,600 415,995 - 415,995
I S ek Translation reserve 3,204919 145,541 3,350,460 3,193,087 144,567 3,337,654
RS Sl ek S 07 52 - o R £ Share held for Restricted Share Award Scheme (162,242) - (162,242) (196,736) - (196,736)
1@5%1&%%@% Employee share-based compensation reserve 21,779 - 21,779 7911 - 7911
Akt Merger reserve (4,710,784) 9,900 (4,700,884) (5,129,454 - (5,129,454)
Sk Hedging reserve (36,259) = (36,259) (24,826) = (24,826)
TR F Retained profits 6,170,231 (159,071) 6,011,160 9,633,251 (264,223) 9,369,028
JEPERHERS Non-controlling interests 798,526 = 798,526 1,190,073 - 1,190,073
31,061,612 (3.630) 31057982 39,000,057 (119,656) 38,880,401

108 L TR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised

standards and interpretations issued by the HKICPA.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK - Int 5

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Eligible Hedged Ttems

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Presentation of Financial Statements —

Classification by the Borrower of a Term

Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised standards

and interpretations in the current year has had no material effect on the amounts

reported in these consolidated financial statements and/ or disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

—F— B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. WEFHTET S ARG AT A v o 2 s i |
(#8)
s B CE RSB 358 (BT )ER
CHBIE 3 228
o RSB ASAE BE O AR B I 1 SO
WOl F s =T — AR 2 A%
) 365 A O 5% ) 75 s O 4 A YR U5 3
BE (BT ELERT) o BRI ER
BRI R R -

o FHBMTERE R IR (T AE
E5T) HE - FERT RO B I IF e i
HERS (RTARRT D OB AT IHERS ) IRF > W[ g4
VABFIE 22 5 1 e - F2 00 P s e

W 7 1Y Ll R Tk I IR R
PR RS

o EEMEB WA QA3 (R T E
RRAETT) S R AR AR ) e R B AR &
HHELZ BUE o BURT > sURMUH R
AR T RE S8 A ] SRR A ] e i T 57
Mo REIRE > 7 DR O HIEERD 5 B
R )AL A A — P SRS i A 3
B o RPRHEAERTHER > SUORIURE 50
W H 2 AP ERRE S SRR AR
R U R U ] B S T
st 121 fY9 H11R)) 245 B Wi 1
B PERHERHRE > 7 & T LARERRAL
SO RAEL B o ITA HAL D IR B
R R AR I AR B A 2 R
fERE o

o TR E A 39 ( *??/\E
RRAETHT ) B 275 & fF 7 46 48 1 B
W 77 1) AP TEBRARIRE > ZH AR wuﬁﬁ
(=

o EEMBHA R I (R ER
TEERT) 58 5 WA A IR A A 7 B S 5
IFBAAME - HEERZAF AR AR IR AR
i T HERR A% B ST > T A% A RS LT S 1R
Ry A Y — A A B

PRAN AT W AR O VR R B 3 5% (R AR R A
%T)%ﬂldi%@ﬁ/‘ﬁ@*f%ﬁﬁzaiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁj
B LS AR B B 5

e
Annual Report 2010

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business Combinations

. HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has been applied in the current year
prospectively to business combinations of which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 January 2010 in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions. Its application has affected the accounting for business

combinations in the current year.

. HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) allows a choice on a transaction-by-
transaction basis for the measurement of non-controlling interests at
the date of acquisition (previously referred to as “minority” interests)
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ share of recognised

identifiable net assets of the acquiree.

. HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) changes the recognition and subsequent
accounting requirements for contingent consideration. Previously
contingent consideration was recognised at the acquisition date only
if payment of the contingent consideration was probable and it could
be measured reliably; any subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were always made against the cost of the acquisition.
Under the revised standard, contingent consideration is measured at fair
value at the acquisition date; subsequent adjustments to the consideration
are recognised against the cost of acquisition only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or

loss.

. HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires the recognition of a settlement
gain or loss when the business combination in effect settles a pre-existing

relationship between the Group and the acquiree.

. HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires acquisition-related costs to be
accounted for separately from the business combination, generally
leading to those costs being recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, whereas previously they were accounted for as part of the cost

of the acquisition.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has had no material impact on
the reported results or financial position of the Group for the current accounting

period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has resulted in changes in the
Group’s accounting policies for changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries of

the Company.

Specifically, the revised standard has affected the Group’s accounting policies
regarding changes in the Company’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control. In prior years, in the absence of specific
requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were
treated in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill
or a bargain purchase gain being recognised, when appropriate; for decreases
in interests in existing subsidiaries that did not involve a loss of control, the
difference between the consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss. Under HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2008), all such increases or decreases are dealt with in equity, with no impact

on goodwill or profit or loss.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or other
circumstance, the revised standard requires the Group to derecognise all assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying amounts and to recognise
the fair value of the consideration received. Any retained interest in the former
subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date control is lost. The resulting

difference is recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from 1 January 2010 in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. The application of HKAS 27
(as revised in 2008) has resulted in a decrease in both the profit for the year and
total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010 by HK$2,286,000 and a decrease in both the basic and
diluted earnings per share by HK0.05 cent.

In addition, under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), the definition of non-
controlling interest has been changed. Specifically, under the revised standard,
non-controlling interest is defined as the equity in a subsidiary not attributable,

directly or indirectly, to a parent.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (continued)

The revised standard has specified that changes in ownership interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a gain or loss of control, such as the subsequent
purchase or sale by a parent of a subsidiary’s equity instruments in 2009, are
accounted for as equity transactions. Accordingly, the resulting cash flows are
classified as financing activity. This change has been applied retrospectively.
Specifically, in 2009, the amount paid for the acquisition of additional interest of
a subsidiary amounting to HK$5,420,000 is included in investing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, which has been reclassified from investing

to financing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows accordingly.

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17 Leases has
been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land. Before the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold land as
operating leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have
removed such a requirement. The amendments require that the classification
of leasehold land should be based on the general principles set out in HKAS
17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the amendments to
HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the classification of unexpired leasehold land as
at 1 January 2010 based on information that existed at the inception of the leases
and considered that the application of the amendments to HKAS 17 has no

material impact to the Group for the current and prior years.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(“HK Int 5”) clarifies that term loans that include a clause that gives the lender
the unconditional right to call the loans at any time (‘repayment on demand
clause™) should be classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The Group
has applied HK Int 5 for the first time in the current year. HK Int 5 requires

retrospective application.

The Group reassessed the repayment clauses of outstanding term loans as at 1
January 2009, 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 and considered that
the application of which had no material impact on the financial position of the

Group for the current or prior accounting periods.
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3. JEFWTET R AR A T A s B T ) 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
(1 E) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
O 23 A M 1 AR 2 R 2 T 6T S R AE BT HE ) New and Revised Standards and Interpretations Issued
e but not yet Effective
A A TSI IR L BR AN 30 L AL R AR R
BTRT M ASAE T HE I K T o

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised standards and

interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.

T Vs S S s VEE I TR BN Z T HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010!

(ERTA) T A s R 2
Bl

T Vs RS i 5 VEE I W — SR E HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets’
S79% (BRTA) By

T s IS A HE ) Gl T HA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
SO5%

Fi e gE129E EERIE — M EE HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets®
(ERTA) [m1 s

%‘Fﬁ FHERIZE 2498 By b iEs HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures’

TERJERE

i)

s arEl R 53298 i gies HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues®
(ERTA)

T (5 R B TS AR E TRz A HK(FRIC) - Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
RREREEE) -G RIS Requirement?
1458 (ERTA)

T ik (8] P BA A s DUKE 2 T B E 4 HK(FRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
RREREE) - ffie Instruments?

%1998

B e E=— e

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January

H—H GRAT#E ) 8 %G 2 AR 2011, as appropriate.
m F'ﬂi?ﬁ o

2 R FE-FELH - HBRZ AR 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
BEIHI AR AL o

3 W oE——FE—H—HsZ RG22 4F 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
BEHAI AL o

4 W oE—=ZF—H—HE BG4 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
FERARIAERL -

5 R FE - HBRZ AR 5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
FEWIHI AR AL o

6 W oE—-RETH—HZ B2 4E o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.

JEHAH] A=K -

7 e Wi Rl S P 3} s

BEWIRIE2 o

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

e
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

New and Revised Standards and Interpretations Issued
but not yet Effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009) introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements for

financial liabilities and for derecognition.

. Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent

accounting periods.

. In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for financial year ending 31 December 2013
and that the application of the new standard may impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Groups’ available-for-sale investment, which is currently stated at

cost less impairment and will be measured at fair value upon adoption.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

New and Revised Standards and Interpretations Issued
but not yet Effective (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
mainly deal with the measurement of deferred taxation for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
Investment Property. Based on the amendments, for the purposes of measuring
deferred taxation liabilities and deferred taxation assets for investment properties
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted in certain circumstances. The directors anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 12 may have a significant impact on deferred taxation
recognised for investment properties that are measured using the fair value

model.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
standards and interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong Stock Exchange of (the

“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for investment properties and certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and

operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date
of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal (except for subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the principles of merger

accounting), as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full

on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the

Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprebensive income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of the non-controlling
interests in the subsidiary’s equity were allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding

obligation and were able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries on or after
1 January 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwilD) and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled

entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries prior to
1 January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in the same manner
as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain
being recognised where appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries,
regardless of whether the disposals would result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration received and the

adjustment to the non-controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed

are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

. deferred taxation assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s share-
based payment transactions with share-based payment transactions of the
Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

at the acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January 2010 (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or another measurement basis required by another

standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would

have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase method. The cost
of the acquisition was measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition

were generally recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Contingent consideration was
recognised, if and only if, the contingent consideration was probable and could
be measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration were

recognised against the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as separate steps.
Goodwill was determined at each step. Any additional acquisition did not affect

the previously recognised goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statement items of
the combining entities or businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the combining entities

or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are consolidated using
the existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the continuation of

the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the

common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented
as if the entities or businesses had been combined at the end of the previous
reporting period or when they first came under common control, whichever is

shorter.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying

amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwilD) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent

that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

From 1 January 2010 onwards, upon disposal of an associate that results in the
Group losing significant influence over that associate, any retained investment
is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate attributable
to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a

reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not

related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided in the

normal course of business.

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business is

recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the properties which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, upon delivery, and collectability of

related receivables is reasonably assured;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the

properties are sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of

financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue from room rental, food and beverage sales and other ancillary services

in the hotel are recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.

Revenue from sale of goods (including furnitures and other inventories) are

recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Property management income and service income are recognised when services

are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below) are stated at cost less

subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress less their estimates residual
values, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing cost capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other

property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Building under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the release of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are available
for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition necessary for them to

be capable of operating in the manner intended by management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation including properties under construction for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction are
capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties under

construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
assets (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the

item is derecognised.

Inventory of properties is transferred from properties held for sale to investment
property when it is evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to
another party. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at

the date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract (including decoration contract) can
be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of reporting period, as measured
by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear
to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured

reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under trade receivables, other

receivables and deposits paid.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and building elements in a proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of

the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an

operating lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e., Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in

other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Government grant
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants

will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses that the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
taxation liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred taxation assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred taxation assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the

temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. Deferred taxation is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred taxation is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventory of properties
Inventory of properties includes properties under development and properties

held for sale which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The carrying value of inventory of properties comprises the leasehold interest in
land together with development expenditure, which includes construction costs

and borrowing costs capitalised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other inventories
Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

—F B
Annual Report 2010

129



130

A o 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4.

EEEHHBUR ()

SRl T H ()

B ()

BERR K RE MR IE

T USSR 2y A 1 R 1 855 30 4R A T AT
Il 5 kY 7R ) R 2 TR AT A B T o R T IR
TERBAZ - B B R ORI (B R E R K~
M RENORIE ~ BB — B A R [F R ML
T B B HERE BN R ROE B 6 ROARAT RS A7) BR
PR A 5 MG AR - I 1 AT T 2
B R AR MR (5L SO T <6 ol 9l s 4
ZHERIECR)

AT 4 5 4 o
AT {4k A il E T S AR S B R R AT
R ARG 2 S RE R (TR AP EE AR 2
SRVERE ) - SRR R & B R
M IERTA T A o

7 A I B 5 A EL PR BT SE TR
TS B A S A AR A IR e A AT
A0 2 A 1 BB AR e (BT SO <l
BUEERZ BFHEOR)

B Al L

SRV (AP EF RS 2 S EE RSN
TR AR B B TR A, o A 2B
PEBEUR R T R R < A T AR 9 A 2 — Tk
2 VR 5 | e Al 2 il R AR
TR SRR B -

AT AR RCE T E - A B AP E
R = ) e AR HORAS - T R 2 ol (B
ZFBLREE -

A SRS ET S o WEF BT
EE

o BT ABECH BT A R MR 5

o EIREHR S Pl s s R SO FLE
B W

o BB T e SO T A A

o TRIRABCR R G E B8
2% o

e
Annual Report 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from an associate, fellow subsidiaries, immediate
holding company and cash and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting

period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.



A o 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4.

EEGEBOR ()
ST ()

B ()

B Al AL ()

AT Al U (RS RO R - WAl
BN EZ G M5 - AL
HEATIRERTAG o BRI & 2 ZBLR (B
AL AR A R AR B~ AL R E
PN AT B 2 U A B
WA R A U)o e Ty SRR D B

LS AR IR ST S - WA H B
RO DR T L BN > 3B (B AR TE L 4
R Sl A% Y 2 AR T (LB A SR PR A e i B
AT AR ACH G i 1o BB M 2 22 8 o

WA B 2 S B R T 5 (L 1R A
¢ Y IR TR {1 B {0 < il 6728 0 BRLAT 7 355 [
A Al BUA AR 2 B 4 i B BB ] 2 22 R
B o A B BRI AN SR AR ]t 1]

B T R TR (L0 T A < il 8 L PG R
(LM PRl o e AR 3 A AR TE B
B o FUHRTH(EL T B (0 P B R AT 0L o SRR
Z MRTRT (B8 ) R AR AT R, o B SR Rl H At
JRE SR TECRIEASL 2 AR T i ] - A 3 AR MR B
JTE I 2 A T AR M ] 2 BT AR AR

LTS A FT B 2 BT S - WA
RO TERINMR D T 380 v % 8l
TERD A TR R L B S A B - S
R AR TR R PR AR A I o MBS [ el
I3 2 1 R T (A T 2 R ol el 2 B (L
Z SR o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or

loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets

of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries, amount due to immediate holding company, amounts due to
non-controlling interests and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends

on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily interest rate swap) as

hedges of the floating rate bank borrowing.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the entity documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with
its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging
relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of

the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when

the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss
accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial Guarantee Contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the
Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a
residual interest that does not result in the retention of substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and the Group retains control), the Group allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is

o longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Share options/awarded shares granted to employees after 7 November 2002 and

vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options and awarded shares granted at the grant date is expensed as
staff costs on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding

increase in employee share-based compensation reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options and the awarded shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to employee share-

based compensation reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in employee share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to retained

profits.

At the time when the awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in shares held for restricted share award scheme reserve and the
amount recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will be

transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November 2002, or granted

after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the consolidated
financial statements until such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in the profit or loss in respect of the value of options granted.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded
as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as
share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date

are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Retirement benefit contributions
Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an assessment of
the recoverability of trade and other receivables taking into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The allowance is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the assets and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Allowances are
applied to trade and other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of trade and other receivables is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of trade and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the years in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$910,997,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$359,236,000) (2009:
HK$822,613,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$349,661,000)).

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including those completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction, are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2010 at their fair value, details
of which are disclosed in Note 18. The fair value of the investment properties
was determined by reference to valuations conducted on these properties by
independent firms of property valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions may result in changes in the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties included in the consolidated
statement of financial position and corresponding adjustments to the changes in

fair value reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instrument not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. For derivative financial
instrument, assumptions are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for
specific features of the instrument. The fair value of the derivative financial
instrument as at 31 December 2010 was estimated at a liability of HK$152,499,000
(2009: HK$123,101,000).

Impairment loss on inventory of properties

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2010
are inventory of properties of HK$61,883,161,000 (2009: HK$42,918,048,000)
which are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Management
conducts assessments on the net realisable value of inventories by reference to
their estimated net selling price and other economic conditions of the markets in
which the Group’s properties are situated. If the actual selling prices of inventory
of properties are substantially less than expected due to an adverse market
condition or other factors, impairment loss on inventory of properties may result.

No impairment loss was made in the current and prior year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and equipment with respect
to depreciation, management estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial experiences over the
usage of property, plant and equipment and also by reference to the relevant
industrial norm. If the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment is
less than the original estimate useful lives due to changes in commercial and
technological environment, such difference will impact the depreciation charge
for the remaining useful life. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of

property, plant and equipment was HK$3,299,277,000 (2009: HK$3,050,933,000).

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2010, a deferred taxation asset of HK$482,281,000 (2009:
HK$471,756,000) in relation to allowance for doubtful debts, write down of
inventory of properties, impairment loss of available-for-sale investments, the
provision for Land Appreciation Tax and certain amount of tax losses has been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred taxation asset has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$517,591,000
(2009: HK$442,852,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred taxation asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are more or less than expected, a
material recognition or reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise, respectively
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such

changes takes place.
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6. Wz 6. REVENUE
IS FRAE A B E T BB 2 - A A ~ #2314t Revenue represents income from sale of developed properties, rental income,
Wy S5 T B AH B IR GG ~ T )E &89 ) S dR ik o provision of property management and related services, hotel operations and
TGRS Fr R » A SR B AS AR B 2 U ds provision of construction and decoration services for the year. An analysis of the
AR Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
) T BTN
BT T T 7T
HK$000 HK$000
(#41))
(Restated)
HECEEYE Sale of developed properties 22,586,519 14,450,366
A A Rental income 1,211,318 909,323
) 2E A5 B B B AR S Property management and related services 500,344 382,820
T I A Hotel operations 352,149 44,423
AR~ SEEIRS S A Construction, decoration services and others
HELH Construction contract 329,013 164,387
AR Decoration services 382,529 385,104
AL B3 R g s Furniture manufacturing and sales 326,327 302,632
Htbs Others 40,359 11,182
25,729,158 16,650,237
7. SEER 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
R L KRBT A A Rl g > /) Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, being the chief
B PLRH BN R PR S B T R operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
WIEE -~ WIEROR I - R A - R - R of performance focused on the segment of sale of developed properties, property
MRS B A AT 8T o 055 8 AR S AR % investments and management, hotel operations, construction, decoration services
T s B e i ) B S 9 A B Ll 0 and others. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its segment
kL2 BLE o information under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

138 L TR AR

Annual Report 2010



A U 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. EERL G

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

(a) ﬁﬁ[&ﬁﬁ&%m (a) Segment revenues and results
A B [ 42 ] AR Ay 2 A B SE AR
TR o reportable segment.
BE —FE-FE—H=1—HILERE Year ended 31 December 2010

LY ESi'd HE - s

S Lo I R HoAl

[ %Jﬁ 4@ % Property Construction,

Sale of investments G5 5848 decoration
developed and Hotel services At
properties  management operations and others Total

T T i W T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
LI&IE\L Revenue
AN External sales 22,586,519 1,711,662 352,149 1,078,828 25,729,158
ES Result
IFEESRS Segment result 7,983,636 783,961 (119,332) 30,415 8,678,680
KA B A A Unallocated other income 530,216
BEYEZ N THE Gain on changes in fair value of
BB investment properties 2,947,302
ﬂiﬁﬁﬂfiﬂj Unallocated expenses (285,313)
W?{ﬁj%% UNGIE 35 Share of results of associates 48,053
AR Finance costs (304,445)
I A0 i i Profit before taxation 11,614,493
—F B
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7. HYEYORH

() ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ&%» (#8)
&§¥¥¥ﬂ$+;ﬂ:+*5¢$§

AR BLHARA

BeEYIE 2 ATH
H B ah

RO BLST

R A T ) 2 A
74l

B Al i A

Revenue

External sales

Result

Segment result

Unallocated other income

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Unallocated expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Segment revenues and results (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2009

LY ESi'd HE - s

S Lo e R HoAtl

E%’é@% % Property Construction,

Sale of investments 5 58 decoration
developed and Hotel services Hast
properties  management operations and others Total

BT T T T oo BT T T

HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(FE51) (FE51) (E%1)) (FE51) (E%1)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
14,450,366 1,292,143 44,423 863,305 16,650,237
4,126,565 573,260 (86,950) 19,905 4,632,780
249,462
2,362,270
(101,112)
41,481
(154,389)
7,030,492

PR G W) SRR A B A - R
%ﬂﬁﬂ$%@ﬂWE%ﬁ%ﬂZ@ﬁﬂ%ﬁ
7] o M HRSEATE 25 7 ST MR < i Pl e A 2
MR ST S T JF AL R H BN AR T
KRB RBUR 2 WA B S - BB 3EAT(H
SEE) ~ MEATEURA - RS - EALBE LS
FIZERT B BT o B0 At B IR BT B R BLRT
AT ) S PSR R A T 5K o

.
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Except for investment properties which were reviewed based on cost, the
accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in Note 4. Segment result represents the profit
carned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation of incomes or
expenses which are not recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group’s
operating performance, fair value changes on investment properties, central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of results of associates and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.



A U 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. REERHEE)
b)) EEEMAM

PG E
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assels

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by reportable segment:

BT T BT T T TT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(FE51) (E41))
(Restated) (Restated)
Vi b<y:3 Segment assets
HECEEYE Sale of developed properties 82,530,185 57,620,710 49,597,186
LE Ve -9)&:=8: ] Property investments and management 16,486,279 14,375,153 11,066,681
T £ Hotel operations 2,706,153 2,676,710 1,081,481
AR~ SEEIRS S A Construction, decoration services
and others 2,731,769 904,926 852,225
I HE Total segment assets 104,460,386 75,577,499 62,597,573
BBV EN T ES S Changes in fair value of investment
properties 7,057,034 4,109,732 1,747,462
KA Unallocated 14,120,455 21,499,732 6,719,421
AR Consolidated assets 125,637,875 101,186,963 71,064,456

P AR IRER B B Sy WL M AT R

- THEEESEK *’é‘éﬁﬁ M
JRE i — T g 2 R AR ~ R
AR Z RS uﬁjﬁilﬁﬁﬁ il
R4 < EEN Y FA|
B B AR PE A R EROH - AR
T~ Bl RARAT & A B H A A 3
BRI o N BUE L 2 B
WIS 28 h T B e SR R AL
I RUSASFHE o

AN

TR PORE TR T W R R
AT A AR R B o PR E B
TR e R A S A A A A AR 2 B R
A OGS S0 2 AR B R

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than amount
due from an associate, interests in associates, deferred taxation
assets, available-for-sale investments, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and immediate holding company, taxation prepaid,
cash and bank balances and other corporate assets. The
investment properties included in segment assets are stated at cost

when assessed by the chief operating decision maker.

Segment liabilities

The chief operating decision maker mainly reviews the segment assets
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
analysis of the Group’s liabilities is not regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker and hence, the relevant information is not

presented accordingly.
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7. SEER(E) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(o) HAhsr¥agk (c) Other segment information
SR 2010
LY ESi'd HE - s
5 Lo I R HoAl
[ %Jﬁ % % Property Construction,
Sale of investments 5 58 decoration
developed and Hotel services Hast
properties  management operations and others Total

BT T T T oo BT T T

HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
AFEAE T MR A B0 2H  Amount included in the measure of
EEGHEZ &% segment profit or segment assets:
i ié* Capital additions* 493,603 1,039,539 115,440 52,129 1,700,711
e Depreciation 37,857 61,184 136,116 7,518 242,675
—“FEFIE 00
L/ESia -y R A E
SHE R s K A
[ %é" E#@ % Property Construction,
Sale of investments I s f@_% decoration
developed and Hotel services st
properties  management operations and others Total

BT T T T T BT T T

HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
(E41)) (FE51) (E41) (E5) (&41)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
ALFETE /506 A 8738 Amount included in the measure of
féﬁ%’r%iﬁ%ﬁ : segment profit or segment assets:
I Capital additions* 171,107 1,096,901 1,665,641 579,453 3,513,102
Pres Depreciation 47,516 58,605 63,336 5,912 175,369
* T T R AT RE RS 2 R Rk * Capital additions include addition to property, plant and equipment, investment
ﬁg%%u&ﬁ{‘fﬁgr KIH o properties and prepaid lease payments in both years.
R TR AR
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7. SEER(ED
(d) A Bt 2 sk

(e)

®

ARSI B H T i R 2 Wi o
Wit B REG ©

B A S5 ) 4B 9 909 M i 35 T 7€ [ A
B AS G ER REWE S - 5
Ah > 2 42 ] #E i 009% 1 I I B = (BR
TG T L RO G R A )
20,281,813,000 JC ( —~FF JUE « ¥
21,147,695,0007% ) IR i HH B0 79 b > il
LM ST 408 2 ) i b SR o 2 SRR

Fp A NI 40 B — 2 A AR 4R B A AT A
B EERH10% LA b > WA SR 80 A g B K
Foo

8. At

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(D

(e)

®

Revenue from major products and services
The analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major products and services is

set out in Note 6.

No geographical segment analysis is shown as more than 90% of the
Group’s revenue are derived from activities in, and from customers
located in the Chinese Mainland and more than 90% of the carrying
values of the Group’s non-current assets excluding financial instruments
and deferred taxation assets amounting to HK$29,281,813,000 (2009:
HK$21,147,695,000) are situated in the Chinese Mainland.

The Group does not have major customers as no single customer

contributes more than 10% of the Group’s turnover of respective year.

OTHER INCOME

BT T T TT
HK$000 HK$000
(E41))
(Restated)
[FEE 5,1 ik V7 Exchange gain, net 101,472 4,420
SRATRLE A Bank interest income 166,336 104,891
3 Gl = /N O e - Imputed interest income in respect of amount due
FLE WA from an associate 11,401 9,233
B HERG (BRE) Government grants (Note) 144,172 94,696
JHRE M R S Lt R ] P T 8 £ 9 [ Reversal of allowance for trade and other receivables - 979
8 it — [V T G 2 R £ 2 P ol Discount on acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary - 1,696
HiAs Others 106,835 33,547
530,216 249,462
BRFRE o 5% 4 R B v B A A T SR R R A2 Note:  The amount represents mainly the compensations, subsidies and refunds of various

ZHAE -~ FERG SO BB IR o

taxes as incentives by the government authorities in various cities of the Chinese

Mainland.
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0. %%@H% 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
AT AT 1582 (ZEESUE - 138)EFH 2 The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 15 (2009: 13) directors were as
[ S U follows:
i &t
TER X ki i i Rk Wan rE Rl ERY 33K
“F-FE I ik [ Ding Du li TH Andrew Ho W KmTo shi ik Thang  Frederick Total
210 WangYin  Jiang Wei ~ Yan Biao JieMin  Wen Min FuZwo  WangShi Y.Yan  HinNgai Xiang Dong Peter  ShanBo WeiBin ~ HaiPeng MaSiHang 210

BT BT BT ENTE #RTr BT #NTE #ETR BT #Tx MR BT BT #hTr # ERTR
HRSO0 BRSO HKSUO0 HKSO)  HKSO0  HKSUOD HKSOM  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSOM  HKSO0  HKSODD  HKSOM  HKSOD SO  HKSOD

53 Fees
AfrEs Execuive directors 8 - - - - - - - - 8 - - - - - 160
iz Non-execuive directors - 80 8 80 8 80 - - - - - F] 40 E] - 520
BUFRiES  Independent
non-executive directors - - - - - - 160 160 160 - 160 - - - 160 800
80 80 80 80 80 80 160 160 160 80 160 4 40 4 160 1480
b Other emoluments
FEIAMEN  Salaries and other benefits 2469 - - - - - - - - 2158 - - - - - 4627
IR Contributon to retrement
i benefit schemes 12 - - - - - - - - 12 - - - - - 244
UECRES Share-based payments 7764 - - - - - - - - 544 - - - - - 13207
MWaks Total emoluments 103% - - - - - - - - i) - - - - - 18078
RpE A it
BEA TER O HXR O BEE Bk fER Wu Wi “EENE
“ERNE Fik T fid4 F Liu Ding Du Li th Andrew Ho Xiang Kam To Total
2009 Songlin ~ WangYin  Jiang Wei Yan Biao Yan Jie Jie Min Wen Min FuZuo  WangShi Y. Yan Hin Ngai Dong Peter 2009
BhETE  ENTE  EWTc BRI BETx Tk T bRt #ETx #Tx #WTc BT #Tx ETx
HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
i3 Fees
YiEs Executive directors 70 70 - - - - - - - - - 0 - 20
FaEs Non-executive directors = = 70 70 70 0 0 0 - - _ _ _ o
B fES Independent non-executive
directors - - - - - - - - 120 120 120 - 120 480
70 0 70 70 70 70 70 70 120 120 120 0 120 1,110
Hims Other emoluments
FEPBAMAR  Salaries and other benefits = 2867 - - - - - - - - - 2565 - 543
BRI  Contribution to retirement
benefit schemes - 119 - - - - = - - - - 107 - 26
PLIES Share-based payments - - - - - - - = = = = = = =
MeaE Total emoluments - 2986 - - - - - - - - - 2672 - 5,658
BREEE AR o MR SR S (BRI Note:  During the year, none of the directors have waived the directors” emoluments (2009:
) o IR S IR A OB S A AR 28 W TR U None). None of the directors have received any inducement pay for joining or upon
BUTAT48 4 o joining the Company.

L LA AR
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10. EBW4& 10. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
REB L EEHMA LQIERL (ZEE R Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two (2009:
AE L W44 AN T E% REN LS A w1 two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
§E9 o HER =4 (ZFFJUE - =) ALEZM disclosures in Note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2009:
Bt I three) individuals were as follows:

T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
e S HAth 4w A Salaries and other benefits 5,952 7,467
AR ARAE AT E K Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 316 222
DA A A5 33k Share-based payments 13,212 -
19,480 7,689
W2 4AF R~ ﬁﬂ,. Their emoluments were within the following bands:

i 8 A%

No. of employees

H#42,000,001 T E #EH2,500,0000C  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 -

H#42,500,001 6 E #EH53,000,0000C  HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 2
#E#53,000,0007C 24 | Over HK$3,000,000 3 _
3 3

11. WHEEH 11. FINANCE COSTS

W T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
(FE51)
(Restated)
5E3AT§U%§F3 SR 2 SRAT Interest on bank loans wholly repayable:
FHZFE
TAER Within five years (833,892) (707,022)
HAEE Over five years (272,141) (7,049)
“a fEAE A Total borrowing cost (1,106,033) (714,071)
W R - RRERVETE Less: Amount capitalised in properties under development,
YRR LR TTEAR Y properties under construction held for investment and
x| construction in progress 801,588 559,682
(304,445) (154,389)

SE R
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12. Fif3FipE % 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

T T 7T
HK$000 HK$000
(FE51)
(Restated)
ARAERERLIA Current tax:
HE B Hong Kong Profits Tax (534) (229)
2] ﬁ%ﬁﬁ vy x) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (1,752,440) (949,679)
(1,752,974 (949,908)
v i) + H B (E R ([ BB A ) Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in the PRC (1,711,422) (752,134)
PEAEFLIE ¢ Deferred taxation:
ARAEFE (B E23) Current year (Note 23) (811,363) (583,078)
(4,275,759 (2,285,120)
A A B 1Y 7 v ) 15 B0 YA Akt I S s ) 1) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
16.5%%1HE - for both years.
WRIESRIR —FEELFE=H N H A FEL Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax law (the “EIT Law”) and its detailed
S H S HAG 2 rp A 2E T i ik ([ 2 implementation rules promulgated on 16 March 2007 and 6 December 2007
PRI ) R ELE M o BRI A A E respectively, for those subsidiaries without preferential tax rates, the new tax
HBLRZ S AT - R g2 rate for domestic and foreign enterprises was unified at 25% and had become
AR EEHR EENE—H—H effective from 1 January 2008. For those subsidiaries enjoying a preferential tax
,ﬁ?jﬁ#jﬁ’ng% > A IE A R R 2 rate, the new tax rate would increase from 15% over 5 years to 25% as a result of
s B R DUR IR B 2 B RN AN the grandfathering provisions.

EElS% B I 45 25% o

—B TR
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12. FiBHEE % (48) 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
A AL T AR B Sz B 4 A TR WA 85 28 T S R B T The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
Wi A 2 EEE R taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:
) T N
i T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
(E41))
(Restated)
B0 Al ¥4s 1) Profit before taxation 11,614,493 7,030,492
FEARIBLR25% (ZFE I © 25%)  Tax charge at domestic tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%)

R BLIH P S (2,903,623) (1,757,623)
JREA B8 ) S48 2 B S R 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 12,013 10,370
SR B S 2 B s 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose (163,980) (72,002)
HEERRBLA 2 BT R 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 55,936 12,142
KRR R JE G 18 2 B R 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (41,638) (59,865)
B AN AR R B I s 1R Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 11,887 44,222
TR B BURGEHE 2 TSR Income taxed at concessionary rate 24,280 68,750
M‘TE/ NGIENGIE a4 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 275 (198)

R AR AR 2 BLIE R Recognition of tax losses previously not recognised 12,657 33,184
A (R Land appreciation tax (1,711,422) (752,134)
- HhIEER 2 B R Tax effect of land appreciation tax 427,856 188,034
ARAE T BT A5 B 32 Income tax expense for the year (4,275,759) (2,285,120)

— R
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13. W) 13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
| 20
T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(FE51)
(Restated)
A A IR A 2L FORR Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
R Directors’ emoluments
i Fees 1,480 1,110
B > HABPN S SR AR I A Salaries, other emoluments and retirement benefit cost 4,871 5,658
DA 3k Share-based payments 13,207 -
HoAth B TRA Other staff costs
4 &;E‘:ﬁfﬂgﬁu Salaries and other benefits 773,861 464,195
RIREF A (N EHES B EHM A Reticement benefit cost (excluding amount included in
ZHIE) directors’ emoluments) 66,018 62,848
PUBAR AT OG5 25 4G 2 Share-based payments (excluding amount included in
FIH) directors’ emoluments) 181,186 3,033
B L AR5 Total staff costs 1,040,623 536,844
W TERER Y - FRERE Less: Amount capitalised in the properties under development,
TERYEREE TREBAEA properties under construction held for investment
PR and construction in progress (290,931 (140,291)
749,692 396,553
THERR 4 B 3 2 AE B A Cost of inventories recognised as expense 12,523,935 9,618,520
% BT 4 Auditor’s remuneration 1,600 1,510
fifk ok TELAS L BRI Release of prepaid lease payments 8,249 3,067
0 R A R K S LAt B WS B T Impairment losses recognised on trade and other receivables
R 2 B E R 620 43,183
WRTE— A 7 R A A Y Impairment losses recognised on deemed capital
R 2 e s R contribution in an associate 172 50,057
LE N Y & il Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 242,675 175,368
Y ~ R MG 2 R Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,350 1,156
ST A B BLE (B 5 AJELL Share of tax of associates (included in share of results of
= g/NCIE S associates) (15,968) (12,244)
WASFEA LI #4518 - and after crediting:
ﬁfg LE AN L Gross rental income from investment properties 1,211,318 909,323
7 ﬁWEE%ﬂ%lﬂU\Z&% YIZEZ Less: Direct operating expenses from investment properties that
EIERE R generated rental income during the year (142,904) (108,427)
1,068,414 800,896
BRHGE = A B — B A R 40 1,592,449,000 Note:  Profit of the Company for 2010 amounted to approximately HK$1,592,449,000 (2009:
T (“RELIUE  #EH5637,335,0007T) © HK$637,335,000).

e
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14. KRB 14. DIVIDENDS
i T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
ENHER B IR Z S Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:
TR AR ] — R 9 Sl 2010 Interim — HK9.5 cents (2009: 2009 Interim HKS.4 cents)
ZERNF - ZEFIE per share
s 440D 470,595 271,578
CRBJEARY-E B 1831 2009 Final — HK18.3 cents (2009: 2008 Final HK8.3 cents)
ZEERIF - ZEFFI)NE per share
ﬂ<§Hﬁ§ﬁ¥8.3ﬂh) 920,492 391,373
R4 (i PR R R . 65 3 g 1 B /b Additional final dividend for prior year due to exercise of
Jﬁ%z%ﬁ‘:*ﬁﬁ id5 share options and placement of new shares 1,175 25,543
1,392,262 688,494
RIS, Dividend proposed:
AR AR R 1A 5L Final dividend proposed for the year
TR AR R — 21,50l 2010 Final - HK21.5 cents (2009: 2009 Final HK18.3 cents) per
AR - ZERTIUE share
AR 18.31) 1,158,527 920,492

HRARRMEE - F—FF T+ A =1+—H
A4 B A A 300 S S B s T 2 51 (=
FENF  BEEZFNFETA=T—HIE
AT B 1) A U 18 LA S A I s 18 3 1) 5 HE
JEUIEE S RO IO S B SRR kvt > Oy IR o

The final dividend of HK21.5 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: final dividend of HK18.3 cents per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009) has been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming

general meeting.

— R
Annual Report 2010

149



150

A U 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. FRAEF 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN TR NJEAS B B A S 2 R 4% DA The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
HiEstE ordinary owners of the Company is based on the following data:
T T 7T
HK$°000 HK$000
(#41))
(Restated)
el Earnings
FAVERTA A B A B M 2 A 2 298 Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings
(A2 mIEA A JRE A 4 79 T 1)) per share (profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company) 6,026,470 4,303,757
Jiligfis 14E| Number of shares
FVERT B AR R A 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
IR 3495 e i for the purpose of basic earnings per share 5,030,169,590 4,886,605,294
DA LV 0 5 ) 5 2 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
— M — Share options 12,945,886 21,744,572
— SEJEcAR — R T — Awarded shares — unvested 12,027,047 -
FAVERTA A B4 1 2 81 22 e Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Rk Stilie (¢=] for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 5,055,142,523 4,908,349,866
TR 43 S AR ek AR 2 D BRI The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown above has been arrived
PERE A BT 5T ) 2 A5 F T2 ) R PR 2 ] 1 ik at after deducting the effect on 21,681,000 shares (2009: 23,958,000 shares) held
& FEA BRA R 221,681,000 By ( —FF by BOCI - Prudential Trustee Limited, a trustee company for the Company’s
JUAE: 23,958,0003&%’{%\) -2 T 5"52': Restricted Share Award Scheme.
— R TR
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16. W3€ ~ W Kt

Statements

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

iNEC/E S
%45 - 1%1&
Jei%
Leasehold
TG T 4 2 improvements, HHL TEETR
Hotel 7[‘;? furniture and Motor  Construction el ﬂ‘
properties Buildings equipment vehicles in progress Total
T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E31) (E31) (E31) (FE5) ()
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(BT
(Note)
COST
é:?? HE—H—H (J&51) At 1 January 2009 (originally stated) = 901,083 347,225 61,232 1,557,581 2,867,121
A stk ES) Merger accounting restatement - 61,482 20,837 8,584 393,452 484,355
R FFJUAE—H—H (EF) At 1 January 2009 (Restated) = 962,565 368,062 69,816 1,951,033 3,351,476
S Currency realignment - (135) (52) ©) (291) (487)
NE Additions = 49,535 115,026 6,892 986,625 1,158,078
L Transfer 1,472,028 = 537,287 182 (2,009,497) =
W B — [T A g 2 W) P Acquired on acquisition of
. a subsidiary - - 190 799 = 989
BN BEREE Reclassified to investment properties
(Pit5E18) (Note 18) - - - - (648,815) (648,815)
Disposal - (31,242) (14,594) (3,442) - (49,278)
REEENEF"H=1+—H At 31 December 2009 (Restated)

(F51) 1,472,028 980,723 1,005,919 74,238 279,055 3,811,963
R EEES Currency realignment 51,118 34,058 34,932 2,539 17,027 139,674
INE Additions = 79,289 48,766 27,235 227,041 382,331
LLEr3 Transfer - 63,151 - - (63,151) -
e Disposal - - (13,877) (8,291) - (22,168)

ZE—THFEF T H=+—H At 31 December 2010 1,523,146 1,157,221 1,075,740 95,721 459,972 4,311,800
2 *ﬂ‘ﬁ% ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
R_FERIFE—H—H (F3]) A1 January 2009 (originally stated) - 344,675 220,748 27,269 - 592,692

ﬁﬁﬂfiﬁﬂ Merger accounting restatement - 5,837 5,366 1,837 - 13,040

I EZJUE—H—H (FEF) At1 January 2009 (Restated) - 350,512 226,114 29,106 - 605,732
?%I{E;ﬂg Currency realignment = (48) (3D (4) - (83)
ANAE FE T Provided for the year - 80,328 85,765 9,275 - 175,368
R Eliminated on disposal = (3,993) (13,367) (2,627) = (19,987)
REEENEF"H=1+—H At 31 December 2009 (Restated)

(F51) = 426,799 298,481 35,750 - 761,030
R EES Currency realignment 404 14,417 10,402 940 - 26,163
ARAE BEREA Provided for the year 71,637 32,891 124,563 13,584 - 242,675
R IR 8 Eliminated on disposal - - (11,586) (5,759) - (17,345)
WEZFE—REFZH =+ —H Ar31 December 2010 72,041 474,107 421,860 44,515 - 1,012,523
EE CARRYING VALUES

? F4E+ " H=+—H At 31 December 2010 1,451,105 683,114 653,880 51,206 459,972 3,299,277
REFEENAEFH=1+—H At 31 December 2009 (Restated)

(&51) 1,472,028 553,924 707,438 38,488 279,055 3,050,933

AZEFIFE—A—H (FEF) A1 January 2009 (Restated) = 612,052 141,948 40,711 1,951,033 2,745,744
FffaE - TAUAE Jp =B — AR 450 F 5 (R 2 Note:  The amount for the year ended 2009 and 2010 mainly represented the hotel properties

—?

JEHIZE -

e
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16. #13& ~ W Kbt (4
@E%%&@$mm¢@mmsﬁmmu¢%
FLAHA 2 T4 -

Lt - R BRI A (BRTE AL TS0 2
PUR Al A AR BT DL AT

TEVERAET  20B40E S EHRT
R AR e
HEYERE - 55
ELYE i
TR S4F

17. FEAHEEHKIE

A B 1 2 TR BRI v B A o Sl A

WHATEA © TR RKIE S 39 3 S04EFRL i

AR IR R B o A4 BE R bR AR 2 T 120,183,000
ZEZJUE - #11,861,00000) > HAp

111,934,000 76 ( —FFJUAE © ##8,794,000

J0) AL AERTREAR > 5EAWE - W

B A o

SEFAAER
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Hotel properties and buildings are located in the Chinese Mainland and are

situated on land held under medium-term leases.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis with the following estimated

useful lives:

Hotel properties and buildings 20 — 40 years or over the unexpired term of
lease, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements, furniture 5 years
and equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments are situated in the Chinese Mainland and
held under medium-term leases. The prepaid lease payments are released over
their lease terms of 39 to 50 years on a straight-line basis. The release for the
year is HK$20,183,000 (2009: HK$11,861,000), of which HK$11,934,000 (2009:
HK$8,794,000) is capitalised in construction in progress included in property,

plant and equipment.
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REW¥ 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TG Investment
Completed properties
investment under =t
properties construction Total
-]
T T BT T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AFAE FAIR VALUE
W EENF—H—H At 1 January 2009 9,998,305 - 9,998,305
R EEIAE—H— HEHE Reclassified from construction in progress
SERIFEAMIZE ~ R Bkt 2 for investment properties previously
BB AT TR (K ska) included in property, plant and
equipment at 1 January 2009 (Note a) - 648,815 648,815
W EBRIE—H—HE#H 08 Reclassified from prepaid lease payments
2z AR B EOE (B aEa) for land at 1 January 2009 (Note ) - 238,274 238,274
R EENFE—H—H ﬁi\fﬁﬁﬁ Increase in fair value at 1 January 2009
R TERS M recognised in profit or loss - 1,093,921 1,093,921
A WA Currency realignment (780) 2,384 1,604
NE Additions 63,080 2,234,290 2,297,370
HHR BRI AYEGLE Reclassified from properties under
Z B 2 (D) development included in inventory of
properties (Note b) - 1,262,854 1,262,854
B 5 FERR 2 AT (B 3 fin Increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss 306,476 894,665 1,201,141
A 2 PR AR W 2 Transfer to completed investment
properties 1,089,469 (1,089,469) =
RE_EENET A =1+—H At 31 December 2009 11,456,550 5,285,734 16,742,284
LR Currency realignment 521,157 181,005 702,162
wE Additions - 1,316,994 1,316,994
HRNBEIAYEGE Reclassified from properties held for sale
ZFHEH B (Matc) included in inventory of properties
(Note ¢©) 341,446 - 341,446
AR 5 TR A T 1 i Increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss 2,078,847 771,335 2,850,182
AR 2 VR AR B 2 Transfer to completed investment
properties 2,110,812 (2,110,812) -
N=E—FFEF A =+—H At 31 December 2010 16,508,812 5,444,256 21,953,008

T TR 153
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e

. BEWE (E
BT -

a. RZBFAE—A—H > R RAFE G
HERNE 40 R E W | 27T > BULEE A
3 MR R DR EY E R
S M R S 43 (1 5 1 648,815,000 70 A K
A b T A AR B T 1Y i 238,274,000
JG BB AR AW E -

b. & KA G T W 45 R e R 3
W o M EZZ/FE+ A=+ —H8 > fit
%ﬁ&mmwﬂkﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm@
AR A G 2 2 A e AT S
FUEE AR o R ZFTILE > BREE
A 5 RS AR A B 2 AR TRLERZ K
O R B EERREYE - EEHIHE
B A B A S A B A T
Jn&y it 67,208,000 7T

c. R AR T E TR R WG
AN N FT S AT - RNE S ¥ h
LE RS RS L E I
H o B & F a5 7% i gy i wasm 2
OSBRI A H97,120,0007C ©
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A2 P SIf A ) 22 2 ST %%E%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ A
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JE

ZEEYE - SEFEFRLEEMYE
Sy Bk

CiiAYE — S2FBARAONEARLIRA
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RV — S2FEFLULRECYEZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

a. At 1 January 2009, the building and land elements of properties under construction
for future use as investment properties amounting to HK$648,815,000 included
in property, plant and equipment and HK$238,274,000 included in prepaid lease
payments for land respectively were reclassified to investment properties pursuant to

the application of the amendments to HKAS 40 Investment Property.

b. This amount represents the portion of investment properties under construction
in residential and commercial complex. As at 31 December 2008, the cost of these
investment properties under construction was not reliably determinable and was
included in inventory of properties as the residential and commercial complex was
mainly developed for sales purpose. In 2009, the cost attributable to these investment
properties under construction could be reliably determinable and accordingly the
amount was reclassified to investment properties under construction. On the date of
reclassification, the amount included an increase in fair value in respect of investment
properties under construction of approximately HK$67,208,000.

c. During the year, the Group has changed the use of certain properties, of which has
commenced the operating lease to outsiders. Accordingly, it results in a transfer from
inventories of property to investment properties. On the date of reclassification, the
amount includes an increase in fair value upon transfer to completed investment
properties of approximately HK$97,120,000.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties on the dates of
reclassification, at 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and 2010 have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as of those dates by an independent
qualified professional valuers who are not connected with the Group. The
valuers have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the valuers on

the following basis:

Vacant properties — by reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties in the similar locations

Occupied properties — by reference to capitalised income to be derived
from the existing tenancies and the reversionary
income potential of the properties or, where
appropriate, by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the

similar locations and conditions

Properties under — by reference to market evidence of transaction
construction prices for similar properties in the similar locations,
less estimated costs to completion and investors’

return

The investment properties are situated in the Chinese Mainland under medium
term leases. All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land, in respect of the
investment properties, held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified as investment properties and are accounted
for using the fair value model.
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19. BB AT ZRESS 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
JE L i A TG 2 A Cost of unlisted investments in associates 82,064 74,766 74,777
JFEAG YA v A > 2 HNBR Share of post-acquisition profits,
BB net of dividend received 626,669 593,900 656,322
708,733 668,666 731,099
AL BN B 2 PR GRS A T The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set
out below:
T T T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
B MY Total assets 2,249,030 2,172,758 1,695,948
B AR Total liabilities (794,704) (784,547) (385,624)
R Net assets 1,454,326 1,388,211 1,310,324
7S 4 [E AL B 5 N RS TR Group’s share of net assets of associates 708,733 668,666 731,099
& Revenue 191,791 167,166 337,937
A A i ] Profit for the year 93,404 82,903 203,925
AP N AR 2 [ A A ) Group’s share of profits of associates
Pyl for the year 48,053 41,481 97,094
RS BN R 2 BEG SR B 45 (o) - Particulars of the Group’s associates are set out in Note 45(¢).
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20.

21.

JRE WL — [T 5 A R KO
ﬁ&*ﬁ%‘&ﬂ P B AR~ 0 L ]

W RATEFRSL > LENAREG
mﬁ%%*é*%+ WA R > %3E
FEFB A o S I B A AR A B R
EFNER F55% (ZFFIUE 1 5%) o FFN - A
{H W G B 19 172,00000 ( ZFE LA« i
50,057,0007C ) W HLAE A — I 0 7] 2 A
¥ HE AMEHREE RN B ER - AREHE
TE WIAR DRI 2 =)0 B BOIR DT A BB A w1
FREE > Wad Byl WK 0 75 2 i — ]
Tk 0 P 3R TE B A

B R

20.

21.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and does not
have fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the amount will not be repayable in the next twelve months after the end of
the reporting period, and accordingly, it is shown as non-current. The effective
imputed interest rate per annum on the non-current balance is 5% (2009: 5%).
During the year, the amount of fair value adjustment of HK$172,000 (2009:
HK$50,057,000) is deemed as the capital contribution in an associate, which has
been fully impaired and charged to profit or loss. The Group assessed the credit
quality of the associate regularly based on its financial position and considered
no allowance for the amount due from an associate should be provided at the

end of the reporting period.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

T T BT T T 7T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
CIEE RSy ok Available-for-sale investments comprise:
rP I b ASRE S Unlisted equity securities in
£i79 %N the Chinese Mainland, at cost 442,942 441,592 454,352
I AR Less: Impairment losses (253,980) (247,119) (247,147)
188,962 194,473 207,205

PR P BB AR 45 A TG IR TIT 355 00 S A L5 2
DR Z AL FT R LR > DIBOR A R 50 5
LTI SER AP WO AT A B
ot AR A DB o (B

ARAERE 5 AR Hrp—TEIE bR E 2 1
AR T [ 58,500,000 70 ( W EE FLAE ¢
#58,215,00070) °

AGE BT AT S R L i R
B RSL A SR B I A R T 5 T 3R Ll
WA IR -

e
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The above available-for-sale investments were measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period since the equity investments do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that the fair value cannot be reliably measured.

In the current year, the Group’s investment cost in one of the unlisted equity
investments had been refunded in the amount of HK$8,500,000 (2009:
HK$8,215,000).

The Group’s remaining available-for-sale investments represent mainly certain
unlisted equity securities held by a property investment subsidiary established in

Beijing and Hainan.
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22. FRHEEREZ O£ 22.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS

T T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
A B 2 CATRT 4 (it aka) Deposit paid for an equity investment
(Note a) 519,229 = =
T RS - b (5 R RE 2 EATRT 42 Deposits paid for acquisition of
(BftiED) land use rights (Note b) 1,957,740 - -
2,476,969 - -
W? Notes:
a. RN o AR SE [ B AR BN T ST B IR R 0 a. During the year, the Group entered into a provisional share transfer agreement with

AR ICHE BB AR B A RA A (T L
T 45 1) 500% MIERE - B Q1 B N R
1,008,180,000 JG ( AH & i #5 5 1,184,793,000
J6) o BipAS S — MR R AR > E L
TR TR ETS -

TSR > B AR 4 A R 452,454,000 70
(FH A W5 1519,229,00000) > 18 T &5 ik I
B B R 403 57 By EEASRYE o TIN5 5
M T — A SER, o

b. A B ) A AR R o b I ) b b
HE RV 40 Wy 2E 58 J T S AN B 30 40 3KJE o
B RE WIR A EAPS AR B L b
RERE o g EEHE R WORE - =M A
Py AT A5t o RE R T A A BT 4 2 s
1,957,740,0007C ©

23, BIERIEE E(AH) 23.

ARG MBRIER Z BINME - A TEERIA
B R AMO T UHESH] o« T A HREIARN
IEIEBLIAKS BR I -

an outsider to acquire 50% equity interest of |- £ 34 FRA R ¢ L") at a
cash consideration of RMB1,008,180,000 (equivalent to HK$1,184,793,000). | #3##5 is
a property development company engaged in the property development business in

Shanghai.

At the end of the reporting period, deposit of RMB452,454,000 (equivalent to
HK$519,229,000) had been paid and the remaining balance was disclosed as capital

commitment as set out in Note 40. The acquisition is expected to complete in 2011.

b. The amount represents the partial payments made by the Group for the acquisition of
land use rights in the Chinese Mainland for the development of investment properties.
The land use right certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group at the end
of the reporting period. The management expects the deposits paid that they would
obtain the land use right certificates in the coming twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are HK$1,957,740,000.

DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances at the end of the

reporting period:

R SE Rl T Deferred taxation assets
FERTE A fE Deferred taxation liabilities

T T T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(F51) (E71)
(Restated) (Restated)
482,281 471,756 399,269
(3,070,966) (2,165,788) (1,511,114)
(2,588,685) (1,694,032) (1,111,845)

— R
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23.

Ei'a g7/
Investment

properties

Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS (LIABILITIES)
(continued)

The followings are the major deferred taxation assets (liabilities) recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years.

HoAt e e

ZERR(HRE)

SRR LS ESL Other

Allowance Land BiFs 1R temporary
for doubtful ~ Appreciation Tax differences Hast
debts Tax losses (Note) Total

WET I T T T T T T T WET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(FF1) (F51)
(Restated) (Restated)
BT IF At 1 January 2009

—H—H (J531) (originally stated) (1,511,114) 212,236 94,607 5,123 86,668 (1,112,480)

GO EEHEES Merger accounting
restatement = = = 635 - 635
A EEAE At 1 January 2009 (Restated)

—H—H (&%) (1,511,114) 212,236 94,607 5,758 86,668 (1,111,845)
(R Currency realignment (335) QD an 46 3) (330)
Wi — B /AR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 1,221 - 1,221
(FnH)FFABE (Charge) credit to profit or loss (654,339) 10,710 (4,006) 56,584 7,973 (583,078)
A ZEFEIE+FH At 31 December 2009

=+—H (&%) (Restated) (2,165,788) 222,925 90,584 63,609 94,638 (1,694,032)
(e R Currency realignment (100,371) 7,741 3,146 2,186 4,008 (83,290)
E=EEET Charge to profit or loss (804,807) - - (6,294) (262) (811,363)
A FE—FFE A" H At 31 December 2010

=+—H (3,070,966) 230,666 93,730 59,501 98,384 (2,588,683)

WEFRE - AT IR 26 9 T 2 4 O 22 &~ T it ey
B 15 2 IR e 18 B A B ST AR 2 T

B EAEHT o
i

697,288,000 7C )

—FAEFT A=+ —H > REEA R
FABL I s 18 15 755,595,000 00 ( —FF JUAE -
At P AR EY H AR % A o

T JE e 48 W5 65 238,004,000 70 ( R FJUAE « #
#5254,436,0007C ) CHERR 2y B AE L H & 7 - |y
AR ) R B D T RZ A I A ] H
5 1 s R IO > OO 0 S O T B TR SRV U
517,591,0007C ( ZZFF JUAF « #H442,852,000
JG ) e RR I S ol T 2 o ol T R e 22 vl A
FAF

.
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Note:  Other temporary differences mainly represent the deductible temporary differences
arising from the write down of inventory of properties, impairment loss of available-

for-sale investments and other expenses.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$755,595,000 (2009:
HK$697,288,000) available for offset against future profits. HK$238,004,000 (2009:
HK$254,436,000) tax losses has been recognised as deferred taxation assets.
No deferred taxation asset has been recognised on the remaining tax losses of
HK$517,591,000 (2009: HK$442,852,000), as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the future profit streams of these subsidiaries are uncertain. The tax

losses could be carried forward for a maximum of five years.



A U 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%%ﬁﬁ 24. INVENTORY OF PROPERTIES
T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
pr g ly/E S Properties under development 57,439,056 40,054,784 34,917,887
rrEY Properties held for sale 4,444,105 2,863,264 4,650,302
61,883,161 42,918,048 39,568,189
Y2 B AL T A - E L AR A R A The inventory of properties were located in the Chinese Mainland under

H A ) S A B A TR RO AR T R A R
W Tml > Jo A S 9 OF R A 0 2 N B
S B B G o LR AL EE AT R O I R
- (DER-E SN/ E ket o i
53,162,214,0007C °

25. HpbfFi

25.

medium-term lease. Inventory of properties which are expected to be recovered
in more than twelve months after the end of the reporting period are classified
under current assets as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal
operating cycle. The amounts of inventory of properties that are expected by the
management to be realised after more than twelve months after the end of the

reporting period are HK$53,162,214,000.

OTHER INVENTORIES

T T T T
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$°000
(1)
(Restated)
JERE R} Raw materials 17,308 52,677 57,877
T FE i S HoAth, Consumables and others 49,404 2,929 6,376
66,712 55,606 64,253

T
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26. FEWUIRSK ~ oAt B WCHR TE M A AT 4

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS PAID

T oo ki i T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
(F 1) (FE%1)
(Restated) (Restated)
RS 3K Trade receivables 1,270,233 1,172,274 1,196,111
B SRR Less: allowance for doubtful debts (359,236) (349,661) (349,888)
910,997 822,613 846,223
TR AT A b5 RE 4 A0 5T 4 (Bt Deposits paid for acquisition of
land use rights (Note) 16,183,270 12,209,309 8,090,094
oA R IS AR TE Other receivables 1,079,073 1,497,136 820,439
W R BRI Less: allowance for doubtful debts (375,182) (362,577) (320,200)
703,891 1,134,559 500,239
TEA SR S w T 4 Prepayments and deposits 2,061,131 868,672 519,384
19,859,289 15,035,153 9,955,940

BEFRE = A7 R S U A 5 O S 0 e I A 3t )
E T A 58 R B 0 S T S A Y 23 IR
AR WK - AL AR BUG L
RS o R FE R RO R R+ A
AL AT BCA S E RS T A AT o
16,183,270,0007C °

H B W 3 2 SRR TR A R D e T e S
o —JBMTH > 436 B R R R Wl MR 7E
30K A ST BRI B A LT 0 -

W B 4 3 2 ESORROEL ~ T B S < S i 5
B #Y 2 R SO T AR A A A T sl e S A
Sh > AL R T E S A R4S KA (E
1 o

— BB
Annual Report 2010

Note:  The amount represents the partial payments made by the Group for the acquisition of
land use rights in the Chinese Mainland for property development for sale. The land use
right certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group at the end of the reporting
period. The management expects the deposits paid that they would obtain the land use
right certificates in the coming twelve months after the end of reporting period are
HK$16,183,270,000.

Proceeds receivable in respect of sales of properties are settled in accordance
with the terms stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements. Generally,
purchasers of properties are required to settle the balance within 30 days as
specified in the sale and purchase agreements or not granted with any credit

period.

Except for the proceeds receivable from sales of properties, rental income from
lease of properties and proceeds from construction contracts which are payable
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements, the Group generally

allows a credit period of not exceeding 45 days to its customers.
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26. MEWCIRR ~ HoAth FE WO IE K © AT &
(#8)
FH A B 2K 2 RESCIR 38 4 8 5 75 154,090,000
TEFIULE ¢ HNE1,798,00070) 0 A B A
Bt 8 > SR P S 4 0 1% 3 B 5 T R
[E] °

ASEBTEHANE P AT > BRI A AR 15 55T
A il JEE A VT 2 A KT Sl B
I SRR o ARSI A H AR AR AR
T o AR I B S B AR 2 S R Y
A RIFERER -

VAR 2 At I AR MBSO 31 AR AT -

T B3l i MR sk 2 M i 4 A

206.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

Retention receivables included in trade receivables amounted to HK$4,090,000
(2009: HK$1,798,000) are interest-free and receivable at the end of the retention

period of individual construction contracts.

Before accepting any customers, the Group uses an internal credit assessment
system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer, and considers adequate allowance has been made at the end of the
reporting period. Balances which are neither past due nor impaired are all with

good credit quality.

The followings are the aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the

reporting period:

Aged analysis of trade receivables net of impairment

—4ER Within one year
B — 4 Over one year

T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
(F 1) (FE%1)
(Restated) (Restated)
713,699 618,594 640,053
197,298 204,019 206,170
910,997 822,613 846,223

% 9T 1L I 08 35 0 2 R WA sk 2
g

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

—4E R Within one year
B Over one year

T T i T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 145,245
169,330 153,468 96,905
169,330 153,468 242,150

— R
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26. MEWORK - FoAh R BORIE K AT 4

(#8)

A A ) S R KA R A B T AR (U
169,330,0007G ( ZZF JUAE © # % 153,468,000
J6) MY B > 3% 55 IR SO i R T
A o MEA SR I A L R R R A o AR
[ B R A R IR O T E R
I SERATHE

A R SRS S5 AR R o AR AR RE A
ﬁ%%@ﬁ%%*ﬁ%@>ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@
wE AR A o

ACSEBI A P2 6 36 FOR 0% - A
WO BRI 2 (3 S - TR 3
EL B 755

ARSI (2 0 BRE) R  WIR 2 ARt
vax/Tx L

Al i HR Y

Within one year

Over one year

206.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$169,330,000 (2009: HK$153,468,000) which are past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group has retained the legal ownership of the property

sold to the property buyer for overdue debtor balances.

There are no fixed repayment term for other receivables and the Group considers
they are repayable on demand and will be recovered in one year from the date

of advance.
The Group assessed the credit quality of trade and other receivables based on
historical default rates and the repayment records and considered adequate

allowance has been made at the end of the reporting period.

The following is an aged analysis of other receivables net of impairments at the

end of the reporting period:

Other receivables

T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
(F 1) (FE%1)
(Restated) (Restated)
511,746 773,374 294,703
192,145 361,185 205,536
703,891 1,134,559 500,239

i R B A0 0 Pl 6 9 5 K 359,236,000 76 B2 5
375,182,000 76 ( —FEJUAE « ##349,661,000
J6 K s 362,577,000 ) 14 1181 71l Uk (L IR WA 5
T HoA B ARTE - 5% %5 MEUCIR 3R SR T
i 2 B SR S A I R g A [ o A [
S 4 % S A BRTE A AT TR o DUR A EUIR
A B IR TE 2 SR E A ) -

e
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Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables and other receivables of HK$359,236,000 and HK$375,182,000 (2009:
HK$349,661,000 and HK$362,577,000) respectively, which have been in severe
financial difficulties and irrecoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The followings are the movement in the accumulated

impairments for trade receivables and other receivables.



A o 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. JEWEEZ - KM BEWEEE T4 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
(#8) DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
TE W IR SRk SR IR 2 5 B Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade
receivables
T T T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
)& R Balance at the beginning of the year 349,601 349,888 328,707
[ffE 5, 3 A Exchange realignment 12,143 (49) 21,181
A N BERR 2 WA 1R Impairment losses recognised for the year 559 342 -
RECEMAEY oFi Impairment losses reversed - (520) =
A A Written off during the year (3,127) - -
AR AR Balance at the end of the year 359,236 349,661 349,888
JHC A JE WA TR TR R A 2 S ) Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts for other
receivables
BT 7 BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
ER G5 R Balance at the beginning of the year 362,577 320,200 258,445
[FfE ba, 8] 4 Exchange realignment 12,591 ) 17,045
AR N HERR 2 W (B R R (M) Impairment losses recognised for the year
(Note) 61 42,841 44,710
L 938 1] ok (L s 12 Impairment losses reversed “47) (459) -
SRR AR Balance at the end of the year 375,182 362,577 320,200
BiFaE % BICEE TR S8 RRAG A B A B 1S BN 2 B IR Note:  The amount represents the partial impairment made for the loan advance to an
MAERBE 5 B4 TR RAMNRE RN Z £ outsider after considering its financial position and ability to repay.
R Z B o

— R
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27. MR %& P &4 TR

SRIEH 27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORKS

T T T T TT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Ak B AR Contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period
L 7 AR I DR AR N L R Contract costs incurred plus recognised
N ARR T i profits less recognised losses 8,101,292 5,849,879 4,458,873
MR I Less: progress billings (8,159,332) (5,942,839) (4,589,907)
(58,040) (92,960) (131,034
w2 B I ES T Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MW %P A4 TR H0E Amounts due from customers for
contract works 398,081 281,615 210,929
TR % 5 A 4 TR0 Amounts due to customers for contract
works (456,121 (374,575) (341,963)
(58,040) (92,960) (131,034

AR —FAFE T AZT—H o FEARRIURSK
HBEF &K LR A WSS AS
4,090,00070 (ZFEJUAE  #¥1,798,00070) °
FHA AL AT RIEG B C U PR & 4 LR
B 167,912,000 70 ( ZF R LA - # ¥
52,021,0007C) © A = F—ERAE R ZH R LA
ToA=ZT—H > EHEENEFSEH TR
Fr AR B 4 L CUR F A # TR %
AR IARAE T A0 N -

28. MEWCIF R Fi g 23 W] B I 2 W K
H
5 ] 2 O 24 1 5 G R 555 1
L > S A A AT AR A el o
MBS P PR A 1 R o G ~ S5 0 T JEU
ZERAOE - I AR R T A
[7] o

“F AR
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28.

At 31 December 2010, retentions held by customers for contract works included
in trade receivables amounted to HK$4,090,000 (2009: HK$1,798,000). Advances
received from customers for contract work included in other payables amounted
to HK$67,912,000 (2009: HK$52,021,000). At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the
management expects both the retentions held by customers for contract works
and advances received from customers for contract works will be realised within

twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, trade in nature and

recoverable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The amount due from immediate holding company is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand, which is recoverable within twelve months after the

end of the reporting period.
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29. Bl MBATHFE 29. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
B4 B BT S A7 AL A8 FR BT AR AR F 2R 0.01 )8 Cash and bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits carry interest at
F135HE(ZEENAE  0.08EE1.358) 5 & prevailing deposit rates which range from 0.01% to 1.35% (2009: 0.08% to 1.35%)
Z AT - per annum.
TER G RSB EEETd > g AR Included in cash and bank balances, there is a total balance amounting to
8,569,349,0007C (FH # 11 #:#510,070,527,000C) RMBS,569,349,000 (equivalent to HK$10,070,527,000) (2009: RMB16,045,223,000
(ZEESAE © NRHE16,045,223,0007C (F 5 (equivalent to HK$18,223,202,000)) denominated in RMB which is not a freely
A ¥ 18,223,202,00078 ) ) KA R ¥EFHE > T convertible currency.
WS S5 ASHT [ iy S g o
B4 RAT SRR DL T B - The cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:
T T T T TT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
W (7 TH 45 B R 1 ) Hong Kong dollar (foreign currency of
the relevant group entity) 1,237,209 487,819 587,917
PN Renminbi 10,070,527 18,223,202 5,209,145
E United States Dollar 662,893 1,160,586 10,545
HiAs Others 1,583 1,473 1,268
11,972,212 19,873,080 5,808,875
JEARK M2 35 % JHC At B A R T 30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
BT 7 BT T 7T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
JREASHHR R Trade payables 5,419,815 4,128,648 2,508,556
E{ﬁ’ﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%’rﬁﬁ% Other payables and accrued charges 2,367,299 1,793,310 1,792,268
7,787,114 5,921,958 4,300,824

T
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30.

B AR Mk B S At B A5 R I (#)
HEAH SR 345 1K Z IR ST A S

30.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting

period:

T T i T i T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
(H#31) (E51)
(Restated) (Restated)
—4ER Within one year 3,738,053 2,378,376 963,794
R — 4 Over one year 1,681,762 1,750,272 1,544,762
5,419,815 4,128,648 2,508,556
31. THEWMECWTTS 31. DEPOSITS RECEIVED FROM PRE-SALES OF
PROPERTIES
A A TEEH A B A B R A R+ i 1% The amounts which are expected to be realised in more than twelve months after
I > BAEE N IS FI 2 A R the end of the reporting period are also classified under current liabilities as it
BB A o AMEEIA RSN EAE T is within the Group’s normal operating cycle. The amounts that are expected by
18 H 1% B HL Y 4 %8 5 HE3,676,368,0007C © the management to be realised by more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are HK$3,676,368,000.

32. ﬁgﬁ“ﬁ]% ]}ﬁ‘g &ﬁj/ﬁ%fﬁﬂﬁé\\ﬁj/ 32. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/IMMEDIATE
j}ijﬁ'fﬂ"‘ﬂﬁi-‘%ﬁlﬂ‘ HOLDING COMPANY/NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
HEAST ] 22 B o ) i JE i R S MR - A R AR The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are trade in nature. The amounts
BT ~ s WA ERIEE R o EATE are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The amounts due to
FEPERE N ) K FE 428 J 1S o Sk I S s A immediate holding company and non-controlling interests represent mainly the
1 B HZE A BRI E R 2 B o loan advances which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

SRR
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33. HUTHEE 33. BANK BORROWINGS
T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A AR Secured 2,089,861 3,045,486 4,477,710
AL Unsecured 35,717,377 24,413,296 16,615,282
37,807,238 27,458,782 21,092,992
ZEFS T 5 0 P A 7 2 BRI Carrying amount repayable:
FER S — 4N On demand or within one year 8,554,849 1,827,206 4,062,895
—AELA EAHR A A AR More than one year but not exceeding
two years 15,876,547 9,005,618 1,240,762
PR DA AR 8 AR More than two years but not more than
five years 12,381,640 16,052,409 15,583,453
FAELLE More than five years 994,202 573,549 205,882
37,807,238 27,458,782 21,092,992
W B AR —ERRE Less: Amounts due within one year
HIE shown under current liabilities (8,554,849) (1,827,206) (4,062,895)
29,252,389 25,031,576 17,030,097
A AE 5] D) AT B A [ B L T fe B e LA 2 Rt The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the
H2ZEE#EIWT - functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:
BT BT BT T
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$°000
biice Hong Kong dollars 24,050,000 13,320,000 11,180,000
=L United States dollars 780,450 - -

e
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33.

34.

SRATRT B (4]

SRAT A B0 FE Hie o 24 [ E AR R SR 488 (.
FEIAE - FRRs ) 5HE 2 E B MHE
# #12,976,788,000 JC ( E E JLLE
14,138,782,00070) K AE B FR A 50,978 (%
T ¢+ 0.618) FHE S 4% F Hb R 7 A] ZE 47 B
A T-0.33 & 13 ( FFIUE + FRAT
6] 297 B 10.275 2 1.05)H) ZAZ’JE%IJ%@%
B2 77 B S 24,830,450,000 0 ( —FE L
AF  #5M13,320,000,00070) o AR AR B SRR

AT > BEZR D T B R — SR
o

AR S [ 42 %8 B 7 420,980,450,000 70 ( - FF
JL$ : 5 %10,570,000,000 7C ) Z SRAT i B 1
> i BEAE TR B i sk 2 Gk > T R A [ ZE
4?1% TN AR A AN R D T RA S D
35% °

it & T A
JE P b g wt ik AT A TR

P

33.

34.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings of HK$12,976,788,000 (2009:
HK$14,138,782,000) which carry interest at average fixed rate of 4.88% per
annum (2009: 5% per annum) and variable-rate borrowings of HK$24,830,450,000
(2009: HK$13,320,000,000) which carried effective interest rate at 0.97% (2009:
0.61%) per annum and contractual interest at HIBOR plus a certain percentage
ranging from 0.33% to 1.3% (2009: HIBOR plus from 0.275% to 1.05%) per
annum. The borrowings are repayable by instalments or in a lump sum upon

maturity in accordance with the terms set out in the respective loan agreements.

In respect of bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$20,980,450,000
(2009: HK$10,570,000,000), in accordance with the terms of the respective loan
agreements, CRH is required to hold not less than 35% of the issued share capital

of the Company at any time during the period of the loans.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Derivatives under hedge accounting

T T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B4 it — ) e Cash flow hedges — interest rate swaps
(BH&E) (Note) (51,947) 29,779 (42,832)
Eﬁﬂﬂiiﬁ%ﬁ Other interest rate swaps (100,552) (93,322) (94,092)
(152,499) (123,101) (136,924)
275 2 1 RAT BB & W AT 2 A EE 4G The above derivatives are measured at fair value which is estimated using
ﬁ‘l’ ° valuation technique with reference to interest yield and discounted cash flow
analysis.
SRR
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34. SR TR ()

B

AR B [ B A R g ) (2R 2 4 S TR A - 1R
T3 B ) A AT i By ] A - IR
TR B ST HAT I B LS B SRR - %%
IR ot 1] R A JRE SRA T 18 B0 45 S AR > BRI
AR ) SRR R w5 R SR s A A
WLHE o« AR —-FE R ZETIUE - WA
A FE BRI

H T FHH

Notional amount Maturity

34.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps (net quarterly settlement) to minimise
its exposure to interest expenses of its floating-rate Hong Kong Dollar bank
borrowings by swapping a partial amount of the bank borrowings from floating
interest rates to fixed interest rates. The interest rate swaps and the corresponding
bank borrowings have the similar settlement periods and the directors of the
Company considered that the interest rate swaps are highly effective hedging
instruments. Major terms of the two interest rate swaps in both 2010 and 2009

are set out below:

f54) B H

Swaps Hedged item

#1500,000,0007C ZE = NHTEH
HK$500,000,000 17 September 2013
#1500,000,0007C ZE = NHTEH
HK$500,000,000 17 September 2013

WEFRE - B AR 4 [ SIf 20 ) ol 2 8 ST A SRS (e
O At R APl L i =% — AR R T
T = B E RS H R AR R
JRAC o A A L R EL S AS o T )
A (VTR A L3 e B AT £ 1 8 o )
AT A TR RE TR IR 2 [ ) 5 B
Ui BB AR R AT A SR E A

AU SR AT R 2697 E 2 2.95 )5 SRAT B 15610,000,00070

From HIBOR to 2.95% Bank borrowings of HK$610,000,000
F A SR A TR 27 2 23,002 AT RO 15520,000,0007T
From HIBOR to 3.00% Bank borrowings of HK$520,000,000

Note:  The measurement and assessment of the effectiveness of the above hedges as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 have been carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers who are not connected with the Group
with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
hedge effectiveness of derivatives. The hedge effectiveness was arrived at on the basis
of the measurement and assessment of the ability of the derivatives to offset changes

in cash flows attributable to the interest rate risk.

—F B
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34. ArA4h TR (48) 34.
F At ) R 4 ]
WoE RO EEIE R H A
RIS R0 2 Bk T

# T E2R UjE!

Notional amount Maturity

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Other interest rate swaps
The terms of other interest rate swaps in both 2010 and 2009 that are not

qualified for hedge accounting are disclosed below.

53]

Swaps

#51500,000,0007C —F—=4FER A LA
HK$500,000,000 9 May 2013
#51500,000,0007C —F—"4ER A LA
HK$500,000,000 9 May 2012
#51500,000,0007C S —AERHANH
HK$500,000,000 6 May 2012
#51500,000,0007C AR A A —
HK$500,000,000 11 April 2013

R FE-FEF A=+ —H > BlARE
R R 4 0 2 V(B 58 B s 48 2 AT RIS A0 T s
20,435,000 70 ( —FF JLAF © B4 0 B A
R 2 N VA B B 55 2 AT BG4 B s i
11,433,00070) > 3 % A 4 1 Yo A fE R 2%
IR 25T o N 188 A EBL A
R S 2 T o 2 A T (BB Bl s 18 2 s i
1,733,0007C ( —FF U © $5 & AEB &R H
'ZEF%U%?ﬁ%ﬁZﬁ%&ﬁt%"Z“%ﬁ%ﬁiﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%

T 48 7 W5 7,230,000 7€ ( T?h@ Ho At A
R4 )\ {1 88 B s 4R 1 770,00008 ) 5 36
##58,963,0007C (—FFIJUAF + AP B IL
5 A i H2,390,00000) MBS FIER (ZF L
iF 0 FEAES)

e
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P A IS SR A TR 2E 97 L 23,408
From HIBOR to 3.40%
i A v AT (7] 2647 B 53,308
From HIBOR to 3.30%
i A v AT (7] 3647 B 53 38
From HIBOR to 3.38%

H P A IS SR A TR 207 L 22,988

From HIBOR to 2.98%

As at 31 December 2010, the effective portion of the loss on changes in fair value
of the interest rate swaps under cash flow hedge amounted to HK$20,435,000
(2009: the effective portion of the gain on changes in fair value of the interest
rate swaps under cash flow hedge amounted to HK$11,433,000) has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve.
During the year, the loss on changes in fair value of the ineffective portion of
the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedge of HK$1,733,000 (2009:
gain on changes in fair value of the ineffective portion of the interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow pledge of HK$1,620,000) together with the loss on
changes in fair value of other interest rate swaps of HK$7,230,000 (2009: loss
on changes in fair value of other interest rate swaps of HK$770,000), totalling
HK$8,963,000 (2009: gain on changes in fair value totalling HK$2,390,000) is
charged (2009: credited) to profit or loss.
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35. A

35. SHARE CAPITAL

e H

Number of shares

I T N T T T T

B

Share capital

BT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 PR T (FLHE 0. 1070 2 T 4 i Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
B Authorised:
iei)) At the beginning of the year 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 700,000 700,000 500,000
REEE/ELA A Increase on 14 July 2008 - - 2,000,000,000 - = 200,000
AR At the end of the year 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000 700,000 700,000 700,000
‘jr % Issued an i
BT R d and fully paid
A At the beginning of the year 5,030,011,168 4,715,346,168 4,025,201,318 503,001 471,535 402,520
B A (it ea) Placement of new shares
(Note a) - 300,000,000 = - 30,000 =
ﬁ%ﬁﬂg ffitb) Exercise of share options
(FLMEE36) (Note b) (see Note 36) 8,990,000 14,665,000 14,345,000 899 1,466 1,435
{E B AL E R ER A IF 2 Issued in consideration for the
RAEFET (k) business combination involving
entities under common control
(Note ¢) 348,239,279 = 675,799,850 34,824 - 67,580
GRS At the end of the year 5,387,240,447 5,030,011,168 4,715,346,168 538,724 503,001 471,535

Bt Notes:

(a) N EENERA N B s KNG BT @ On 26 May 2009, the Company issued 300,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 to
300,000,000 5% 45 % 1 {20 75 0. 10 70 A % 3 1 > finance the Group’s working capital. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu with
ﬁE 75'5 Z’-‘ % . fii fé 4 o %ﬁjt Lﬂxf % bl Ta E-‘ii the existing shares in all aspects.

BUA Ity AT IR 5 ik -

(b) F SO NI N/ =1 IS I 1 G (T (TR0 (b) During the year, the Company issued 8,990,000 (2009: 14,665,000) ordinary shares of
8,990,000/ ( —EZJLAE 1 14,665,000 8% ) A Ak HK$0.10 each upon exercise of share options. The exercise price of the share options
T (B MR 0. 10T A3 % o HA A B I RE RO AT during the period ranges from HK$0.96 to HK$3.97 (2009: HK$0.96 to HK$3.97) per
{E/?’q:ﬁ:ﬁx(% F,‘fté,‘() 9675§p§ %3 977G ( R share. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all aspects.
JUAE 0,96 C R #EH3.9770) o HiE
TE 4577 TH BT B 5 A ) S i o

© A E TR AN ) A 1) HE AR A R © On 2010, 348,239,279 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued for the acquisition

SEAE [ (HE A [ LR RS DR (B
BT 44Ca)) T EEAT 348,239,279 1B A I THI (45
0.107C11 % 4 A -

under common control, from CRH.

of the Fast Lead Group (see Note 44(a) for details), a group of combining entities

E R
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36. B

AR T BRI IBCRE R (RO Rrst3) ) B e i
SEEBAN T 2R - LIRSS E RN T
FIHE o

B AL BT SR A0 PR AR R AR
— A = B2 B b e 2 A
B o EAE G B 2 BUE IR A
B2 BE AR AR RIAT SO BT
F o ARLEUL TR H - AR RPAT SO T
FRLIRREE T AT RREZ AN 5 A
LGRS T B AR 2 A T
ANEARH 5 AR~ AR S FATE
MR TR s AAF ZH#E S ATHAR
Bt & Wil PNVLER IS uibl =R s
W IEBREAT A i A A FIE R E - Rk
LA =3 2 B8 - A R 1E I R
HE P 2 ST~ B0 TE BRI R 1L
LA 2 H 2 P E s i (8 - AT
FEARET i B2 L o AT i 2 BT A I AR T
FIREEEAT 2 My A~ R AR B
PR 2 B A7 R T RETT T RE AT 2 I AL
5 S B A R TR AR > B
i R LT A B e 2 BRR o

HRAZ T BT T A R 2 AR 2 A
A ANRA > AT A LB T A R
TR o JTd s B FRRE V) S AT W e
A HERY G R E o (PR RS M ST O )y B B R A
P2 EIRRE 2 B AR 43 Al AN A5 R 2 Y 47 1+
AR o i 4R B A e M B O i R B AR SR - B
I RS Rk - M2 —FF+ A
= H o REHEE B O R AR T 2
FIRCHE 1Y) A BE AR 3 B 912,372,500 (—FF L
4F 1 21,362,5008¢) » MHE A A A RlE H 28T
JBe530.23% (ZZFE I © 0.45%)

—B TR
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36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of promoting
additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of the Company by

participants, namely the “New Scheme”.

The New Scheme refers to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
which was approved by the shareholders in general meeting on 31 January
2002. The board of directors may grant options to eligible participants, including
executive or non-executive directors of the Company, any discretionary object
of a discretionary trust established by any employee of the Group, executive
or non-executive directors of the Company, any executives and employees
of consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group, chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associate companies of the Group,
associates of directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the
Company, and employees of substantial shareholder. The exercise price of
the share option under the New Scheme is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the
nominal value of the share. The total number of shares that may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and the maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted thereunder and the maximum entitlement of each
participant under the New Scheme is respectively, equivalent to the maximum

limit permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options under the New Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer together with the payment of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The vesting and exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable at the entire discretion of the board of directors with the vesting
period not exceeding four years and the exercise period will not exceed a period
of ten years immediately after acceptance of grant. Options are lapsed if the
employee leaves the Group before the options vest. At 31 December 2010, the
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the New Scheme was 12,372,500 (2009: 21,362,500) shares,
representing 0.23% (2009: 0.45%), respectively, to the shares of the Company in

issue at that date.
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36. MERREETS) (48) 36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
MR ER B (BIEES) AR 7 R The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options held by
1 M ARAEJE 2 S ) - employees (including directors) and movements in such holdings during the
year:
g s e
Number of share options
it
i e
i . =
THfifE —H—H Rl ERTE FRKS Z+—H
Exercise o J& 1 1T AT Granted Exercised Lapsed M ARATE
i H price Vesting Exercisable Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant per share period period at 1.1.2010 the year the year the year  at 31.12.2010
-]
idicorw
HK$
At 04/03/2002 1590 05/03/2002t0  04/03/2002t0 1,700,000 - (780,000) - 920,000
New Scheme 01/01/2005 03/03/2012
07/10/2002 0.960 08/10/2002 to  07/10/2002 to 650,000 = (100,000) - 550,000
05/01/2005 06/10/2012
28/04/2004 1.040 28/04/2004 to  28/04/2004 to 1,465,000 - (512,500) - 952,500
01/01/2007 27/04/2014
29/04/2005 1.420 29/04/2006 to  29/04/2005 to 2,137,500 = (337,500) = 1,800,000
29/04/2009 28/04/2015
01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to  01/06/2005 to 2,025,000 = (250,000) = 1,775,000
01/06/2008 31/05/2015
03/01/2006 3.225 03/01/2007 to  03/01/2006 to 10,535,000 = (5,885,000) = 4,650,000
03/01/2010 02/01/2016
17/02/2006 3.965 17/02/2007 to  17/02/2006 to 1,000,000 = (625,000) - 375,000
17/02/2010 16/02/2016
26/06/2006 3.580 26/06/2007 to  26/06/2006 to 1,850,000 - (500,000) = 1,350,000
26/06/2010 25/06/2016
21,362,500 = (8,990,000) = 12,372,500
SEACIERI T Exercisable at the end of the year 14,037,500
ﬂu%%ﬂﬁﬁ@é Weighted average exercise price 2.57 - 2.88 - 2.35

BT
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36. B (47)

i A

Date of grant

=14
TriEfE
Exercise
price

per share

S
Vesting
period

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

T4
Exercisable

period

i

e

—HA—H
AT T

Outstanding
at 1.1.2009

i RS

Number of share options

AR
Granted
during
the year

R
Exercised
during
the year

HERIAL
Lapsed
during
the year

it
“EBEJE
+=A
=+—H

i RAT
Outstanding
at 31.12.2009

filico
HK$
HrtEl 04/03/2002 1590 05/03/2002t0  04/03/2002t0 1,950,000 - (250,000) - 1,700,000
New Scheme 01/01/2005 03/03/2012
07/10/2002 0.960 08/10/2002 to  07/10/2002 to 1,180,000 = (530,000) = 650,000
05/01/2005 06/10/2012
28/04/2004 1.040 28/04/2004 to  28/04/2004 to 2,440,000 = (975,000) = 1,465,000
01/01/2007 27/04/2014
29/04/2005 1.420 29/04/2006 to  29/04/2005 to 4,632,500 = (2,495,000) = 2,137,500
29/04/2009 28/04/2015
01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to  01/06/2005 to 3,275,000 = (1,250,000) = 2,025,000
01/06/2008 31/05/2015
02/06/2005 1.270 02/06/2005 to  02/06/2005 to 150,000 = (150,000) - -
02/06/2008 01/06/2015
27/06/2005 1.340 27/06/2006 to  27/06/2005 to 200,000 = (200,000) - -
27/06/2009 26/06/2015
03/01/2006 3.225 03/01/2007 to  03/01/2006 to 17,725,000 = (7,190,000) = 10,535,000
03/01/2010 02/01/2016
17/02/2006 3.965 17/02/2007 to  17/02/2006 to 1,625,000 = (625,000) = 1,000,000
17/02/2010 16/02/2016
26/06/2006 3.580 26/06/2007 to  26/06/2006 to 2,850,000 = (1,000,000) = 1,850,000
26/06/2010 25/06/2016
36,027,500 = (14,665,000) = 21,362,500
@%@H{cﬁlﬁﬁ Exercisable at the end of the year 14,037,500
)jl]’l‘ngﬂj Tﬁ1 Weighted average exercise price 2.54 - 2.50 - 2.57

— BB
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36. MERREETS) (48) 36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
T AS N T EE S R A AR A 2 S ) Details of the movements of the share options during the year held by the
FEEWR : directors of the Company included in the above table are as follows:
iyt
Number of share options
Vs
it “F-F
i1 “3- A
it AR ERR BRI AFRER =t—H
Exercise FEm il AT Granted Exercised Lapsed EES R
A price Vesting Exercisable Outstanding during during during EX i Outstanding
Date of grant per share period period at 1.1.2010 the year the year the year  Reallocation  at 31.12.2010
kit (H3E)
HK$ (Note)
Hrst#l
New Scheme 01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to 01/06/2005 to 500,000 - - - (250,000) 250,000
01/06/2008 31/05/2015
AEBIFAIATE Exercisable at the end of the year 250,000
T4 Weighted average exercise price 1.23 - - - 1.23 1.23
R R
Number of share options
i
it “EENE
{5313 “ETNE +=A
it —“A-H0 EREE BREE FRER =t—H
Exercise i Gy W RAT Granted Exercised Lapsed W RAT
B H price Vesting Exercisable Outstanding during during during B Outstanding
Date of grant per share period period at 1.1.2009 the year the year the year ~ Reallocation  at 31.12.2009
ki (F5E)
HK$ (Note)
Hiwt Bl
New Scheme 01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to 01/06/2005 to 1,650,000 - (250,000) - (900,000) 500,000
01/06/2008 31/05/2015
E,@fﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁ Exercisable at the end of the year 500,000
TMHETH4TE Weighted average exercise price 1.23 - - - 123 123
FfEa = 0 R T 40 TC T IR R R A R AR N AE Note:  The reallocation of options arose when the option holders changed their positions
AN T 2 WA o T S A IR B BX kR B in the Company from directors to employees or vice versa in the year. These options
M A A o AT R W I R A A A A R i {4 were granted to them in previous years.
i o

— R
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36.

37.

i I A 3 (A8
LN @B%ME}:’A ﬁElﬁ,Eztuffé%’Jﬂﬁsﬁ
L1575 0 (BRI © ¥ 14.2000)

B Z’éiﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁézﬁfﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ = FPULE k{%
HA% > B4 20% 2 500% M5 I v] T B 8 -

BWEF-FEL A S BIRERE > AR
a'}cztv\ﬂm*tljﬁ%ﬂﬂéﬁﬁ TERR 2 BH S AR A
2y 224,00000 (ZFZFJUAE + #%53,033,000
JG)

R ) 1 P S w2 o £ B

PR EERTH A (RMAW) - A8
) PR AR B e O AE B L (T 58 D) > FHE
B BR A H R R 104F 51 & A R - ST
B > AR RIS RE > ZrCrh SRR 2L
R A E A PR A B 5| ) R A A A e
By o AR AR SR [ N RE ST 2 (B A% T R 14.10
T W 105 5% Jgh 5 1 B A 8,506,000 B FE 173 o A
WG WK > FESE R R > ORI R A 2k
21,681,000 B¢ ( ZFZ JUAE : 23,958,000 )

L o W 227,735,00000 ( —FE R IUE
196,736,00070) » HZEAFFA °

SR 5 AR IR A T E 2 e
2B

36.

37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise is HK$15.75 (2009: HK$14.29). All options
were granted with a vesting period of three to four years and 20% to 50% of

which would be vested annually after the grant date.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately HK$224,000 (2009:
HK$3,033,000) for the year ended 31 December 2010 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

SHARES HELD FOR RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

On 30 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”), a Restricted Share Award Scheme (the
“Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date. Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, the Company has set up a trust with a trustee company,
BOCI - Prudential Trustee Limited, for the purpose of administering the Scheme
and holding the shares. During the year, the Group purchased 8,506,000 shares
of its shares for the share award scheme at weighted average price of HK$14.10.
Under the Scheme, there were total unvested shares of 21,681,000 (2009:
23,958,000) amounting to HK$227,735,000 (2009: HK$196,736,000) held by the

trustee at the end of the reporting period.

Details of the movements of shares of the Company awarded to employees and

directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

R By e H
Number of

awarded shares

B FAF— A H R

Outstanding at 1 January 2010

GRINY LS Awarded during the year 21,975,904
AN R Vested during the year (10,782,806)
N —FEFZH =1—H Outstanding at 31 December 2010
i ARATIE 11,193,098
WE - —FAEL A= —HIEEE > A For the year ended 31 December 2010, a total of 21,975,904 shares of the

AR E A A E o KA SE R AR S
3£21,975,904 e 1 > “FEERE AN T H &
2308 A o BRI o A 2 AT (E A
i 2 #5%219,711,0000G » HH #5194,169,000
TG FERIAE - T I0) R RERE B X
oo

e
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Company had been awarded to the directors of the Company and employees of
the Group at no consideration, with an average vesting period ranging from 6
months to 23 months. The total fair value of the awarded shares determined at
the date of grant was HK$219,711,000, of which HK$194,169,000 (2009: nil) was

recognised as an expense for the period.
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37. BRG] By S w1 B 1 B A (4) 37.

A ) B 31 B R P e 153 B g R AT 22
RSP HTE 2 HE W 15.845T

REIZ A 2 AN TE T 2% 4% H 2 el it
TR B A > NI 11 R B o 0 ) 2 R 2 B
T ety 2 A 2 SR BARE 2 P (M )
e, — AT R AR 2 )

A TR LT (B SR ) 36 0 02 2

T2 APE
R Az
ety i i 8
Closing
Pz B share price
Grant date at date of grant

T
HK$
55—t Tranche 1
22.1.2010 22 January 2010 15
i Tranche 2
22.1.2010 22 January 2010 15

FHRRIR By 2 VBT 2 5 R (R
R e 2 B AR BRI 2 ﬁﬁﬁ%%z
AR B2 IR S B 3 4L -

ARSI A5 4t B AAE BT TR I A B B 2 A
Bt flist A o BRI fhRE 2 R () R R AR
TERR » SR 5 1 T < 485 1 s AR MG o

MoE-FENATEA > AEERBTT
T — FAERRE 2 By 2 B B ) - R PERE
RE A3 319 oy L i B (ZE TS TR B R Bl
WA LU AR AT AR ED) > PR 40 B 10— )&
£ H F20% o 1 = JF4E 2 B JI £580% o MR
FT B 2 K > BEIR O G AL (JE
A7 B R B 2 WA DL A% AT AR )
AR B — FEZ B B20% 0 JREZ BB
20% > 11 = JAAFE 2 H A2 60% o B AF Rz &
210,782,806 M AR e 403 ' B - 42 AR 7% HL A
PR B R AR E AL B A A
FAERLCITE o

SHARES HELD FOR RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (continued)
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before

the date on which the restricted shares were vested was HK$15.84.

The fair value of the awarded shares was determined by reference to the closing
share price at the date of grant after deductions of the present value of foregone
dividend during the vesting period and the fair value of put option in relation
to the restricted period of the shares which was determined by using the Black-

Scholes option pricing model.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of the put

option in relation to the restricted period of the awarded shares:

st} 9sES
A TE I Expected 4 L g 1)
Exercise Expected I dividend Risk-free
price volatility Option life yield interest rate

T
HK$
0.5%F
- 56.64% 0.5 year 1.58% 0.08%
1.5%F
- 68.69% 1.5 years 1.58% 0.22%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the awarded
shares are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of awarded shares

varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of awarded shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding

adjustment to the employee share-based compensation reserve.

On 15 September 2010, the Group revised the vesting period of the shares which
have been awarded in 2010. According to the Scheme, the awarded shares will
be vested (subject to certain performance conditions necessary to be achieved)
in tranches of 20% in the first anniversary and 80% in the third anniversary after
the Adoption Date. Under the new terms of the Scheme, the awarded shares will
be vested (subject to certain performance conditions necessary to be achieved)
in tranches of 20% in the first anniversary, 20% in the second anniversary and
60% in the third anniversary after the Adoption Date. As 10,782,806 shares of
awarded shares which were granted during the year was related to past services
and relevant performance conditions were achieved, these shares became vested

in 2010 accordingly.

E R
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38.

WAL B — [ Y J 2 ]
BE_ZF-FHE+_H=+—H1
;i3

TEF-FEF A NH - AREEEA
# 158,826,000 JC E Ik F)Z— B 5 Hb 7 BH
BEA PR ([P0 05 s ) 1 & i a %1 > W
W PR R 2 I A AR SR P s
152,597,0007G3H 5 ##5311,423,0000C » ik
B E AR N FIEAT 5196 ME 25 2 B 22 ) » dhbh 2
R — B AT LR
JR 2R o

A VA 55 2 935 Y A T A 2 L R Y
IR ML WO AR 2 Y M o

RO A I R W AR

38.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
For the year ended 31 December 2010

On 28 December 2010, the Group injected HK$158,826,000 as capital
contribution in ¥R T 5 A BB FRA ) CORBSEITE), accordingly,
the total registered and paid up capital of JLF 2 increased from
HK$152,597,000 to HK$311,423,000 which then became a 51% owned subsidiary
of the Company. P72 # is a property development company engaged in the
property development in Shenyang.

Since the main tangible asset of JLFFAL¥ is a property development site in

Shenyang, the acquisition of which has been accounted for as acquisition of assets.

The assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition were as follows:

%%ﬁﬁ‘ Inventories of properties
Bl R SRAT A AT Cash and bank balances
A B A HR T Other payables

B IRREBERE A (FFRE)

HAAE LA R 5107 303

W T A 2 B i o A

EATBLAAUE (FF 7 1 B3

AT B AU (FF 2 T R)
PSS B 4 B SRAT &5 A

Less: Non-controlling interest (Note)

Cash consideration paid as capital injection

Cash consideration paid as capital injection

Cash and bank balances acquired

e T

HK$°000

211,354
158,827
(58,758)

311,423
(152,597)

158,826

Total consideration satisfied by:

158,820

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

(158,826)
(158,827)

BEGE © RO 10T A AR A I LT I A E 45
iz I 12 B R 2 OB b o L 9T 965 2 T kA
TRE O R R L BIRHE -

— BB
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Note:  The non-controlling interest in JLF5 2 recognised at the acquisition date was
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised

amounts of the identifiable net assets of P[5 f i 1.
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38. W HE— [P Es A =] (48) 38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
BE_ZFELEFET+T_H=+—H 1 For the year ended 31 December 2009
SRR
MW ZEZERET+—H=1+H > KEHAEH On 30 November 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the entire issued share
LA =T W BE AL T E E R M E B R A R capital of JbutE 1HF 2P EA FRA R (JLstE1E”) from an independent
([ EHE ) 250 81T A » g third party for a total consideration of HK$1,578,864,000 including the cash
Fy s 151,578,864,000 7 > 0135 Bl 4 A5 ik payment of HK$349,255,000 and the settlement of the acquiree’s liabilities of
349,255,000 JC M & 1+ BT Wi il 5 2 & 1E HK$1,229,609,000. Jt 5T & 1H is a property development company engaged in the
1,229,609,0007C © dbit & 16 A4 £ RN A > property development business in Beijing.
AL RUGE S S 58 e 265
AL B E R EEA T EE AR AL B9 Since the main tangible asset of JLITE1H is a property development site in
SEUE I > RO AR By W o Beijing, the acquisition of which has been accounted for as acquisition of assets.
TAWCEE AW CERE E L AEIT The assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition were as follows:
T 7T
HK$000
L/EN: U &d Property, plant and equipment 989
R SE LT Deferred taxation assets 1,221
LYJEYea Inventory of properties 1,569,176
oAt W AR TE Other receivables 6,803
4 RORAT45TE Cash and bank balances 737
JEAT B IE Taxation payable (62)
1,578,804
W{HEUT? Uﬁiﬁfi’ﬁ' Total consideration satisfied by:
EfTH &S Cash consideration paid 1,578,864
WA i T 2 A 2 340 i e Y Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
BT AR Cash consideration paid (1,578,864)
FITSCE BR 4 S SRAT 4547 Cash and bank balances acquired 737
(1,578,127)
39, BRRAE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
z[g%. 55 ) 2 B R TSR K I AR AT R AR o Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured by the purchasers
IR SN E AN -C L RN kgL E V4 of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks upon
%%ﬂfﬁ(uﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ) AT . =) the delivery of the properties to the purchasers or completion of the relevant
B M ER S 2 A EIE AT KR © mortgage properties registration, whichever is later. In the opinion of directors,

the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts is not significant.

L
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40. 7KIE 40. COMMITMENTS
BT BT
HK$000 HK$°000
HRTER TRZ EA K Capital and development expenditure in respect of

BRI construction in progress:
ELRT A ME R N 45 B A e i s Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial

statements 265,502 1,129,389
7 R o Bt fof P 2 b A Other commitment in respect of the acquisition of

land use rights 10,619,052 3,724,089
A B I 15 2 H A Af Other commitment in respect of the acquisition of an equity

investment 653,078 -

41. RERARYE
AR 1R B AR AR
FERRIEEEHARPBATYECA Z HK
T4 5 s W 47,316,000 70 ( ~EFJLAE © #b
11,928,0007C) ©

AR B TP P S AR AT 4 30 Jed 9 2 S T AR
REBTHA AT 2 RAR R SRIEMNT -

41.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
The Group as lessee
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the year in respect

of office premises was HK$47,316,000 (2009: HK$11,928,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:

o T

BT T T
HK$000 HK$’000
—4ER Within one year 17,495 13,323
B _BERAE (BISEEME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 27,138 21,361
HAEE Over five years 3,399 1,340
48,032 36,024

B SRR PR A S M T W) SEHE AT A
& o M Z TR A — 2 H4F > e T
P WAE IR E o

— BB
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of
its office premises. Leases are negotiated mainly for an average term from one

year to ten years and rentals are fixed for an average of two years.
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41. REBTHAIRYE (8) 41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (continued)
AEEEAEEBHEAN The Group as lessor
EI*Jﬁmz%%fﬂﬁﬂk}\ﬁq%'ﬁs@]l]ljl&ooo Property rental income earned during the year was HK$1,211,318,000 (2009:

TEEIAE ¢ #E%909,323,0000C) o L4 HK$909,323,000). Included above, there was contingent rental income of
%‘E@jﬁj SRR AU AT 147,267,000 00 (& HK$147,267,000 (2009: HK$94,407,000). The contingent rental for certain
FIAE - HENE94,407,00000) © A T Bk properties was determined by a certain percentage of turnover. The properties
TS A T AN EE - AEEFFEM held by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants for periods which
B2 BHEF SN — 2 EEZHE - ranged from one to seven years.

AR > AR E B R T S 2 FHA 2 Rk At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
AR T - following future minimum lease payments:
T BT 7T
FIK$'000 HK$'000
—4ER Within one year 1,110,129 673,395
BB RE (BRFREREMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,074,596 1,108,382
HAFR Over five years 1,043,690 1,147,673
3,228,415 2,929,450
A 42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
ARG BIA > AR B SRATHRAH T DA R B E At the end of reporting period, the Group had pledged the following assets to
A Ty A B AR — R SRAT R G Z A banks as securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:
T e T
FIK$'000 HK$'000
EVd-L/E Investment properties 9,535,411 10,898,561
LYEYExy Inventory of properties - 2,900,054
9,535,411 13,798,615

— R
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43. JRRFREA

(a)

ik

A5 B BEA AR B 2 SR R R AR
FHE(CRRE Rt E ) o AT B A AR
R PR LN R B w6 ] 1 AT S
A E o RIS E A R E R
1R B R S Bsoetibak > BTk b
PR % 15 4% I SV ¥ 1,0007C © MR R
P L LB > BUE MR
EENBRRA -

A EEFET A =+ IR
BER > ASE B it B4 1 30 F 4R AR 2R
FHBR 2 BLERE > AR AR S AR T
BRI I AT b e i AR 2 ik
HE

43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

(@)

Hong Kong

The Group participate in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries, up
to a maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per month. The assets of MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the group companies in an

independently administered fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the total amounts contributed
by the Group to the scheme in Hong Kong and charged to profit or loss
represent contributions to the scheme by the Group at rates specified in

the rules of the scheme are as follows:

CAE i B Rt R 40 R 2 Bk il

Amount contributed and charged to profit or loss

T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
1,711 1,055

®)  PEAE

AR A A A b 2 A8 B B P A A%
b7 BT S8 0 B 5 BB AR R
ZINE o ASEE BRI A AR 4
Ferm st ER > ERE AR a2 &4 o
AR k% S B 2 M — AT R AR
FEMER o

RS ARAR A b i v B 2 )
BRI Z BA T

(b)

Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these

schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-mentioned

schemes in the Chinese Mainland during each of the years are as follows:

EUAF e % A 48 i 1Bk 2 ke

Amount contributed and charged to profit or loss

T BT
HK$000 HK$’000
(E41)
(Restated)
64,551 62,019

e
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44.

BN+ 5

(@ B RME AR ERA R Z2E 5
BAF A5 S P4 P BRI 24 ) B
BE§ 24 AT 2 K N 52 5%
N

tatements

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries/holding
companies

The following is a summary of the significant related party transactions
entered into by the Group with its holding companies and fellow

subsidiaries during the year:

L ACRE 5 I P 2

Rental and management fees received

T

Bz T IT BT
Relationship HK$°000 HK$°000
He ] (L) A FRA China Resources (Holdings) Company H AR A 4,749 4,454
Limited Immediate holding company
S A PR 7] China Resources Company Limited AR 6,353 6,579
Intermediate holding company
ﬁ{&ﬁ%ﬁﬁrﬂﬁﬁ PR ] China Resources Power Holdings [F] & Kﬁ%/&ﬁj 6,882 6,252
Company Limited Fellow subsidiary
LG4 (L) AR A China Resources Textiles (Holdings) [7] & M‘J%/Aﬁj 4,497 4,258
Company Limited Fellow subsidiary
HEH KA TR 7 China Resources Vanguard Company EES M‘J%/A ) 13,764 7,837
Limited Fellow subsidiary
GEIIARRAE TG S Shenzhen Kapok Hotel [F) 22 B} JEg 2 6,253 6,182
Fellow subsidiary
ﬁ{&ﬁ%ﬁiuﬁfﬁ (FR ) China Resources Snow Breweries Limited [f] 2 M‘J%/Aﬁj 3,630 3,424
HRRA A Fellow subsidiary
2L (i) A R A A Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K.) Limited EY 7G| 5,399 -
Fellow subsidiary
WZFE—FRE+—A=H » AEFEEBRBR On 3 November 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the entire issued share

%ﬁ ik M 2,370,420,000 TG S 4% i ¥ 4.29 50
Z A BEAT 348,239,279 B A (A 2L i I
3,862,682,0007G » A5 A R SHLE M 2 & 7 1FE)
PER AR - 11 i [ 4 o ) 1 i
AVGEAE ] (L[] e A OF BT 2 2R T T
A% o GHAH A — A AT > HEEEE R
AT H s RSSO R B Y ¥ T
G IEE - EARSHETE B XN R IE
E °

MOEEIAENAZA > REFAURSNEH
#3,680,400,0007C [ T H 45 ] 4 ¥ B /A ) 1E
SETUS R B B LR 2 =] (PRI & B )
ZAFREBAT A o R H B — M HE EERA
Al s AT A A TE E MO R AR o B
FEOLR FP B TR B S O TE E - PRSP A
B~ bt aus E A RamsE g o

capital of Fast Lead Group, a group of combining entities under common
control, from Central New, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, through
cash payments of HK$2,370,420,000 and issue of 348,239,279 ordinary
shares at the price equivalent to HK$4.29 (totalling HK$3,862,682,000,)
which was equivalent to the net asset value of Fast Lead Group as
consideration. Fast Lead is an investment holding company and its
principal assets are its indirect interest in the project sites which
comprised the Hainan Shimei Bay Site, the Wuhan Oak Bay Site and the

Suzhou Kunshan Site located in the PRC.

On 3 September 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the entired issued
share capital of Day Rejoice and its subsidiaries, a group of combining
entities under common control, from Central New, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRH, (through cash payments of HK$3,680,400,000 as
consideration.) Day Rejoice is an investment holding company and
its principal assets are its indirect interest in the project sites which
comprised the Shenyang City Crossing Site, Shenyang Tiexi Site, Beijing
China Resources Hotel Site and Fuzhou Hongwan Site located in the PRC.

T B
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel

44, BEANLR S ()
(b) FEEFMABZNE
AN T R A 3 B A B AR

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other members of key

184

Z AN management during the year was as follows:
BT T T 7T
HK$°000 HK$000
5 W48 B AR A Short-term employee benefits 10,739 10,377
AR A A Post-employment benefits 560 436
DA A A5 33k Share-based payment 26,419 -
37,718 10,813

©

AN TR S EEATE B Z 55 i
TN 2 B 58 2 e I A 2 B R T B B
BRE ©

S e ot pAy A R0 5K 4 ) BT 2 AR
5/ Ktk

AL A P R BOR B 4% B e M A g
ﬂ%%(ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%@Jﬁi%ﬂﬁ%
REVE R R B o BbAh > AREFIAR BT
E*Iﬂﬁ%%%Z¢l$ﬁﬁT*@
WORKIAL I A 7] 2 — B3 o

B B30 Frliss & 4 - AR IR BLH A
B0 P ) T AT S o RO ARSI
AW SET IR > ERRZER
%%ﬁﬁ%%%i%:ﬁo

) ARLEE H SR R T B
JREG B % 2 ) B e = A &ﬁM%
W4 T2 5 > AR AF UK
A~ {8 RO AT HoAth— A% SR AT R
o BN E AT S 2
AR ) R 2 A B ST 4 R NI
£l e o

Gy ASEEIE B 5 R 40 s e A7 5
7 (1 N/ e N U o
Iz B0y > BRI H 2 T

B Ath B9 5% 4 ) B A AT I R AT
17 o

—B TR
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©

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the Chinese Mainland

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC
government (“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group itself is
part of a larger group of companies under CRNC which is controlled by

the PRC government.

Apart from the disclosure in (a) above, the Group also conducts business
with other state-controlled entities. The directors consider those state-
controlled entities are independent third parties so far as the Group’s

business transactions with them are concerned.

(€] The Group has entered into various transactions, including certain
deposits placements, borrowings and other general banking
facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions which are
state-controlled entities in its ordinary course of business. In view
of the nature of those banking transactions, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that separate disclosure would not

be meaningful.

(ii) The Group has sales and purchases transactions with customers
and suppliers, in which the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of the
counterparties and accordingly whether the transactions are with

other state-controlled entities.
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45. FifJE 2w BRI 2 )
@ MoF-FERELZRES N
=B AR FTEE A F 2GR
W
BIA
LA 2
Nominal value of
Bt 2 /) 4 issued share capital/

Name of subsidiary registered capital

L T Ty

EREHEARAR ([ERERR]) 76,0003 7T
Strong Foundation Developments Limited US$76,000
(“Strong Foundation”)
ERERE M (B) A RA T (M) N
(Note ¢) 900,000,0007C
RMB900,000,000
Boom Go Group Limited (“Boom Go”) 113570
US$11
U RAEEA BR A (4722 1) (BFEF) IES
Best Hope Group Limited (“Best Hope”) US$1
(Note )
Big Leap Group Limited (“Big Leap”) 1%7T
Us$1
Direct Win Group Limited (“Direct Win") 1%7T
(BFREF) (Note £ US$1
SEREEARA R (T5e8 ]) (H3ED) IES
Bright Choice Group Limited US$1
(“Bright Choice”) (Note f)
King Role Limited (“King Role”) 3%T0
(BREE) (Note £ Us$3
Cosmart Resources Limited (“Cosmart”) 25T
Us$2
H AR PR F (T84 1) (FRED IES
Kennex Enterprises Limited (“Kennex”) US$1

(Note f)

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

(@)

RN

Company

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2010 and 2009 are set out as follows:

M A AR Z E#T
A/ R B A 2 T B L
Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

Wi e 2 ) AT W e 2~
Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(1) (F51)
(Restated) (Restated)
- 100% -
99.8% - 99.8%
- 100% -
- - 100%
100% - 100%
- - 100%
- - 100%
- - 100%
100% - 100%
- - 100%

TR

Principal activities

i eeliy

Investment holding

UESIT

Propetty development

BEPER

Investment holding

BEPER

Investment holding

BEHER

Investment holding

BEHER

Investment holding

BEHER

Investment holding

BEHER

Investment holding

BEHER

Investment holding

BEHER

Investment holding

— R
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45. FHES A B B S A R (48) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
C AT, 0T IA A Z C T
FEM B AR 2 i (e B,/ GE M AR 2 T R L )

Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of

W g 2~ ) 44 EEEH

Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

issued share capital/ issued share capital/

186

AAF WEAR AAR WEAW
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(E51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
AR SEA PR F (TRA 1) (HSED IES - 100%  BERK
Charm Oak Enterprises Limited US$1 Investment holding
(“Charm Oak”) (Note f)
LI PR (5B ) T - 100%  BEREMK
Charmlink Resources Limited (“Charmlink”) HK$1 Investment holding
BRAOEBHARAF (T8 ]) (HEED IES - 100%  BEREK
Megapower Resources Limited Us$1 Investment holding
(“Megapower”) (Note f)
Jes e A A R R (FEsEd) 12,000,003 7C 100% 100%  PEE
(Note d) 1US$12,000,000 Properties investment
R A A 7 370,000 7C 100% 100% PEEH
(Fff5Ed) (Note o) US$370,000 Property management
B (1) R PR W PN 96.30% 96.24%  BUAHEIR KL R
(FffaEa) (Note a) 1,300,000,0007C Investment holding and
RMB1,300,000,000 property development
HER R (L0 PR E A R R AR NG 96.30% 96.24%  WIFEE
(Fff#ED) (Note b) 5,000,0007C Property management
RMB5,000,000
JT e R 7 E B A PR A ) NG 96.30% 96.24% IR
(Fff#ED) (Note b) 264,329,3607C Property development
RMB264,329,360
R P B A R A ) N 96.30% 96.24%  WIHHERE
(Bt ED) (Note b) 180,000,0007C Property development
RMB180,000,000

— BB
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45. FifJaE 2 w) B o v (4) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
C AT, M A AR Z BT
FEM B AR 2 i (e B,/ GE M AR 2 T R L )

Nominal value of

Proportion of nominal value of

B I A 7 44 7% issued share capital/ issued share capital/ FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities
2010 | )
And WEAT AL HEAT
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(%51 (%51
(Restated) (Restated)
e e 0 2 A A PR A R 10,000,003 7C - 96.30% = 96.24% YR
(Bt ED) (Note b) US$10,000,000 Property development
Jes eI T AR A A PRI A 7 (Ff3tb) PN - 96.30% = 96.24% BRI
(Note b) 2,500,0007T Electrical engineering
RMB2,500,000
Jbm e AR AL A PR A A PN - 96.30% = 96.24%  WIFEALIH
(Bt 3ED) (Note b) 500,0007C Property agency
RMB500,000
e R AR A AR - 96.30% - 96.24% IR
(Bt &Ec) (Note o) 1,000,000,0007C Property development
RMB1,000,000,000
FEs e B AR PR EE A AR T (Ff3tb) PN - 96.30% = 96.24%  PIHEEERE
(Note b) 28,000,0007T Property development
RMB28,000,000
e (Rt ) A FRA R (FfEd) (Note o) 40,000,000 ¢ - 100% - 100%  PEE
US$40,000,000 Properties investment
A E (R A RA R (i) (Noe d) 21,000,000 78 - 100% - 100% PR

e E M (E
(BffiEd) (Note d)

P E A RA T

US$21,000,000

150,000 70
US$150,000

- 100% -

100%

Property development

ESEEE

Property management

—F B
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45. 2 7 B A T (48) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
CETIRA, M A AR Z BT
FEM B AR 2 i (e B,/ GE M AR 2 T R L )

Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of

W g 2~ ) 44 EEEH

Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

issued share capital/ issued share capital/

AAE O WEAR KSR KA
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(%51) (%51)
(Restated) (Restated)
e (TR A1 R 7 (B ) (Note d) T51400,000,0007C 100% 100%  PEE
HK$400,000,000 Properties investment
DRI R 2 A PR ) NG 100% 100% EEH
(Fff5Ed) (Note o) 5,000,0007C Property management
RMB5,000,000
e EL A (D) BE R AT PR A R 1#%756,000,0007C 100% 100% PIEERE
(Fff5Ed) (Note o) HK$756,000,000 Property development
S B (R BEZE A PR 64,000,0003 G 100% 100%  AEER
(FffaEd) (Note d) US$64,000,000 Property development
S B (R) A PR A 7 141,000,0003 76 100% 100%  AEER

(FffaEd) (Note d)

US$141,000,000

Property development

S L (4Rl A R A 48,000,0003 ¢ 100% 100%  AEER
(Fff5Ed) (Note o) US$48,000,000 Property development
S B4 (R M SE R A R A R N 100% 100%  YIEEH
(Fff5ED) (Note b 5,000,0007C Property management
RMB5,000,000
T B () AR AR T 162,240,0007C 100% 100%  YEER

(FffaEd) (Note d)

e B () P E A TR A A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

— BT
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HK$62,240,000

#13,500,0007C
HK$3,500,000

100%

100%

Property development

ESEEE

Property management
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45. FifJaE 2 w) B o v (4)

W g 2~ ) 44

Name of subsidiary

ERE (B A RA R
(FffaEd) (Note d)

B (A PIEE AR A A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

LR M () A RA A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

S (M) A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

e B (S SR AR A A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

S B (BRI AR 7
(FffaEd) (Note d)

HE E () FRRA A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

R E I () 3R A BRA R
(FffaEd) (Note d)

FERRIRERARAT
(Fff3ED) (Note b)

ERITIA,
AL A 2
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

9,600,000 G
1US$9,600,000

100,000 76
1US$100,000

#1735,000,0007C
HK$735,000,000

#1240,000,0007C
HK$240,000,000

#1740,000,0007C
HK$740,000,000

50,000,00035 7
US$50,000,000

#%1,540,000,0007C
HK$1,540,000,000

#1770,000,00070
HK$770,000,000

N
200,000,0007%
RMB200,000,000

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

A5

Company

M A AR Z BT
A/ R A 2 T B L

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

W

Subsidiaries

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

AT
Company
2 7))

(Restated)

W 2 )
Subsidiaries

(F51)

(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Bt

Principal activities

UESIT

Property development

ESEEE

Property management

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

— R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FifJaE 2 w) B o v (4)

W g 2~ ) 44

Name of subsidiary

ERITIA,
AL A 2
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

T E M (W) BRARAF #1700,000,0007C
(Fff3Ed) (Note d) HK$700,000,000
R (AIE) B A RA A #1700,000,0007C
(Fff3Ed) (Note d) HK$700,000,000
He (R f5 A R A ) #1815,000,00070
(Fff3Ed) (Note d) HK$815,000,000
e () B2 R ) #1385,000,00070
(Fff3Ed) (Note d) HK$385,000,000
e L A (L) A PR #5115990,000,0007C
(FfEd) (Note o) HK$990,000,000
e AL (JE85) A PR 121,790,00035 7T

(FffaEd) (Note d)

US$121,790,000

LR S (M 8) IR A ) 3,000,0003 7C

(Bf5ED) (Note b) US$3,000,000
ARG A R (T ]) e
Speedy Gain Investments Limited Us$2

(“Speedy Gain”)

L
Annual Report 2010

45.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

2010

A4

Company

100%

M A AR Z E#T

issued share capital/

A/ R B A 2 1 (B L

Proportion of nominal value of

registered capital held by

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

60%

2009
o 7

Subsidiaries

(F51)

(Restated)

|
W g 2~ ) AL
Subsidiaries Company
(1)
(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%.

60%.

60%.

T

Principal activities

UES T

Property development

UES T

Property development

UES T

Property development

UES T

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

ESEEE

Property management

BEPEM

Investment holding



A U 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. it 45 v SR A 7 (40)

W g 2~ ) 44

Name of subsidiary

R A R ([ ) (D)

Fortune Achieve Investments Limited

(“Fortune Achieve”) (Note )

Complete Power Holdings Limited
(“Complete Power”) (Fff5Ef) (Note f)

B A R 7] (TR D)

Brilliant Palace Limited (“Brilliant Palace™)

Vikwood Investment Limited (“Vikwood”)

(BfFRED (Note )

g B PR B A PR R ([ g )

Wuxi International Investment Limited

(“Wuxi International”)

(RSB A IR A A])

(Formally known as Wellview Investment

Limited)

Toprun Investments Limited (“Toprun”)

Upper Able Investments Limited
(“Upper Able”)

HERHEA PRA A (Hke)

Uconia Limited (Note e)

bR R S A R A R
(FffaEd) (Note d)

Je R A TR A R )
(FffaEd) (Note d)

BIRA

AL A 2
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

170
Us$1

170
Us$1

#1500,000,0007C
HK$500,000,000

170
Us$1

100370
US$100

ESw
US$2

ESw
US$2

#110,0007C
HK$10,000

2,000,00035 7T
1US$2,000,000

2,000,00035 7T
1US$2,000,000

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

A4

Company

100%

100%

issued share capital/

M A AR Z BT
A/ R A 2 T B L

Proportion of nominal value of

registered capital held by

W g 2~ ) AL
Subsidiaries Company
(1)
(Restated)
60% -
60% -
- 100%
100% -
100% -
100% -

o 7
Subsidiaries
(FEH)

(Restated)

100%

100%

60%.

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Bt

Principal activities

BE P

Investment holding

BE P

Investment holding

BE P

Investment holding

BEPE

Investment holding

Eraccidil

Investment holding

Eraccidil

Investment holding

Eraccidil

Investment holding

AN

Decoration service

S s

Decoration service

S s

Decoration service

T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FHES A B B S A R (48) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
C AT, 0T IA A Z C T
FEM B AR 2 i (e B,/ GE M AR 2 T R L )

Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of

W g 2~ ) 44 EEEH

Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

issued share capital/ issued share capital/

/NG| WiJE 2~ ) AT W 2 )
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(1) (F51)
(Restated) (Restated)
DRI B R A S A A PR ) NG - 100% = 100%  HEBRE
(FffaEc) Note © 5,000,0007C Decoration service
RMB5,000,000
HEM A SA PR A (HHED) (Note b) N - 100% = 100%
50,000,0007C Construction
RMB50,000,000
BN A PR A W) (TEANE D) 50,0003 7C 100% - 100% - REEKR
Smooth Day Group Limited (“Smooth Day”) US$50,000 Investment holding
Grace Truth Holdings Limited 50,0003 70 - - - 100%  EEER
(“Grace Truth”) (Fif5EF) (Note £ US$50,000 Investment holding
HEREARAR(EZ]) #1400,000,0007C - 55% - 55%  BUATEMR
Richgem Investment Limited (“Richgem”) HK$400,000,000 Investment holding
e (R A7 AR 7 (B ) (Note d) W#5W774,303,0007C - 55% - 55%  PIEER
HK$774,303,000 Property development
SR A PR (TR 1) (BEEF) 50,0005 7C - - - 100%  BOEEEME
Winning Profit Investments Limited 1US$50,000 Investment holding
(“Winning Profit”) (Note )
T i () SR A R A 7#1990,000,0007C - 100% = 100% WIERRE
(Note d) (Fff3Ed) HK$990,000,000 Property development
S 4 B (IE3t) A PR NG - 100% = 100% YIEERE
(Fff3ED) (Note b) 1,150,000,0007% Property development
RMB1,150,000,000
e B 3R (L) A R A NG - 100% = 100% YIEERE

(Fff#ED) (Note b)

— BB
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1,150,000,0007C
RMB,150,000,000

Property development



A o 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FifJaE 2 w) B o v (4)

W g 2~ ) 44

Name of subsidiary

o 27
Subsidiaries

(F51)

(Restated)

EEBEARAF (T EF D (KR

Upadvance Investments Limited (“Upadvance”)

(Note f)

HE (FJEF) A PR 7 (B ik d) (Note d)

BREEARAR (EER] ()

Rising Bright Investments Limited

(“Rising Bright”) (Note f)

S () AR T
(FffaEd) (Note d)

R A SR A PR A
(Fff#ED) (Note b)

DA AT PR 7 ([ 5L 1) (B

Merry Crest Investments Limited

(“Merry Crest”) (Note f)

S () B A 7
(FffaEd) (Note d)

FEMEE A PR A (T ])

Zelin Investments Limited (“Zelin”)

HRELL A IR A (i ite)

Wealthy Growth Investments Limited
(Note e)

T B (VR 1) BB A PR A A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

ERITIA,
AL A 2
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

50,000 70
US$50,000

N
641,060,0007E
RMB641,060,000

50,000 70
US$50,000

#1534,300,0007C
HK$534,300,000

NG
3,000,0007C
RMB3,000,000

50,000 70
US$50,000

brediis
312,213,0007C
HK$312,213,000

50,000 70
US$50,000

##10,0007C

HK$10,000

199,800,0003% 7T
US$199,800,000

45.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

M A AR Z BT
A/ R A 2 T B L
Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

AR WEAT AR
Company Subsidiaries Company
(1)
(Restated)

- 100% -

- 100% -

- 100% -

- 100% -

- 100% -

- 100% -

- 100% -

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Bt

Principal activities

BEPEM

Investment holding

UESIT

Property development

BEPEM

Investment holding

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

BEPEM

Investment holding

UESIT

Property development

BEPEM

Investment holding

BEPEM

Investment holding

UESIT

Property development

— R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FHES A B B S A R (48) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
C AT, 0T IA A Z C T
FEM B AR 2 i (e B,/ GE M AR 2 T R L )

Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of

W g 2~ ) 44 EEEH

Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

issued share capital/ issued share capital/

194

And WEAT  AAT WEAW
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(F51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)

RBBEARAF (TFRE ) (HEED 50,0005 7C - - = 100%  BOEEEME

Green Grace Investments Limited 1US$50,000 Investment holding
(“Green Grace”) (Note f)

TR M (i) A PR 7 (Fif e LT - 100% = 100%  HREHK

Logic Furniture (Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 Investment holding
(Note e)

PRI BV BCHEAT A IR A IR A 7 T#491,942,0007C - 100% = 100% AR RE S
(Fff5Ed) (Note o) HK$91,942,000 Furniture manufacturing

and trading

TR A A A ] (THE 1 ) 50,0003 7C - 100% = 100%  HREHK

Bridge Win Investments Limited 1US$50,000 Investment holding
(“Bridge Win")

EREEARAT 7#110,0007T - 100% = 100%  HREHK

Linfull Investments Limited HK$10,000 Investment holding
(FffiEe) Note e)

Jb S PRI A R A 4,500,00038 G - 80% = 80% B4
(Fft i) (Note ©) US$4,500,000 Entertainment

FEMARZEA R 7 (T ) (Fffke) ik abr 100% - 100% - BEEK

Full Best Enterprises Limited (“Full Best”) HK$1 Investment holding
(Note e)

L EHBE AR N - 100% = 100%  HREHK
(Bt &Ed) (Note d) 682,750,0007C Investment holding

RMB682,750,000

B EEA A E (THR ) (Hte) T - 100% = 100%  HREHK

Probest Resources Limited (“Probest”) HK$1 Investment holding
(Note e)

fik BB (TR H 1) LES 100% - 100% - REEKR

Day Rejoice Limited (“Day Rejoice”) Us$3 Investment holding

— BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. it 45 v SR A 7 (40)

W g 2~ ) 44

Name of subsidiary

BESBEARARA(TZE)

Joy Pearl Investments Limited (“Joy Peatl”)

T A R B ([T 1) (BffEe)

United Goal Enterprises Limited
(“United Goal”) (Note f)

H i b SEA RN ([ 4k ) (HEED

Precious Gain Enterprises Limited

(“Precious Gain”) (Note f)

ETARAF (T2TT))

Gold First Limited (“Gold First”)

AT (Hke)

Whole Chance Limited (Note e)

AT A RA A (ke

Data Century Investment Limited (Note e)

e B AT N B A R A A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

e B (RN AR A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

HEEH (L) A R AT

(FffaEd) (Note d)

HE (PR R) A R A A
(FffaEd) (Note d)

BIRA

AL A 2
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

10070
US$100

170
Us$1

10070
US$100

i AP

HK$1

i AP

HK$1

170
Us$1

#1770,000,0007C
HK$770,000,000

#1970,000,0007C
HK$970,000,000

NG
666,378,6147C
RMB666,378,614

NG
1,102,184,0007C
RMB1,102,184,000

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

A5

Company

M A AR Z BT
A/ R A 2 T B L

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

WiJE 2~ )

Subsidiaries

AT

(F51)

(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Company

W 2 )
Subsidiaries

(F51)

(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Bt

Principal activities

BEPEM

Investment holding

BEPEM

Investment holding

BEPEM

Investment holding

BEPE

Investment holding

BEPEM

Investment holding

BEPEM

Investment holding

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

UESIT

Property development

— R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. [HE/AF B S A E (4E) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
BETRA oI A R 2 2 EE T
AL A 2 AR/ A 2 T L A9
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
B I A 7 44 7% issued share capital/ issued share capital/ FEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

And WEAW  AAT WEAW

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(&%) (E%1)
(Restated) (Restated)
HERIBE A BR2A (FERED) (Note ) T51202,800,0007C - 100% = 100% RS
HK$202,800,000 Hotel Business
PRBEIRA PR (Kfite) ki sb - 100% - 100%  BEHER
Grandnice Resources Limited (Note e) HK$1 Investment holding
IR B2 e R SRl A PR ) PNE - 100% - 100%  HEBIRB
(Bt &Ec) (Note o) 5,000,0007C Decoration service
RMB5,000,000
HERITIR ALY S8 B (b ) A IR A ) N - 60% - 60%  WISEEH
(Bt 3ED) (Note b) 5,000,0007C Property management
RMB5,000,000
e ) A R AR AR - 100% - 100% PEEH
(it 3ED) (Note b) 3,000,0007C Property management
RMB3,000,000
e E A (5 ) W IR A R A 7 PNE - 100% - 100%  PEEH
(Bt 3ED) (Note b) 3,000,0007C Property management
RMB3,000,000
JEHD B AR B A A PNE - 100% = 100%  IEHEE
(Bt 3ED) (Note b) 50,000,0007C Property development
RMB50,000,000
18 e A M ) S RS A PR ) PNE - 100% - 100%  PEEH
(Fff5ED) (Note b 2,275,2007C Property management
RMB2,275,200
SEFEEIRARAR (48] IS - 100% - 100%  REHK
Leeds Resources Limited (“Leeds”) US$1 Investment holding
R AR R R (R R D) (Hite) ki sb - 100% - 100%  BEHER
Super Talent Resources Limited HK$1 Investment holding

(“Super Talent”) (Note e)

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FifJaE 2 w) B o v (4)

Wi g 2 =1 44

Name of subsidiary

I S

BRNEE ) S B A PR A
(FffED) (Note b)

el ) SR A PR
(FffED) (Note b)

T (R ) A PR A
(BfFES) (Note £

e B (RS 2 BRA A
(FffEd) (Note d)

e R i B B LA )
(FffiEc) Note ©)

eV AL () 4R 7]
(FffzEe) Note o)

HE M R WM A PR A 7]
(FffiED) (Note b)

S (L) B A A 7
(FffzEd) (Note d)

HETH E b (B2 1L1) A PR A
(FffEd) (Note d)

R () A A
(FffzEd) (Note d)

T IRA
LA AR 2 o
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

AR
800,0007T
RMBS00,000

AR
1,500,00075
RMB1,500,000

#1100,000,0007C
HK$100,000,000

16,500,000 7T
US$16,500,000

s
1,600,000,0007C
HK$1,600,000,000

AR
730,000,0007C
RMB730,000,000

AR
500,0007C
RMBS500,000

21,000,0003%7C
US$21,000,000

12,000,000 7T
US$12,000,000

A R #646,000,0007C
RMB646,000,000

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

T FIA A 2 DT
JBA/ FE AR 2 {1

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

A

Company

4

Subsidiaries

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

AL
Company
(E51)

(Restated)

o 7
Subsidiaries
(F51)

(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TR

Principal activities

LS

Property management

LS

Property management

LIES

Property development

LIES

Property development

LIES

Property development

LIES

Property development

LS

Property management

LIES

Property development

LIES

Property development

LIES

Property development

T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial S

45. i) 2 w) B o v (A1)

W 2~ 7 44

Name of subsidiary

A o SR B B A PR A )
(Fit3ED) (Note b)

e (TR 1) P 2E RS A TR A )
(FffED) (Note b)

oM P 2 R A )
(FffiEc) Note ©)

R LT 7 ot B AT BR A )
(FffzEe) (Note o)

e B B (R B IRA A
(Fff3ED) (Note b)

HETH E b (RRM ) 2R AT PR A )
(FffzEd) (Note d)

AR SEAT IR 7] (i 5Ee)

Creative City Enterprises Limited (Note e)

RELEA R (Hite)

Meiji Investment Limited (Note )

B PR A (R )

Onway Resources Limited (“Onway”)

TR AR A RA A (k)

Dragon Fountain Enterprises Limited (Note )

Rebound Capital Limited (“Rebound Capital”)

— AR
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BRI RA
Ak E AR 2 T (E

Nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital

NG
10,000,0007C
RMB10,000,000

NG
5,000,0007C
RMBS5,000,000

149,970,000 70
US$149,970,000

NG
265,000,0007C
RMB265,000,000

NG
100,000,0007C
RMB100,000,000

99,960,000 G
US8$99,960,000

WL
HK$1
WL
HK$1
1£70
US$1
LT
HK$1

1£70
US$1

tatements

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

0T AN A 2 CEAT
A/ R B A 2 T b A

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

AT
Company

4

Subsidiaries

- 100%

- 100%

- 60%

- 51%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

N
Company
(E51)

(Restated)

Wi JE 2~ 7
Subsidiaries

(E51)

(Restated)

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

TR

Principal activities

VES3

Property development

W

Property management

VES3

Property development

VE 3

Property development

VE 3

Property development

VE 3

Property development

Eraccidile

Investment holding

Eraccidile

Investment holding

Eraccidile

Investment holding

Eraccidile

Investment holding

Eraccidile

Investment holding
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. [HE/A R EE S A E (4E) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
BEfTRA M T A A A Z B 8T
AL MHE A 2 A/ R B A 2 T b A
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
B2 F 40 4 issued share capital/ issued share capital/ FEEY
Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

AnA WEAT  AAT WEAW

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(51 (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
S IEA IR T (H5Ee) fickiiabre - 60% - 0% BUAREK
Winner Well Enterprises Limited HK$1 Investment holding
(Note e)
JERTH SRS Hh E B B AT PR A R NG - 96.30% - 96.24% B
(it ED) (Note b 63,187,0007C Property development
RMB63,187,000
b 5 2 B s B A PR ) AR - 96.30% - 96.24%  WIFEBERE
(it ED) (Note b) 10,000,0007C Property development
RMB10,000,000
U 5 AL e PR A PR A AR - 96.30% - 96.24%  WIFEBERE
(it ED) (Note b) 20,000,0007C Property development
RMB20,000,000
U bR 5 e B A PR A ) AR - 96.30% - 96.24%  WIFEBERE
(it ED) (Note b) 10,000,0007C Property development
RMB10,000,000
e EH (150) B IRA PNELH - 96.30% - 96.24% B
(it ED) (Note b) 10,000,0007C Property development
RMB10,000,000
M EAT IR A (i 5Ee) fickiiabre - 60% - 0% BUAREM
Supreme Way Investment Limited HK$1 Investment holding
(Note €)
e E L OPM) A IR AR AR - 100% - - YRR
(it 7Ed) Note d) 600,000,0007C Property development
RMBG00,000,000

S | g

Annual Report 2010



A o 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FHES A B B S A R (48) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
C AT, H TSI AFRA Z E T
R A 2 T A,/ FE M AR 2 T B L)

Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of

W g 2~ ) 44 TEH

Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

I O

issued share capital/ issued share capital/

200

KA WEAE  AAE WEA
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(FE4) (%)
(Restated) (Restated)
iR S T b A PR A A PN - 55% - 55% BT
(FiHEEC) (Note © 3,000,000fl3 Decoration service
RMB3,000,000
B () P 2E R A R A R NG - 100% = 100% YIEEH
(FffED) (Note b) 500,0007C Property management
RMB500,000
W E I () FFARA R NG - 100% - - YRR
(FffzEd) (Note d) 372,966,0007C Property development
RMB372,966,000
LA () A PR 7 41,820,000 7T - 100% - - WEERE
(Bt 5Ed) (Note d) US$41,820,000 Property development
R () J5 o B B A PR A ) #13,400,000,0007% - 100% = 100% WIERE
(BffiEc) Note ©) HK$3,400,000,000 Property development
ASEBCEA R (TR4E ) 2%70 100% - 100% - REEKR
Fast Lead Investments Limited (“Fast Lead”) Us$2 Investment holding
HME @D TEERAR ##1,760,000,0007% - 100% = 100% YEEBRE
(FitEd) (Note o) HK$1,760,000,000 Property development
HARARA T (R4 ]) IESH - 100% - 100%  HREHK
Rainbow Fit Limited (“Rainbow Fit) US$1 Investment holding
JEERRAT (Hfite) LSBT - 100% = 100%  BOEHEMR
Capital Fountain Limited (Note e) HK$1 Investment holding
L B R DA PR A (FEFEd) (Note o) ##1,231,000,0007C - 100% - - hEnE
HK$1,231,000,000 Property development
A A R ) (e ) ESTH - 100% = 100%  BOEHEMR
Bloom World Inc (“‘Bloom World™) US$2 Investment holding
SRARAR (2% ) (Hite) 2T - 100% - 100%  REHK
Hugo Sun Limited (“Hugo Sun”) (Note €) HK$2 Investment holding

— BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FifJaE 2 w) B o v (4)

Wi g 2 =] 44

Name of subsidiary

T A VR {1 P A PR A )
(FffaEd) (Note d)

T R VA G I B B A PR )
(FiFaEd) (Note d)

T E MV B 0 B AT PR A )
(FiFaEd) (Note d)

TREES B AT IR A ([REE )

Bojet Investment Limited (“Bojet ")

PRAA A ] (Fffke)

Now Rich Limited (Note €)

1 T VR T B 3 1 PR A )
(FiFaEd) (Note d)

ARSEEARAR (AR

Panway Investment Limited (“Panway”)

HIEA IR (Hike)

Sky Flag Limited (Note e)

TRl iR A PR A (FFREd) (Note o)

BRBCEARAR (TH5])

Bonwing Investment Limited (“Bonwing”)

RITIA
LA AR 2
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

NG
6,950,0007C
RMB6,950,000

NG
11,150,0007C
RMB11,150,000

NG
366,900,0007C
RMB366,900,000

1370

US$1

2T

HK$2

NG
330,000,0007C
RMB330,000,000

170

US$1

27T

HK$2

N
243,125,0007C
RMB243,125,000

1370

US$1

45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

A

Company

W T AIA R 2 B 81T
JBEA/ FE AR 2 {1

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital held by

I S
H 2

Subsidiaries

AL
Company
(E51)

(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

o 7
Subsidiaries
(F51)

(Restated)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

FER

Principal activities

LIES

Property development

B33

Property development

B3

Property development

Evaceedile

Investment holding

Evaceedile

Investment holding

B3

Property development

TR

Investment holding

TR

Investment holding

ILES

Hotel business

Evaceedile

Investment holding

— R
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45. Mﬂ‘)%é}ﬁ‘l @.%ﬁ%ﬁﬁl (ﬁg) 45. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
EEITIRA W T AIA R Z E 8T
AL E A 2 HifH JEA /A A 2 T LA
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Bt 2 W 4 1 issued share capital/ issued share capital/ FEEY
Name of subsidiary registered capital registered capital held by Principal activities

KN ()N E/NT Wi e 2~ 7

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
(E51) (E41)
(Restated) (Restated)
SFBA RAE (ke 2ot - 100% = 100%  HEBRK
High Respect Limited (Note e) HK$2 Investment holding
1R JE IRFEA IR ) (k) (Note d) AR - 100% = 100% YIFERRE
33,770,0007C Property development
RMB33,770,000
T A A R A s A B AR - 100% = 100%  YIEEEH
AR A (i Ed) (Note d) 5,000,0007C Property management
RMBS5,000,000
FFGE Notes:
(a) 5% OFF P 2 T T — SR R B 1A b ST 2 (a) The subsidiary is a joint stock limited company established in the Chinese
AR AR ] Mainland.
) 5 OFF P 2 1 T — SR R B 1A b R ST 2 (b) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly owned enterprise established in the
BNERE - Chinese Mainland.
© % O P 2 1 T — R R B 1R b ST 2 (©) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the Chinese Mainland.
HERE-
(D 5 oFF P 2 1 T — SR W B 1A b B ST 22 (D The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
SAR G AR Chinese Mainland.
(e) EAY N T T R L Y YARNE S o (e) The subsidiary is incorporated and has major operations in Hong Kong.
IR i o
[€3) RN R AR IO B (€3] The company is deregistered during the year.

— T
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45. IR 2 7 SUB A (D)

()

(©

S P RS2 BN aUES
A 2 ARSI A o AN R g
R o WS AR A R 2 R
LRIEHRITTR -

B BB B2 ~ 4HSE ~ M Rebound
a8 B B - Boom Go
Big Leap * Cosmart ~ H A ~ fEgE -
Toprun * Upper Able ~ $Jlf - &% - &
Mo KEHE -~ IKH ~ BE - &0 WA
A~ Rt - PREE - HR B AT
) 2 I i RO WA A R
F 51 2 ] Jag 2 ) AR H4 A R B A ST
R o

Capital

WOEEE R CEENEL
St B B2 A (S
i

B TE R ERRFE T A
=t H o ARG HE N R R R
wr

B A F 44

Name of associate

b mt He BRI R ] (D (Note D

e

1l A T AR AT BRZA 7] (B 5Eil) (Note i)

TEF B 2 B iR B 8 A BR > ] (B i) (Note i)

®

(i)

2B U T T — A v R PR R ST 2 R R A

ST T ) R R A BT T

45.
)

©

CERA
S AR 2 T {E
Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital

12,920,0003 70
US$12,920,000

350,000 7T
US$350,000

A K #520,000,0007C
RMB20,000,000

Notes:

@

(i)

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

All the subsidiaries listed above are established and operating in the
Chinese Mainland except for Strong Foundation, Leeds, Onway, Rebound
Capital, Wuxi International, Boom Go, Big Leap, Cosmart, Speedy Gain,
Brilliant Palace, Toprun, Upper Able, Smooth Day, Richgem, Zelin, Bridge
Win, Day Rejoice, Joy Pearl, Gold First, Fast Lead, Rainbow Fit, Bloom
World, Bojet, Panway and Bonwing which are registered in the British

Virgin Islands and their place of operation is in Hong Kong.

No debt securities have been issued by the subsidiaries as at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

Particulars of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are

set out as follows:

A P )4 A A M A

Attributable interest indirectly
held by the Group

B e S

Principal activities

YISEBUE B

Property investment and

48.15% 48.12%

management

TR SN TS

Provision of exterior

30.11% 36.09%

decoration services

SRALBE Rl A B

Provision of tourism and

20% =

travelling services

The associate is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the Chinese

Mainland.

The associate is a domestic enterprise established in the Chinese Mainland.

All the associates are established and operating in the Chinese Mainland.

E R
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5 A o e L

ARSI B AR DRI (R A G2 [ 45 2 e T DA A
g > SR AL TR RO AR &5 0 20 JRORHR A
ORI o ACSR [ 2 BEHE e B E AR ARG —
3 o

ASE T 2 B AR BN LA 1T RS (LA A B RE33
Weir 2 ATREE) - JUBRBL & LB eSS > D
&ﬂi"jﬁﬁkﬂﬁﬁffém LA 2 AT A
it B PR B i 1))

A R R AR AR LN o IR > o
7 B AR AR T B A SRR A B 2
B o ARPREE R 2 R A LRI E R A
B~ FRATHRE ~ W I e B B AT A B s [
BUARES T H i AL

47. ST H
(@) ZfhTHZE
A gz

46.

47.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the bank
borrowings disclosed in Note 33, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves

and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associates
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments
THE GROUP

T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
(FE51) (1)
(Restated) (Restated)
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ% Financial assets
B RE SR T Loans and receivables (including cash
(BB & KI5 (H) and cash equivalents) 13,912,702 22,315,404 7,585,729
Al it R Available-for-sale investments 188,962 194,473 207,205
14,101,664 22,509,877 7,792,934
S ELAE Financial liabilities
FHEEE 2 AR TR Derivative financial instruments
held for trading (100,552) (93,322) (94,092)
T E EG Y Derivative financial instruments in
A 4 b L designated hedge accounting
relationships (51,947) (29,779 (42,832)
HeH A Amortised cost (47,406,837) (38,850,414) (31,640,325)
(47,559,336) (38,973,515) (31,777,249)
TR TR
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47. LR T H (%)
(b)  WEE K

BB A S EOR

R A T T S B AR M
B SN o S o B W R A
5 B0 ) SR BB o A SR B A S P BS
T 08 0 1 g A R IS B A

A T 2 R A LR S TE A B a0 A
A 8] i T A SRR~ R L R
BRSBTS R DL
SLASE I HEBHRDL o ASSE FE 18 H 9l &
T A SRR LR T > B S AL R
W H R R B SRR B
HRRA B I R AT

AWM HEE R G ERENRELEA
A% [0 2% < L i A LR SR B T 1 L
g el A B A S 1 O T S By 2
I R LA o REMFEREAE
2 TR R A N I S o T R A
W S 42 ) R P A T R A T
Bel > Sl 1) A% e T A A -

A5 T 2 B S gy A B A L B 7
JEU gz i) 75 2l AT AT 5 B

AN R H S B R B R AR Y
TR JE B e ot - B R A B A A
S5 2 PSSR o %A IR B LA T 05 AL
B (B34 b MR JURR ~ A1) A Sl g % H A f
FREBR) ~ 5 SR B Ui B < R

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management
policies. The Department of Corporate Finance and Planning of the

Group reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and

obligations.

The Group’s audit committee oversees how management monitors
compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Group. The Group’s audit committee is assisted
in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,

the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to financial risks or

the manner in which it manages and measures.

The Board of Directors of the Company monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
These risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest

rate risk and other price risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.

—F B
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47. LSBT H (48 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) AR\ B as B H A R ok (48) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

55 B Market risk
IR Je oy B Foreign currency risk management
AS%M&#%L/AﬁEﬁ%I{’E&?%ﬁ% The Group conducts its treasury functions and maintain certain cash
T4 - RITE A HBITEE > i and bank balances and bank borrowings in foreign currencies, hence is
65 471N BEE R gy o A 4 [ }ﬁz@%f)} B0 T % exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency
oA ) A THL A R R\ B o A £ (3] B IR NI 4 A risk by closely monitoring the movements of the foreign currency
PRSP ISR o SR > A3 B4 i B e A e L exchange rates. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
B > Sl A T B R 2% i ) e K A B hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
B o exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arises.

AR IR » ARSEE DL K E T EHE The carrying amounts of the Group’s Hong Kong dollar and United States
MR E AR IEREE T dollar denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

oy =L
Assets Liabilities
2010 2009 2 2009
T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
#4)
(Restated)

Hh Hong Kong dollars 1,237,209 487,819 24,050,000 13,320,000
e United States dollars 662,893 1,160,586 780,450 -

— T
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47. @I R ()

(b) T LB A B H R S BOR (A1)
75 ( E)
A1 BEE JE B B ()
S B E"ff
A5 ) = T B B T R SR A R Y T
SR

AR R A S A R (AR ] B
B A 2 B S 2 R Y T R EE ) S
Je KK ITTIESR b TF B R FEsw ( —ERIL
41 59%) IBIUBE o 5% (—F A U4 ¢
5%) 2 1) A 2 A N By 2 R I B S

B I i 2 U A 2 > B IEJELHEK
A RE A AR BN R RTAL o di it A
ST E) > LG T 5% 2 SURF
FREFAE ST o B AT AT A
ST M R R BT > SRR
AR MEA H B S506 (R ZUAE : 5%)
THETEEA BT - A A R S T R
FEIChEA BTt R RUIE SR BRBUR i
AR o #7 N RS0 T R EITER T

RS9 ( “ LA ¢ 5%) > Al Ak 2
FIEF AR BB TR SIS 0 5
B

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of Hong Kong dollar and

the currency of United States dollar.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2009: 5%)
increase and decrease in the Renminbi (the functional currency of the
Company and subsidiaries operating in the PRC), against Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar. 5% (2009: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. As a result of the volatile
financial market in 2010, the management use the sensitivity rate of 5%
for the purpose of assessing foreign currency risk. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2009: 5%), change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where the Renminbi strengthens
against Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar. For a 5% (2009: 5%),
weakening of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and

the balances below would be negative.

T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(1)
(Restated)
A A R A A% Vi ) Post-tax profit for the year
e Hong Kong dollar 888,800 501,707
ESIn United States dollar 4,580 (45,376)
893,380 456,331
L
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47. @I R ()

(b)

Vb 785 J B A L R S BOSRE ()
75 ( E)

A3 B

ZIS%IE%HE%%EEE TR 2 A
AR R B - 7 T R AT A R TR
SARAT 8 2 BLA A AR BR o ASE M
BTS2 A 4 07 DA 3B B U 2 ) L e
(FF R 133 5234)

A TR 3 A o]l R R R L
i A A A A < A — £

FUF B SE 7T

DR B 7 AT AR SRR AT 45 B - 37 B
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%Zﬂ%@l‘ﬂ@ﬂﬁ%%fﬁ
Bl i 2 M AR S B E o O
T T IR 0 AR o R (7 2 Sl T
B S E R R - FEm RS R
TAT IS 52 S ) R SRR R > 48 0 100 {18 2 2B
(ZEZIUAE 10018 Z B S0 A 501
L (T REIUAE © SofE L) AT R
SRAT M 5 M WA 2 1 B AL 38 2 il
Y o T R 101 2 B (.
FUAFE + 101R £ ) HI AR $R 47 .‘nﬁ%
#@%IEJ@%ﬂ%Z%fETﬁE‘ESE&Z“
fi o

%%1‘*%%%%!%%%&;@5&%%%'
SRE G2 A > ASEEH AR R
uﬂ??ﬁﬁﬁurﬁﬁﬁﬁcu# Eﬂ%’?«%

SRATIR ZEAF BN T840 L) 847 2 M
’ééﬁ«%%zwso,ﬁopooﬁ(:ﬁ%%?jt
AF ¥ 13,320,000,00070) Zfﬁéiﬁifrﬂ
SRJTBE GFF B E33) o A o BERAT
5 AT AN AR 9 2 T S (B R B o
R FEFRET A= —H > AT
B 4 5 15 12,976,788,000 0 ( ZFZF L
A R 14,138,782,00000) A 5E FI 2R
AJF,._.\ o

e
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate bank borrowings. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank borrowings and
has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against its exposures to

change in cash flows (see Notes 33 and 34 for details).

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed

in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank balances, variable-rate bank
borrowings together with the effect from interest rate swaps designated
as cash flow hedge. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point (2009: 100 basis point)
increase or 50 basis point (2009: 50 basis point) decrease is used for
variable-rate bank borrowings and interest rate swaps designated as
cash flow hedge and a 10 basis point (2009: 10 basis point) increase
or decrease is used for bank balances when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rate.

In order to keep borrowings at fixed rate and to minimise the cash flow
interest rate risk, the Group uses floating to fixed interest rate swaps to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk exposure associated with certain
amount of borrowings issued at floating rates (i.e., HIBOR plus certain
percentage) totalling HK$24,830,450,000 (2009: HK$13,320,000,000)
(see Note 33 for details). In addition, fixed rate bank borrowings
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. At 31 December
2010, bank borrowings of approximately HK$12,976,788,000 (2009:
HK$14,138,782,000) were at fixed rates.
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47. LREhT H (4 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) P s B H R R BOoR (A (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
5 i (48) Market risk (continued)
) 2 | b 5 P () Interest rate risk management (continued)

FU# AR SE 70T ()
il M 2R & T 1008 B (. FF LA
1000 2 B ) > T 7 A7 HoAth 53 MOk 35
g MIARLEHRNRE —F—F4E+ A
= AR AR R RAT AR AL
Z R B AR Y A1) 6D 193,482,000
TE(ZERIUAE - B ¥ 104,156,000
) o il FI AR FESOME LB (—F 2L
A 0 SOfRELEE) o T A b A A A
A QAL E & —FE+
HA=+—H EEVZ%*HTE%*‘J‘%WW

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2009: 100 basis points)
higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit derived from variable-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31
December 2010 would decrease by HK$193,482,000 (2009: decrease by
HK$104,156,000). If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2009: 50 basis
points) lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would increase by
HK$96,741,000 (2009: increase by HK$52,078,000).

H1596,741,0007C (ZFZILAE + Bmus

#52,078,0007C)

AR AT &5 7 A1) ZE 38 106 25 (— If the interest rates for bank balances had been 10 basis points (2009:
LA - 10ff 3L e > ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ)fﬁﬂiﬁﬂ&%{“ 10 basis points) higher and all other variables were held constant, the

R BIAEINEE X —F4F
+Z A=+ B zmmﬁz/ﬁmﬂ%
H i 19,329,000 00 ( ZEE LA

tni%’?f%‘ls 541 00070) ° %%U%TB&O@
BB (BT  10AEE) > TTA
Eﬁﬁ‘%ﬁfuﬁhT B8 NGB B I P

SRR 2 R -

JRAAEE > A5 W T T 2 A R
BN EER R B LR
e

HoAth fE A S B

A ] R L A 6 PR AN R S 2 R
At ) 5 52 1 T TS AN A R o
A ] 5107 0l LY 56 R AR PR A BB 5 2 1R
2 At R A R A L BURREE A AT - Utk
T e A & RS R DA BAS AT AT
Tk Al Uk R s FR R i o A% AR IR IR AE
S 2 A R SR 4 ) 2 At B A%
JEBET & A2 L TR 10018 5B
R SO J 8 > T BT AT H At 88 SRR
o QIAREI PN E T FAE+ A
=+—H m@rﬁzmmﬁmu#%ﬁw
T ¥31,554,00000 (—FEIUE « dsHE
45,456,000 TG ) jzm&p%'ﬁéfw,ms,ooo;c
TERBESUAE ¢ ##20,505,00000) ©

Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would
increase by HK$9,329,000 (2009: increase by HK$15,541,000). If interest
rates had been 10 basis points (2009: 10 basis points) lower and all other
variables were held constant, there would have been equal but opposite

impact on the profit for the year.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current

year mainly due to the increase in variable rate debt instruments.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in
unquoted equity securities and other interest rate swaps. No sensitivity
analysis of the other price risk of the Group’s investments in these
unquoted equity securities as they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period. In respect of other
price risks of those other interest rate swaps not for hedging, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher or 50 basis points lower in relation
with all other variable held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2010 would increase by HK$31,554,000 (2009:
HK$45,456,000) or decrease by HK$16,013,000 (2009: HK$20,505,000)

respectively.
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(b)
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s 405 PR 5 | 50004 95 s 13 ) 5 £ 0B
HA
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R A SR L EE39)

Ry WURE SRR o AR A L O &AL
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et I AR 25118 SR R A
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AR LS (e R AR R A o Rt
SRR & L RS SRR o
R HREREAL o
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fil > WA R H RS AR A R
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided by

the Group is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial

guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 39.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade and other receivables at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

With respect to the amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and immediate
holding company, the directors of the Company consider the credit risk is

limited because they have strong financial positions.

Other than the amount due from an associate, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers. The Group has
concentration of credit risk of the amount due from an associate, because
there is only one associate who operated in the Chinese Mainland in both
2009 and 2010.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. Details of the

Group’s borrowings are set out in Note 33.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed

repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash outflows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from weighted average interest rate by reference to the HIBOR
of the Group’s variable-rate financial liabilities at the end of the reporting

period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group’s liquidity analysis for its
derivative financial instruments. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted contractual net cash outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrated by the HIBOR and the terms stipulated in
the contract of derivative financial instruments existing at the end of
the reporting period. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management consider that the contractual maturities are essential for

an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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47. &R H () 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) AR\ B as B H A R ok (48) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
B & e R (4 Liquidity risk management (continued)
T 4 R R 2 (4 Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)
A4 ] THE GROUP
—E—E
FRHORE RAGH +=AH
JnREry A BHeng =1t—H
Mg uF W 2Rl
Weighted ~ On demand  1%12{f A SHLLE Total Carrying
average or less than 1-12 1524 2554 Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows  31.12.2010

WL WWTT WL WL WMo BWTL W

% HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR R 2010
JEf A e A Non-derivative financial
liabilities
AetE Non-interest bearing
JREART S S Hofth Trade and other payables
JEATHRIE - 7,787,114 - - - 7787114 7,787,114
JREART L He e /A ) Amount due to immediate
HIE holding company 945,043 - - - - 945,043 945,043
JREASFIR] % I /A ] Amounts due to fellow
I subsidiaries 70,693 - - - - 70,693 70,693
JREAS 42 R s o Amounts due to
i"’Ig non-controlling interests 796,749 _ _ _ _ 796,749 796,749
%E\IE Fixed interest rate instruments
RATIEE Bank borrowings 488 - 4424523 6494203 1622819 1788563 14,330,108 12,976,788
BELR Variable interest rate
instruments
WIS Bank borrowings 097 - 4930966 9883928 10,703,498 - 25518392 24,830,450
BB REH Financial guarantee contracts - 748,627 2,317,598 762,544 189,605 4,018,374 -

1,812,485 17,891,230 18,695,729 13,088,861 1,978,168  53,466473 47,406,837

it TH — 4558 %1 Derivative - net settlement
ilES 0] Interest rate swaps = 86,671 66,777 28,454 = 181,902 152,499
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47. BT H(5) 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) AR E B as B A R ok (48) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
T & P (48 Liquidity risk management (continued)
VL) &4 M F) % w24 (48) Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)
AL (48) THE GROUP (continued)
ZERNAE
A RME TR
JHETYy fREsRE Baeneg =+—H
A MEALTE Rk} ZHR{E
Weighted ~ On demand 1% 1218 A SHELL Total Carrying
average or less than 1-12 1524 2554 Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows  31.12.2009
WL W Tor W Tor W T W Tor MW T wl T
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
(E51) (HE5) (1) (%)
(Restated) ~ (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated)
—FFAH 2009
FERTA: 4l £ 4% Non-derivative financial
liabilities
RetB Non-interest bearing
JRE ST ARk S Fo At Trade and other payables
JEATARIR - 5921958 - - - 5921958 5921,958
JREARF 1] 2 B g /4 ) Amounts due to fellow
HIH subsidiaries 2,217,090 - = = - 2217,00 2,217,090
JREART B 2 P /A ) Amount due to immediate
FIE holding company 2,264,473 = = = - 2264473 2264473
JREART JF 2 s At Amounts due to non-
FIE controlling interests 988,111 = = = = 988,111 988,111
EMIE Fixed interest rate instruments
PATIE B Bank borrowings - 2426548  4736,160 7,773,139 792175  15728,022 14,138,782
(?E\I/E\- Va